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Despite the challenging external business environment including
uncertainties in global political and economic environment and
slowdown in the PRC economic growth, the Group strove to
seize development opportunities arising from the new market
trend through in-depth analysis on our own businesses and the
industry. The Chinese consumers have entered the era of rational
consumption with emphasis on product quality, reasonable pricing
and experience consumption. In addition, following the worldwide
passion for sports and health, the PRC government also attached
great importance to the nationwide sports and fitness undertaking
and actively promoted the development of sports industry in recent
years. In view of this, the Group captured the opportunity to expand
its brand and retail business.

HAEHERBRETRE PRELEERIEENEFIIDLE
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For brand business, the Group embraced the business concept of
“Sports + Wellness”, and also understood the customers’ desire for
sports fashion trend. Through PONY’s collaboration with renowned
designers, a series of products full of streetwear elements made
a grand debut in London Fashion Week in mid 2018. Since the
launch of ARENA (an international swimwear brand), the Group
has made steady progress in exploring omni-channel shopping
experience and expanding its market shares.
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For retail sector, Outlets Malls that provide discounted products
from famous brands and leisure entertainment services
were popular among the consumers in the era of “rational
consumption”. The partial renovation of Shenyang Park Outlets has
begun to create positive effect on tenant recruitment, traffic flow
and sales turnover with diversified brands and catering services. In
addition, under an asset-light strategy, the Group has completed
the sale of the neighbouring land of the project to Guangzhou R&F
Properties Co., Ltd., and it is expected that the development of
this residential project will benefit Shenyang Park Outlets project
and drive the development of the surrounding areas and ancillary
facilities. Anyang Project showed stable operation and development
since its opening in September 2017, and the performance of the
community malls located in Chongging and Tianjin was in line with
our expectation. As the flagship project — Xiamen Park Outlets
was making good progress and has completed the topping of the
superstructure in early 2019 as scheduled, continuous efforts will
be made to facilitate the construction and leasing progress in the
coming months. On the other hand, given the increasingly strained
cross-strait relations, the management adjusted its strategy and
terminated the Kinmen duty-free business at the end of 2018. The
retail business will focus on Park Outlets and the community malls.

In light of the increased awareness of physical well-being and
healthcare of the consumers, the Group completed the acquisition
of Supremium Bio-Technology Ltd (“S.B.T.”) during the year. S.B.T.
is a company engaged in manufacturing, developing and retailing
of health supplement products in Hong Kong, and supplies over
1,000 own brand and licensed brand products to the extensive
local retail network that cater to demands of consumers in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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As for the financial service sector, the Group partnered with an
international fund manager to form the Special Purpose Acquisition
Company (“SPAC”), which was successfully listed on the NASDAQ
in the United States in August 2018 and raised funds amounting
to US$250 million which will be used for mergers and acquisitions.
Under stringent control, other existing financial service businesses
showed a stable development momentum.

OUTLOOK

As a classic sportswear brand originated in New York, the United
States in 1972, PONY has an outstanding track record in football,
basketball, boxing and other international sports event with a long
brand history and high brand popularity. Through increasing cross-
brand and even cross-industry collaboration and cooperation, the
Group will build up its brand name and establish a sports fashion
image, and will also discuss brand development, strategically
strengthen its existing team and enhance negotiations with PONY’s
customers across the globe, so as to promote the development of
brand business.

ARENA will focus on strengthening its position as a leading
international swimwear brand, steadily expanding its market
shares, enhancing operation efficiency, promoting development
of the e-commerce business and broadening product range to
cover consumers’ needs from fitness exercise to daily sports and
recreation, and will make full preparation for the expected sports
spending spree triggered by Tokyo 2020 Olympics. Meanwhile, the
Group is in active discussions with leading Japanese conglomerate
ltochu Corporation regarding brand cooperation and investment
projects, which is scheduled to be put into operation in the second
half of the year.
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The flagship project — Xiamen Park Outlets will be the key
development project of the Group in 2019, and will also be the
first outlet mall in Xiamen. It is expected to introduce 280 brands,
providing services for a population of 20 million in Xiamen,
Zhangzhou and Quanzhou. Our operating team will make every
effort to ensure the smooth opening of the project in September.
Leveraging on the growth momentum of Shenyang Park Outlets,
the Group will speed up the planning and expansion of the north
zone of the shopping mall at the end of the year, so as to promote
business development. With the opening of Xiamen project,
coupled with Shenyang and Anyang projects, the Group will further
improve the strategic layout of Park Outlets, establishing business
presence in Northeast China, the Upper Yangtze River Valley and
the southeast coastal areas. In light of the stable and positive
development of the community malls in Chongging and Tianjin, the
Group will progressively optimize brand and tenant mix.

In 2019, S.B.T. will make continuous efforts to expand its local
retail network, enhance the productivity and strengthen its
own brand awareness. Meanwhile, it will invest to develop new
product lines, corporate customers and self-operated e-commerce
platforms, with an aim to promote sales and brand value.

SPAC is expected to complete the acquisition of the target
company this year. After that, the Group will continue to give
full play to SPAC and other financial instruments to enhance
development of the brand business.

EERE-EFHARKIDEE019FERE
BoMREMERMEFTHGaEED L R
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Leveraging on coordinated management of products, logistics
and retail chain through data and technology, the new retail era
is characterised with online and offline omni-channel experience,
so as to meet today's consumer needs and improve business
competitive edges. The Group has enhanced the e-commerce
operation capability and developed new e-commerce marketing
channels by strengthening the communication and cooperation
between the Information Technology Department at the
headquarter in Hong Kong and its e-commerce company in
Hangzhou, and also stepped up efforts in resource integration
and analysis, so as to support the development of all business
departments and create synergetic effects.

Under the asset-light strategy, the Group will continue to dispose
of property investment, and focus on boosting the long-term
development of its three core businesses, namely the brand, retail
and financial service sectors, with an aim to create greater value for
the investors.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to my fellow
directors, members of our staff, banks, customers and business
partners for their continuous trust and support to the Group. | hope
the management and all our colleagues will continue to contribute
to the business and performance of the Group in 2019.
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The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018
improved from HKD348.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to HKD381.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
mainly due to increase in sales from the retailing and sourcing
segment and rental income growth in community malls business
under property investment and holding segment.

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
increased by 188% from HKD41 million to HKD118.2 million
as a result of the gain from disposal of investment properties in
Shenyang and Hong Kong.

The gross margin was 68% for the year ended 31 December 2018
as compared to 65.7% for the previous year largely attributable
to (a) improvement in overall margin of retailing and sourcing
segment; (b) growth in rental income in property investment and
holding segment; and (c) better turnover in outlet mall segment.

Other income and gains increased from HKD16.9 million
to HKD168.6 million as a result of the gain from disposal of
investment properties in Shenyang and Hong Kong.

Distribution and selling expenses grew from HKD87.1 million to
HKD126.4 million mainly attributable to the growth of revenue in
the retailing and sourcing segment as well as branding segment.

Administrative expenses rose from HKD195.4 million to HKD217.5
million mostly due to (a) business expansion of retailing and
sourcing segment; (b) operating costs relating to the growth in
community malls business; and (c) property development costs
associated with Xiamen outlet mall.

Finance costs fell from HKD42.0 million to HKD33.9 million as a
result of general repayment of bank borrowings, other than the loan
for construction of Xiamen outlet mall.

Operation Review
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Total assets of the Group increased from HKD4,234.4 million to
HKD4,353.5 million mainly as a result of property development of
Xiamen outlet mall. The total liabilities of the Group moved from
HKD1,637.1 million to HKD1,739.6 million due to increase in bank
borrowing for Xiamen outlet mall.

As a result of acquisition and consolidation of a joint venture,
intangible assets of the Group increased by HKD53 million,
interests in joint ventures fell by HKD71.1 million, goodwill surged
HKD113.7 million.

Property, plant and equipment increased from HKD659.9 million to
HKD857.4 million mainly due to property development of Xiamen
outlet mall.

Trade and other receivables increased from HKD146.7 million to
HKD513.6 million is accounted by (i) balance receivables from
disposal of investment property in Shenyang of HKD314.4 million,
which was received on 11 March 2019; and (ii) construction
deposits for Xiamen outlet mall property development. Increase
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is mainly
attributable to investments in SPAC.

Current liabilities decreased from HKD1,058.4 million to HKD586.3
million due to restructuring of certain bank borrowings changing
their nature from current liabilities to non-current liabilities.
Consequently, non-current liabilities increased from HKD578.7
million to HKD1,153.3 million.

MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, revenue from the People’s Republic of China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 97.1%
(2017: 98.8%) of the total revenue with the remaining 2.9%
(2017: 1.2%) shared between United States of America and other
countries.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD131,590,000 (2017: HKD137,326,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD1,419,409,000 (2017:
HKD1,232,132,000).

1O Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group obtained bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts in the amount of HKD1,287,515,000 (2017:
HKD1,156,927,000). The Group has variable interest rate bank
loans which carry interest ranging from 2.38% to 5.94% (2017:
2.69% to 9.2%) per annum. The weighted average effective
interest rate of the Group’s bank loans is 4% (2017: 4.13%).

Debt to total assets ratio stood at 29.6% (2017: 27.3%), based
on total bank borrowings over total assets. The shareholders’
equity was adversely affected by exchange difference arising from
translation of foreign operations amounting to HKD124,727,000
mainly attributable to the devaluation of RMB for the year. The
banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees from
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, charge over certain
deposits, certain prepaid lease payments, certain leasehold
land and buildings in Hong Kong, construction in progress, and
investment properties of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of employees
of the Group was 454. Employee costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD75,171,000 (2017:
HKD70,510,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, double pay and
employee share options were offered to eligible staff of the Group
based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, Shareholders had approved and adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
eligible participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. All
Directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, at the
sole discretion of the Board, who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Operation Review ¥ 7% [ B8
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During the year of 2017, the Group granted 21,000,000 share
options to certain eligible individuals under the share option
scheme, subject to acceptance by them. The share option shall
entitle them to subscribe for a total of 21,000,000 new shares of
HKDO.10 each of the share capital of the Company, at an exercise
price of HKDO.82 per share option.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 were as

R2017FA AEBEREBEBEREA S RE TS
B 1% AT 121,000,000 A (7R EH
%) - BEER TREAEN082ETTITEER
f% $£21,000,000/8 A" A R A& A8 AR [ {E0. 1078
TCZ R
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HE B B BT -

follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
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Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2018 the year the year the year 2018
12018 2018
BRITEE 1418 12A318
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Directors 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 0.82 6,000,000 - (3,000,0000 (3,000,000) =
g2
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 0.82 15,000,000 - (12,000,000)  (3,000,000) -
E&
21,000,000 - (15,000,000)  (6,000,000) &
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0.82 N/A 0.82 0.82 N/A
METHTEE (B TER TER

Details of the movements of the share options granted under
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 were as
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falRiES e
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Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2017 the year the year the year 2017
1201745 201745
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&8
- 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) N/A 0.82 N/A N/A 082
METHTEE (B AEm @R @A
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The Group recognised an expense of approximately HKD328,000
(2017: HKD1,102,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
relation to the fair value of share options, at HKDO.068 per share
option granted by the Company.

Particulars of the Scheme are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2019, one of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary, BEFI AR ZEHBR AR (“Xiamen Park Outlet
Real Estate Company Limited”*), entered into an agreement with
BREZFZIRERAR (“Fujian Sanjian Construction Company
Limited”*) (the “Contractor”) pursuant to which the Contractor
provided the construction works for the outlet mall located
in Xiamen (the “Xiamen Park Outlets”) at a consideration of
approximately RMB326,385,000 (equivalent to HKD371,939,000)
awarded after the acceptance through the open tendering process.
The above contract sum was payable in accordance with the stages
of the construction work performed while retaining 3% of the total
contract sum as construction quality retention money.

The contractor also agreed to provide a performance guarantee
in the form of: (a) cash deposited into Xiamen Park Outlet’s
designated bank account; or (b) bank guarantee; or (c) corporate
guarantee which has been registered with the Xiamen Construction
Administrative Bureau.

Operation Review £ % [ E8
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Board of Directors
EET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 55, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (appointed on 15 December 2014 and elected as the
Chairman on 23 December 2014, he was re-elected on 9 June
2017)

Mr. Cheng was further appointed Chief Executive Officer on 30
September 2015.

He is an experienced investor in securities and also a seasoned
businessman engaging in securities and financing, consultancy,
hotel investment, real estate investment and development, import
and export of cigarettes, perfume and cosmetic products business
for many years. He is also a director of Goldsilk Capital Limited
(“Goldsilk”). Goldsilk is a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 63 (appointed on 2 January 2014
and was re-elected on 9 June 2017)

Mr. Chan was further appointed Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units of the Group.

He possesses over 30 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Stanford Law School, Harvard Business School, The
Wharton School.

14 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 47, joined the Group in September
2014.

Mr. Lee was appointed Executive Director on 1 January 2019.

He is responsible for the property development and investment in
the People’s Republic of China of the Group.

Mr. Lee possesses over 18 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China.

He completed a business administration course with the Beijing
Economy Management Distance Learning College.

Mr. Lee is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman
and substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 70 (appointed on 27 November 2013
and was re-elected on 8 June 2018)

He possesses over 30 years of experience in the retailing and
distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in the
establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather good
brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served as the
Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp since
1978.
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Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 52 (appointed on 27 November
2013 and was re-elected on 10 June 2016)

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1990 and
was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until 1997, Mr. Wah was
a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He is currently an executive
director of CST Group Limited (formerly known as NetMind
Financial Holdings Limited) (HKSE: 985). Mr. Wah used to serve
as the executive director of G-Resources Group Limited (HKSE:
1051) until he retired on 15th June 2018 after the conclusion of
the annual general meeting. The aforesaid companies are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 72 (appointed on 15
December 2014 and was re-elected on 9 June 2017)

Mr. Chow possesses over 39 years of experience in commercial,
financial and investment management in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. He is currently also an independent non-executive director
of Top Form International Limited (HKSE: 333), Playmates Toys
Limited (HKSE: 869) and China Strategic Holdings Limited (HKSE:
235), all three companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Furthermore, he is an independent non-executive director of
Aquis Entertainment Limited (Australian Stock Code: ASX: AQS), a
company listed on Australian Securities Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 55, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance and
business operation of the financial services unit acquired by the
Group in 2014. He possesses over 28 years of experience in the
financial industry.

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom. He is also a full member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu was awarded a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 55, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 20 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance. Her legal practice
used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank financing,
securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture documentation
and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts degree.
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Mr. Wong Keong Yiew, aged 49, joined the Group in June 2015
and currently serves as Head of Pony operation.

He has over 18 years of experience in general management,
sales & marketing and key account management across different
product categories including the fast moving consumer goods and
perfume cosmetics industries.

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the National University of Singapore. He is an ASEAN Scholar and
a Singapore Aerospace Scholar.

Ms. Li Hua, aged 53, joined the Group in 2009.

Ms. Li has been focusing on brand marketing and leading the
brand operation from 1st March 2016 onwards. She is currently
responsible for Arena business.

She has worked with Henkel, Reckitt Benckiser and Wacoal during
her 25 years in sales and marketing in FMCG and sports/fashion
industries.

Ms. Li graduated from Jilin Normal University with a bachelor
degree in English Literature.

Mr. Mok Henry, aged 57, joined the Group in April 2004.

Mr. Mok was appointed Vice President in November 2012, and is
currently overseeing the Group’s branding business in China.

He is a retail industry veteran with over 25 years of experience in
the general consumer, as well as tourism, retailing business. His
past working experience included DFS Hong Kong Lid., a LVMH
company and Victoria Mall, a CKH Shopping Mall, Reebok China
and JFT Holdings Ltd.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture from North

East London Polytechnic (currently University of East London) in
the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Ng Yat Man Daniel, aged 61, joined the Group in December,
2011.

Mr. Ng was appointed the Head of leasing of outlet mall division on
1 March 2015. He is responsible for high-end brand recruitment
for the Group’s outlet malls in PRC.

He is a seasoned retailer with over 34 years of experience
accumulated from working with Foxtown, Golden Eagle Shopping
Centre and Sogo (HK).

Mr. Ng attended management courses at Foxtown Outlets, Lugano,
Switzerland.

Ms. Fung Kim Wan Ewim, aged 56 joined the Group on 1 July
2014.

Ms. Fung currently oversees the financial services business of the
Group.

With over 32 years of experience in business administration,
operational and customer relationship management, Ms. Fung has
been one of the key management member of a leading tobacco
and liquor company in Hong Kong, her main responsibilities
include supervising and managing the distribution and duty-free
business.

She graduated from the City College of Commerce in 1984 in the
discipline of business studies.
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Directors’ Report
ESEWE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda on 24 November 1993 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
its shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Company's
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1 March 1995. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, are mainly consist of (i) retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and accessories
and the newly acquired sourcing and trading of health supplement
products through business combinations; (ii) development and
management of “PONY” trademarks; (iii) property investment
and holding; (iv) management and operation of outlet malls; (v)
provision of financial services (including securities brokerage,
margin financing, money lending, underwriting and placing of listed
securities and financial consultancy services); and (vi) operation of
duty-free shops.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including the challenges
faced and ways to tackle them together with a discussion of
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
is included in the Operation Review. A description of the financial
risks including but not limited to foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price risk are found in Note
38(B) to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 55 to 56
of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.012 per Share to
the Shareholders (2017: HKDO0.005 per Share), amounting to
approximately HKD35,688,000 (2017: HKD14,810,000) in
aggregate.

The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on Monday, 15
July 2019 to Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company as at the close of business on Monday,
24 June 2019. The payment of dividend is subject to the approval
of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
Friday, 14 June 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at
31 December 2018. The revaluation resulted in a surplus of
approximately HKD29,150,000 which was credited directly to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2018 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD112,267,000 was credited
directly to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

BONUS WARRANT

During the year, the qualifying shareholders of the Company
exercised a total number of approximately 3,222,000 units of
warrants at the exercise price HKD1.00 per warrant. As at 31
December 2018, approximately 536,452,735 warrants remained
outstanding. Details are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 36 of the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 were as follows:

(&3
ARRRBEAEBFBEEERANGE P BHRKRME
SSE
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RE20I8E12A31H LR  BEAQ TR
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C 40
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KBTS EE A

MR2018F 12 A31 8 ' AR A Al DB F AR BIIE
REEOT

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’'000

FET FHET

Share premium f& 15 & (B 1,071,484 1,056,760
Contributed surplus B 586,774 586,774
Retained profits B 15 m 93,133 148,391
1,751,391 1,791,925
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s share premium account may be applied to pay
up unissued Shares to be issued to the Shareholders as fully paid
bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary
Mr. Hong Kim Cheong
(retired at the annual general meeting held on 8 June 2018)
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (appointed on 1 January 2019)

Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws 87 and 88 of the
Company, Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. Wah Wang
Kei Jackie (“Mr. Wah") will retire as Directors by rotation and being
eligible, both Mr. Chan and Mr. Wah offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of

the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the

Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Code”), were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company:

EFNERTBASNERRRIRG
HERARGBIESR

RIBEH M B IGE (TEF MG RG] ]) %F352
BREBTFNERMAE SR BEB A LA
RERETESFRZNFESTR ([FESTR)
BAHARA R R P R20185F12H31H AR
AEENTBEITHRABREFHEALNART
SEB 2 PR BN REFHERSK
KB EVESAT

RE

RAREREEC.10E TH T BARY

Number of ordinary shares held by

FERTLERYE

Percentage

Spouse Total of the

and/or Controlled number of issued share

children corporation ordinary capital of

Director Notes  Beneficial owner under 18 shares the Company

EF 28

EBR/ % E#T

EE st RN 18EMTFX EReE - LEREKE BRAESE

Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng")  Z3/&FE ([E5%4]) 1 40,570,000 - 1,069,830,000 1,110,400,000 37.34%

Chan Kar Lee Gary BRsFl 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 0.30%

Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) IEE (NLEE] 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.34%

Lee Cheung Ming (“Mr. Lee”)  ZEReE ([F%4£]) 94,050,000 2,000,000 - 96,050,000 3.23%
Notes: Bt 3 -

1.

24

Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk Capital Limited
(“Goldsilk”). As at 31 December 2018, Goldsilk was directly interested in
1,069,830,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was also
directly interested in 40,570,000 Shares. He was thus deemed to be interested
in 1,110,400,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants.

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Shum Pui Kay beneficially owns 10,000,000
Shares and 2,350,000 Warrants.

Mr. Lee was appointed as a director of the Company effective from 1st January
2019. Mr. Lee is directly interested in 94,050,000 Shares and 14,810,000
Warrants. He was deemed to be interested in 2,000,000 Shares and 114,000
Warrants held by his spouse. He was thus deemed to be interested in
96,050,000 Shares and 14,924,000 Warrants.
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Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme”, none of the directors, chief executives nor their
associates had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2018.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
shares during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the margin financing arrangement as disclosed under the
heading of “Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 40 to
43 of the annual report, no Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report EE # &

Bk B3R [HERCHERT 8 ) — B AT att - 7M2018%F12
A3lA #HIEEMES FT2TRAEREFH
BATRAR B S E DR A AR
MR R EFHEAERIAR -

R B =0 A [ e 69 Y =

RAFREERKREA - AR A SHETANERR
BB S BT L AL E B ARNR R HEM
HiZ ABENRDNEFMESHE - AR
REFERARERE B ERIIA

EFNEESONER

BRAFEREFI0AEFIE [FHERER
SIBBEETHREZRBSBERHIN BE
EFERIMERARTSEEMMBARESF
NEHECBEFRAIUHARBESMEEE
RZEBANTERERER -

EEHM

B A E RN A B RRMELL -
EERBEEEBNER

EEREEEANTEBRA T L BEETHFL
g5 HARE FTRAIES 10MBEET R
B -

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE 25



Directors’ Report = 3R &

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS BT ERIL

ARBCREEFREFORERX (EERE
A IRDI £ 46916 R RN A BF AR

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force throughout the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE

RIRFE 7 K B E R 01 833616 E AR BT
TERRECMAE 2 REERERN2018512
A3IBHAARREHITRA Z AR XA
LN

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2018, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of their relevant interests and short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company:

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company AR B FRR0.108 TR AR 1R

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes ~ Capacity interests interests interests Company
BT
#wEB E#T
= M &g EEED RHEEL AR [iZN=1)174
Mr. Cheng 1 Beneficial owner and Interest of 40,570,000  1,069,830,000  1,110,400,000 37.34%
controlled corporation
BE4E RaARZERE
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 1,110,400,000  1,110,400,000 37.34%
FERLL ([FLL]) ficfd
Goldsilk 1 Beneficial owner 1,069,830,000 - 1,069,830,000 3597%
ZaA
Or Ching Fai (“Mr. Or") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse 350,000,000 120,000,000 470,000,000 15.80%
BB & ([F%E4E]) R ARER
Wong Lai Ning (“Madam Wong") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse - 470,000,000 470,000,000 15.80%

BRELL ([RRt])
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Notes:

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk. As at 31
December 2018, Goldsilk was directly interested in 1,069,830,000
Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Mr. Cheng was also directly
interested in 40,570,000 Shares. He was thus deemed to be interested
in 1,110,400,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants. Madam Li is
the wife of Mr. Cheng and she was also deemed to be interested in
1,110,400,000 Shares and 160,366,000 Warrants.

2. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Or was directly interested in
350,000,000 Shares and 70,000,000 Warrants. Mr. Or also held
120,000,000 Shares and 24,000,000 Warrants jointly with his spouse,
Madam Wong. Therefore, Mr. Or and Madam Wong were deemed to be
interested in 470,000,000 Shares and 94,000,000 Warrants.

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2018.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD30,300 (2017: HKD89,400).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is reviewed by the Board
taking into account the qualifications, experience of the Group's
employees and the market conditions.

The Group is committed to providing staff with a pleasant, safe and
healthy working environment. Competitive remuneration package
and share option incentive are provided to eligible employees.
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The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, taking into account the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and the market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the
emoluments of the directors and senior management. The
Company has adopted share option scheme as incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the Scheme are set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 44 of
this Annual Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
DISTRIBUTORS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 13% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 4%. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 86% of the Group’s
total purchases and amount which 66% is attribute to the largest
supplier for the year.

The Group's largest supplier that accounts for 66% of the
total purchases is Shanghai Descente. Shanghai Descente has
appointed the Group’s indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary Arena
Shanghai to be its exclusive distributor for PRC from 2017 to 2021.
Shanghai Descente is contractually bound to supply swimwear
products to Arena Shanghai during the term of the distribution
agreement. Further details relating to the joint venture are found in
the Company’s announcements dated 27 February 2017 and 22
March 2017.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholders who holds more than
5% of the Shares has any interests in the customers and suppliers
disclosed above.

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse range of life-
style, value-for-money, good quality products with our brand to
our customers. We stay connected with our customers through
maintaining VIP database, ongoing communications, telephone,
emails, marketing materials and social media. Training are also
provided to sales personnel to provide quality and value-added
customer services.

In addition, the Group will continue to widen the customer base by
utilizing and maximizing current network.

We have developed long-standing relationships with our vendors
and take great care to ensure that they share our commitment
to quality and ethics. We carefully select and assess our vendors
through track record, experience, reputation, ability to provide
quality products.
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We distribute certain products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like business
partners and ensure that they also share our view for upholding
brand value and customer services, specifically focusing on
attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales growth.
We also monitor the financial position and repayment history of
these distributors and their sales performance.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk and internal control
system. With the merger and acquisition of new businesses,
the governance system is constantly reviewed and meticulously
re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that shareholders’ and
stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded. The Company has adopted
and complied with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, except for the deviation from code provisions
A.2.1,A4.1 and A.6.7 of CG Code.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices and makes necessary changes
at appropriate times. Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of
the Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheng Tun
Nei currently serves as both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board is of the view that vesting the
roles of both the chairman and chief executive on Mr. Cheng Tun
Nei will provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
while permitting more effective and timely business planning and
decision making process.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election. All
non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87
of the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Hong Kim Cheong (“Mr. Hong”) and Mr. Shum Pui Kay (“Mr.
Shum”) were not able to attend the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 8th June 2018 due to other business
commitments although code provision A.6.7 provides that the
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading, directing and supervising
the Group’s affairs to enable the long term success of the Group.
It sets strategic objectives with focus on value creation and risk
management. It also ensures the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience for achieving internal control and
ensure transparency.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consisted of 5 Directors
(including the Chairman of the Board), amongst which two are
executive Directors and the remaining three are independent non-
executive Directors. An additional executive director was appointed
on 1st January 2019. As at the date of this report, the total number
of board members is six and the total number of executive directors
is three.

Executive directors are involved in the day-to-day operations of
the businesses. Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”)
are involved in scrutinizing the Group’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance
reporting. As they are not involved in the daily management of the
Group, INEDs bring an independent judgment to bear on issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct. Their presence help to
enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives.

Board diversity is achieved through skills, professional or industry
knowledge and experience, age, cultural and educational
background, age, race, technical skills and experience. The
Company will develop diversity based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the Chief
Operating Officer and the senior management. While granting
management with substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board is proactive in reviewing the results of the
delegated functions and work tasks on an ongoing basis.
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Every newly appointed director will receive briefing and
professional development so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates and presentation on
the business development of the Group. The Directors are regularly
briefed on the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices. All directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

To enable them to be kept abreast of the latest changes in
the business, legal and regulatory environment in which the
Group conducts its business, the Company provides continuous
professional training to Directors through circulating Hong Kong
Stock Exchange updates to Directors.
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All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and
advice from the company secretary of the Company.

During the year, the Board conducted 4 meetings, attendance of
the Directors at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

2RERHN2E K REEOAQFNHQE
MERSHB) S -

RADBFEE EFEHOMIREH EFNE
EFERBERBAFRENGRLFELENTER: —

as follows:—
Number of meetings attended
HEERZRE
Annual
General
Directors Board Meeting
S EEE RREEXH
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei gER 4/4 11
Chan Kar Lee Gary bR 3% A 4/4 /1
Hong Kim Cheong ! ikt 1/4 0/1
Lee Cheung Ming 2 TR N/A 73 A N/A 73 A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFEPITES
Shum Pui Kay o E 4/4 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 4/4 1/1
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BAF& 4/4 11

5 Mr. Hong Kim Cheong retired on 8 June 2018.

2 Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed on 1 January 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the company secretary of the Company, is
a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman of
the Company. She has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her
biographical details are set out on page 17 of the annual report.

The Board delegates the responsibility for performing corporate
governance duties to the board committees. The core committees
of the Board are nomination, audit and remuneration committees.
The chair seat of the audit and remuneration committees are
currently held by an INED. Majority members of the three
committees are INEDs.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board
on and reviewing the remuneration of the Board and senior
management. The aim is to motivate, retain and attract the best
talents for the Group so as to maximize shareholder value.

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options. During the year under
review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and considered the
remuneration packages of the Directors, taking into account the
experience, qualifications, business performance, market practices
and competitive market conditions. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and time
dedicated to the Board.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee met
in March and August to review with the Chief Financial Officer, the
external auditor and senior management the interim and annual
results of the Group. During those meetings, the accounting
principles and practices being adopted together with auditing and
financial reporting matters were considered. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee were also revised in compliance with the
amended Listing Rules.
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An independent internal audit service provider also reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018. No material findings had been
identified.

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is made up of three Directors, out of which 2 are
INEDs. The key role of the Nomination Committee is recruitment of
board members. It evaluates and assesses the optimal composition
of the Board, taking into account the Group’s strategies and
objectives. Apart from making recommendations on the proposed
changes to the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs,
making recommendation to the Board for the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee is mindful of
the need to refresh the Board regularly to avoid entrenchment and
attract fresh thinking.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)

Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided information to
the Board members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
latest developments of the Company. The attendance of individual
members of the Board and other Board Committee meetings
during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the

ESE TEEERREHRLH

RAMBEFE EEEEEARMEFTENER
HER FHERZEARRNEHER-BE
2018F12A3IHIEMERFE  EEFERHME
BEgREMNEZHFLBITR:

table below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
S EREEE FNEET REEET
Executive Director BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei EEE N/A N/A 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITEE
Shum Pui Kay ShiE A 2/2 2/2 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 2/2 2/2 11
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BFE& 2/2 2/2 N/A
Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings EFeNTEENERCHERMLE SR
have been recorded. Draft and final versions of minutes of the MNEREKRERAHEREZENEEREAZT
Board and other Board Committees were circulated to all Directors BYFMEEEREEeNEEHKTm-

or Committees members for comments within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr.
Wah Wang Kei Jackie (“Mr. Wah”) will retire and being eligible,
both Mr. Chan and Mr. Wah offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Chan and Mr. Wah are set out in
the circular to be sent to the Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk identification and control is the Board’s responsibility. When
the Board pursues the Group’s long term strategic objectives, it
also deals with internal control issues including the Group's risk
appetite, risk and return trade-offs, risk management and control
systems.

Procedures are designed to identify and manage risks that might
adversely impact the Group’s business operations. Through the
establishment of policies and internal guidelines such as the
approval of detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and
plans provided by the management of the business operations;
inhouse code for the approval and control of expenditures; periodic
review of actual results against budget or forecast; annual review
by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of the Group’s internal
audit and risk management functions, the effectiveness of the
internal control systems is ensured. An independent service
provider was appointed in March 2016 to assist the Board to
monitor the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The service provider performed
annual risk management and internal control review of the
procedures, systems and controls of the Company in accordance
with “Internal Control Integrated Framework”. A Risk Management
and Internal Control Review Report was submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a half-yearly basis so that remedial
actions can be taken by formalizing management policies to
manage risk in a systematic manner.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those with
significant impact on the Group. As far as the Company is aware
of, the Group has complied, in material respect, with the relevant
rules and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies
to which the Group operates its business in and holds the relevant
required licences for conducting certain licensed activities.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

12 BB B =

B ZE2018F 12 A3 HIEMHFE - N T AR A
B R AR EERETREBEAER AR
FriR e Bz IR M IEEZ R BH € 4R & 40
T

2018
HKD’000
FERT

Nature of services AR 714 &
Audit services Eit iR 2,000
Non-audit services FEFET RIS 333

The Group’s external auditor is BDO Limited, their independence is
a fundamental governance principle.

The lead audit partner of BDO Limited is subject to rotation every
seven years pursuant to the Independent Federation of Accounts
rules on independence of external auditors. As part of the rotation,
the current lead audit partner was first appointed for the 2017
financial year end audit.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and confirm that the financial statements contained herein give a
true and fair view of the results and state of affairs of the Group for
the period under review. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance can
be found in the Operation Review section of this annual report
from page 9 to 13. Further explanation as to how the Company
generates or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy
for delivering the Company’s objectives is found in the Chairman’s
Statement from page 3 to 7.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
the following disclosed connected transactions with its connected
persons:

(i) under a margin financing agreement collectively signed
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei a director of the Company, Goldsilk
Capital Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng)
and the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2018,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years; and

(i) under a margin financing agreement signed by Ms. Fung
Kim Wan Ewim, a director of the subsidiary of the Company
and the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2018,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for term of three years.
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The transactions adhere to the Margin Financing Policy of
China Rise Securities Assets Management Company Limited,
which is defined as per guidance from the Securities &
Futures Commission. All transactions (including but not
limited to exposure limit, margin loan outstanding) are
subject to review and monitoring on a daily basis by credit,
Compliance & Responsible Officer, whereby margin calls if
any shall be followed up with remedial action accordingly.

On 27 February 2017, Arena Shanghai Industrial Co. Limited
(“Arena Shanghai”), Shanghai Descente Commercial Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Descente”), Descente Ltd. (“Descente”) and
the Company entered into an agreement for a joint venture
(“JV agreement”), which includes the distribution agreement
(“Distribution Agreement”) pursuant to which Shanghai
Descente appointed Arena Shanghai as its exclusive
distributor for the sale and distribution of swimwear and other
sportswear, shoes and related accessories (“Products”) in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

After execution of the JV Agreement and the Distribution
Agreement, Shanghai Descente was issued 30% of the
equity interest of Arena Shanghai and thus became a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Thus, the
transactions entered into between Arena Shanghai with
Shanghai Descente pursuant to the Distribution Agreement
became continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The term of the Distribution Agreement commenced on 27
February 2017 and would end on 31 December 2021 (both
days inclusive) (“Term”). During the Term, Arena Shanghai is
required to make minimum purchases in each contract year.

(iii)
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On 31st December 2017 an agreement supplemental to
the Distribution Agreement was entered into, revising the
annual caps under the Distribution Agreement. The revised
annual caps of each of the contract year during the Term
would become: RMB130,053,000 (2017), RMB136,312,500
(2018), RMB146,221,500 (2019), RMB180,919,500
(2020), RMB200,104,500 (2021).

The revised annual caps were determined by reference
to the demand for swimwear products in PRC market, in
both wholesale and retail business taking into account
multiple distribution channels online and offline, which was
higher than originally expected at the time of executing the
Distribution Agreement. It was further expected that the
demand for Japanese-branded swimwear products is likely to
increase due to Tokyo Olympics in 2020.

The price payable by Arena Shanghai for products under the
Distribution Agreement is determined on a “cost-plus” basis
on which Arena Shanghai’'s purchase price is equal to the
landed cost of the goods purchased (including any port fees,
taxes, custom duties that may apply) multiplied by a factor
of 1.41. As the Company have previously been appointed
China distributors for various international brands over the
past years, the Company possesses relevant industry and
business experience and has determined that procedures
for reviewing and approving price lists or guidelines are not
necessary.

In determining whether pricing basis is on terms no less
favourable than the terms from independent third parties, the
Company has taken into account and conducted comparison
based upon (a) previous licensing and distribution
agreements with other sports brands; (b) sourcing cost of the
raw material and the production scale of the Products; (c)
quality of the Products as some of them were imported from
Japan direct; and (d) pricing basis of existing licensees of the
Company'’s owned sports brands.
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The transactions are reviewed and monitored by designated ZERGIIEATIECEBETERZRER -
internal team.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company believed
that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into:—

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s disclosed continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
Limited has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with institutional investors
on an on-going basis providing them with the latest and
comprehensive information about the corporate developments of
the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into the Company’s
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain updated
information in a timely manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection
in pursuing long-term sustainability. In particular, the Group
promotes water and energy saving, recycling of materials at our
headquarters such as putting up notices in the restrooms and
pantry reminding staff members to save water, switching off idle
lightings, air-conditioning and electrical appliances. The Group also
encourages the use of recycle papers and doubled sided printing.
The Group is committed to improving environmental sustainability
and will closely monitor the performance. In accordance with Rule
13.91 of and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be available on
its website within three months from the publication of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to provide consistent increases in dividends,
linked to the earning performance of its business. The Board takes
into account the Company’s future business funding need and the
Company’s financial position when deciding the dividend amount
to be paid.

Dividends are normally paid out once per year.

Shareholders who fail to receive their dividend warrant should
notify the Company’s Share Registrar by writing to them or
complete a form which can be downloaded from the Share
Registrar’'s website. A replacement dividend warrant or
replacement dividend cheque will be sent to shareholders around
4 weeks from the date the Company's Share Registrar receive
shareholders’ notification of non-receipt of dividend warrants.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{SH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 298, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 110 and 113 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings and buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately
HKD1,319,475,000, HKD299,780,000 and HKD331,295,000
respectively (2017: HKD1,365,656,000, HKD284,400,000 and
HKD339,806,000 respectively) were measured at their fair values.
These fair value measurements were classified as level 3 recurring
fair value measurement for which the inputs used for determining
the fair value were not largely based on observable market data.

Independent external valuations were obtained from independent
firm of professional property valuers to support the fair value
estimations.

Valuations of investment properties were determined by two
separate methodologies, including direct comparison approach
for Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging and Hong Kong
properties and capitalisation of rental receivables approach for
Hong Kong properties, which required significant judgement by
taking into account of the properties characteristics, such as
location, size, time, floor, size, age and quality of comparable
transactions for Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging and
Hong Kong properties, and expected rental growth rate, term
yield, reversionary yield and market rent for Hong Kong properties
respectively.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuations of leasehold land and buildings and buildings classified
as property, plant and equipment were estimated by using direct
comparison approach for Shanghai and Hong Kong properties, by
taking into account of the properties characteristics, such as time,
floor, age, quality, size and view of comparable transactions, and
depreciated replacement cost approach for Shenyang properties
based on the properties highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use, in the absence of comparable sales
evidence.

We identified the fair value estimations of these investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings and buildings classified
as property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter because of
the significant judgement and high level of estimation uncertainty
involved in the valuations of these assets and the significant fair
value amounts involved.

Our response:

- Evaluated the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- Assessed the appropriateness of the methodologies used
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions based on
knowledge of the property industry and available market
data; and

- Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data provided by the management to the
independent external valuers by agreeing to the records held
by the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Refer to Notes 22 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 129 to 132.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade and other receivables
and loss allowances thereon amounted to approximately
HKD513,594,000 and HKD37,424,000 (2017: HKD146,694,000
and HKD31,638,000) respectively. In addition, the Group'’s loans
receivable and loss allowances thereon amounted to approximately
HKD166,088,000 and HKD6,800,000 (2017: HKD237,132,000
and HKD16,000,000) respectively.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting
for the impairment of trade and other receivables and loans
receivable by replacing HKAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a
forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach.

The measurement of ECL requires the application of significant
judgement and increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in credit
quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models, such as the
expected future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.

We identified the impairment of trade and other receivables
and loans receivable as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in developing and implementing
the ECL models and high level of estimation uncertainty and the
significance of the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
and loans receivable to the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Our response:

Tested the design and implementation of key controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

For the assessed ECL, we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s ECL models and challenged assumptions and
data used in estimating ECL, including testing the accuracy
of the historical data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and examining
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances;

For a sample of exposures that was subject to impairment
assessment other than the simplified approach, we tested
whether the significant increase in credit risk and default
definitions were appropriately applied and resulting impact of
this on the staging of the financial assets; and

Verified the critical data inputs in assessing the
reasonableness of the probability of default against source
documents; and tested the loss given default in the
ECL calculation including the value of collateral where
appropriate.

Refer to Notes 20 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 103 and 118 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life of approximately HKD147,501,000
and HKD199,450,000 (2017: HKD HKD33,796,000 and
HKD146,417,000) respectively which are subject to annual
impairment testing.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Management concluded that there was no impairment in respect
of the goodwill and intangible assets. This conclusion was based
on the determination of the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units of the assets. The determination of recoverable
amounts require significant judgement and assumptions made
by management with respect to the underlying future cash flows
dependent on factors, such as future revenue growth rates, gross
margins and the applicable discount rates.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets as
a key audit matter because of the extent of significant judgement
involved in the determination of recoverable amounts and useful
lives, as well as the significance of carrying amounts of these assets
to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

- Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the impairment testing;

- Assessed the reasonableness of revenue growth rates,
gross profit margins and discount rates underlying in the
impairment testing;

- Challenged the reasonableness of key assumptions made
by management when preparing the cash flow projections
based on knowledge of the business; and

- Checked input data to supporting evidence, including the

approved budgets and considering the accuracy of previous
management budgets.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report ¥& 37 #% S &l ¥R &

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 37 #% & &f ¥Rk &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report ¥& 37 #% S &l ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB G eMBRR2Z2EE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (48)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 37 #% & &f ¥Rk &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TANG Tak Wah

Practising Certificate Number: P06262

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S A= g
FRE B
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
K FH#ET FHET
Revenue EER 7 381,848 348919
Cost of sales SHE KA (122,145) (119,822)
Gross profit E7 259,703 229,097
Other income and gains H g A Rz 10(A) 168,558 16,852
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERY (126,363) (87,056)
Administrative expenses THAX (217,493) (195,393)
Finance costs BE B AR 8 (33,933) (41,965)
Other expenses Hipp % 10(B) (5,047) (10,008)
Impairment loss on financial assets eREERERRE (12,615) (11,897)
Increase in fair value of investment properties BB Y RN B BN 10(C) 112,267 197,663
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEXE 19,955 19,407
Share of result of an associate E—HEBECEES (2,326) =
Profit before income tax expense BR TS 1% 5 S A A 162,706 116,700
Income tax expense Frisfif X 9 (50,034) (58,951)
Profit for the year FZ ) 10(C) 112,672 57,749
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE{E ST (BEE) :
Owners of the Company RRBER A 118,213 41,018
Non-controlling interests RS (5,541) 16,731
112,672 57,749
Earnings per share: BEEF:
Basic earnings per share FRREREF 13 HK3.99 cents #ll HK1.41 cents 7l
Diluted earnings per share BREEEF 13 HK3.98 cents il HK1.41 cents 7
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ConSOlidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Ar e & E W am R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2018 2017
NOTES HKD'000 HKD'000
HiiF FHERT FHET
Profit for the year FREN 10(c) 112,672 57,749
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hib2mEE A BRBIE
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TrEEMSEEEEMNER
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MEEMAEE R 29,150 61,819
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of properties ¥ EbFEL 2
ELERIERE (5,328) (12,316)
23,822 49,503
ltems that may be classified subsequently He#gegasmoEs
to profit or loss: BRMIER
Share of other comprehensive income of hEELERM
joint ventures Z2HEBA (2,763) 5,010
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINEFEER
foreign operations EHER (124,727) 160,187
Translation reserve released to profit or REEMHBRRBEEE
loss on disposal of subsidiaries 1B B 5L 27,273 =
(100,217) 165,197
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEHMEERA - BFiE (76,395) 214,700
Total comprehensive income for the year FEPEBALE 36,277 272,449
Total comprehensive income for the year EiEEE2 TR EE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRAREBA 46,734 247,835
Non-controlling interests IS (10,457) 24,614
36,277 272,449
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=IAN
AR B

TSR LR

As at 31 December 2018 FA2018F12A31H

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
Wit F#T FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R E 14 857,382 659,912
Investment properties HEYE 15 1,319,475 1,365,656
Prepaid lease payments TR & HIE 16 499,834 542 292
Intangible assets | AR 17 199,450 146,417
Interests in joint ventures REDE R 18 95,962 167,058
Interest in an associate R—EE et ¥ 2 s 19 = =
Loan to an associate ERT—MEBE 19 = 5,996
Goodwill EE 20 147,501 33,796
Deferred tax assets RIET B A= 29 9,623 10,349
Club debenture SHES 1,876 1,876
Restricted bank deposits SRR HISRITE R 26(A) 34,814 23,597
Statutory deposits for financial services business CRRTEEENEE TR 200 200
3,166,117 2,957,149
Current assets nEEE
Inventories & 21 85,380 61,122
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fEWBR K 22 513,594 146,694
Amounts due from joint ventures WA & EFIE 18 8,170 =
Amount due from an associate JiE U — e Bt (> 2 FROR 19 35,343 27,912
Advances to customers in margin financing RETRESBERFZ
P 23 144,145 110,858
Loans receivable JE W E SR 24 166,088 237,132
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 16 14,833 14,171
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEIABZNE R
BE 25 72,453 9,118
Restricted bank deposit SR HRITER 26(A) - 1,632
Bank balances and cash - held on RITAER LR
behalf of customers -REFHEE 26(B) 15,761 24,008
Bank balances and cash RITER IR 26(C) 131,590 137,326
1,187,357 769,973
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale DHERBELERENEE 27 = 507,319
1,187,357 1,277,292
Current liabilities mENERE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 28 231,908 174,361
Amounts due to joint ventures & E R EFIR 18 - 4,825
Amount due to a related party JE A — el B ESE 8 A1k 38 32 10,541 -
Finance lease payables ERRMERE 31 120 =
Bank borrowings RITER 30 307,026 732,063
Bank overdrafts BITEX 6,461 -
Tax payable FERFRIR 30,248 14,844
586,304 926,093
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale P iEAZFELEMARIEE 27 - 132,302
586,304 1,058,395
Net current assets MEEAESFE 601,053 218,897
Total assets less current liabilities EERBERRAE 3,767,170 3,176,046
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #2 & 81 #& AR 5 3%

As at 31 December 2018 2018412 831H

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
Vi3 F#T FHET

Non-current liabilities kREBAR ‘
Loan from non-controlling interests REFFEREZER 46 9,249 600
Finance lease payables ENRERE 31 531 =
Bank borrowings RITER 30 974,028 424,864
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIBEE 29 169,495 153,219
1,153,303 578,683
Net Assets BEFE 2,613,867 2,597,363

Equity xR

Share capital N 33 297,403 295,581
Reserves 1 36 2,273,425 2,248,286
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company RREEB AEHER 2,570,828 2,543,867
Non-controlling interests FEPER I 46 43,039 53,496
Total Equity Bt 2,613,867 2,597,363

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 298 were BN EOLEF298H Mir & M IE K TV AR A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 ZF2MN2019F3 158 #HtZ M= 1% - I /i

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: TIEERKREE:

Cheng Tun Nei
BER

Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqwty

—II— N\ 7

N

/ ~ II\I:I/)\

HH)R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RAREA AE
Properties Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share  revaluation options  Translation ~ Statutory ~ Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
MEEL BEikE FER
A EfRH  ROEE [ FE EXRE ZcRE BEEAN it E @5
HKD'000  HKD'000O ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000O ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TET THT THET TAT TAT TAT TAT FEL FEL FET FET
(Note 33)  (Note 36) ~ (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36) (Note 46)
(H#33)  (W:t36)  (Hi#36)  (Wiztse)  (Wi236)  (Wiitse)  (Hiz236)  (Hi##36) (Hiit46)
At 1 January 2017 201741718 270575 523213 942,075 170,453 - (117,628) 2479 386,650 2,177,817 (10,507) 2,167,310
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - - - - 41018 41018 16731 57,749
Surplus arising on revaluation #IEER-AES 2 BS
of properties - - - 61,819 - - - - 61,819 - 61,819
Deferred tax liability arising 1 £ EEMESLZ
on revaluation of properties  EEFHBEE - - - (12316) - - - - (12316) - (1231)
Share of other comprehensive 1E& 4 MNEE L
income of joint ventures Z2EKA - - - - - 5,010 - - 5,010 - 5,010
Exchange differences arising &85V £7%
on translation of foreign FESMELZRE
operations - - - - - 152,304 - - 152,304 7,883 160,187
Other comprehensive income  FE £ 2EHRA
for the year - - - 49,503 - 157314 - - 206817 7883 214,700
Total comprehensive income & [€ 2 ER A #%
for the year - - - 49,503 - 157314 - 41018 247835 24614 272449
Capital contribution from FHERERERTA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 8,523 8,523
Share-based payments PARRR 2 A+ - - - - 1,102 - - - 1,102 - 1,102
Exercise of warrants (Note 35) 11{E RRIER
(H135) 6 - 52 - - - - - 58 - 58
Acquisition of non-controlling B8 FEHE R 25
interests 25,000 - 114,633 - - (11,346) - - 128287 30,866 159,153
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRE (Hi##12) = = = = = = - (11,232)  (11,232) = (11,232)
At 31 December 2017 RW2017412A31H 295,581 523213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2479 416436 2,543,867 5349% 2,597,363
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 128318 It F &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATHANEL
Properties Share Non-
Share Contributed Share revaluation options Translation  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WRER  BRE FiER

k% HARHE ROEE 1] i ERRE AERGE BER @t i st
HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
T&x FEx FTEx TEx FTEx TEx  TiEx  TEx  TER 0 TER 0 TER

(Note 33)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36) (Note 46)
(Ha233) (Kia236) (K#36) (Mfet36) (BiaE36) (Ki36) (Ki#36) (HifaE36) (Kyit46)

At 1 January 2018 as 12018%1A18

originally presented NHET 295,581 523,213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2,479 416,436 2,543,867 53,496 2,597,363
Initial application of BAERBEHERE

HKFRS 9 (Note 2) HRISE0% (Hr##2) - - - - - - - (20813) (20,813) - (20813)
Adjusted balance as at #2018 1R 18 &6

1 January 2018 giE 295,581 523,213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2,479 395,623 2,523,054 53,496 2,576,550
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiF/ (BE) - - - - - - - 118213 118213 (5,541) 112,672
Surplus arising on revaluation ¥1% & fEFiE 4 2 &R

of properties - - - 29,150 - - - - 29,150 - 29,150
Deferred tax liability arising 1% EfFiE4E ZBE

on revaluation of HEERE

properties - - - (5,328) - - - - (5,328) - (5,328)
Share of other comprehensive 154 & &% E

income of joint ventures 2EEA - - - - - (2,763) - - (2,763) - (2,763)
Exchange differences arising R EE EHMEEM

on translation of foreign ERER

operations - - - - - (119,811) - - (119,811) (4,916) (124,727)
Translation reserve released 1At & B2\ SIRS

to profit or loss on FREGZERRE

disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - 27,273 - - 27,273 - 27,273
Other comprehensive income EEE 2T

for the year - - - 23,822 - (95,301) - - (71,479) (4,916)  (76,395)
Total comprehensive income &2 HUA 858

for the year - - - 23,822 - (95,301) - 118,213 46,734 (10,457) 36,277
Share-based payments VAR 3 £ - - - - 328 - - - 328 = 328
Exercise of share options  {T{ERERRHE (Az234)

(Note 34) 1,500 - 11,824 - (1,024) - - - 12,300 - 12,300
Lapse of share options TR R (Mit34)

(Note 34) = - - - (406) - - 406 - - -
Exercise of warrants friER s

(Note 35) (Hit35) 322 - 2,900 - - - - - 3,222 - 3,222

Transfer from statutory HRATHE
reserve - - - - - (2,479) 2,479 - - -
Dividend paid (Note 12) ERRE (H##12) - - - - - - - (14,8100 (14,810 - (14,810

At 31 December 2018 12018%12A31H 297,403 523,213 1,071,484 243,778 - (66,961) - 501911 2570828 43,039 2,613,867
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e )

A2
stz /)L

=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
K FH#ET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEETBHZHERE
Profit before income tax expense b P15 B 2 AT 2 4 A 162,706 116,700
Adjustments for: R

Interest income FE WA (2,778) (3,550)

Finance costs & B AR 33,933 41,965

Share of results of joint ventures HRECEER (19,955) (19,407)

Share of result of an associate B E b EEE 2,326 -

Fair value gain on re-measurement of BN ER —SE b ERER

equity in a joint venture HAFEERE (5,363) -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERRETE 34,751 33,192

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE {470 & A 55 14,752 13,002

Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 3,596 =

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE L&A

equipment, net (W) /B8 FE (290) 945

Write off of property, plant and equipment M - BB K EM R 830 -

Gain on disposal of investment properties HERE W (31,660) =

Increase in fair value of investment properties BEMEN AT EEEM (112,267) (197,663)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A RIS 47 (117,764) (1,204)

Fair value loss on financial assets BRAFEIIAEZNE R

at fair value through profit or loss BEMNATFEES 2,443 3,640

Bad debts written off B R 331 =

Impairment loss on financial assets CREEREER 12,615 11,897

Reversal of provision for redundancy costs ENERRERD - (2,000)

Write off of obsolete inventories REFEME 13 1,845

Provision/(reversal) of allowance for inventories, net ~ F & HEEE / (B@E) -

R 838 (13,608)

Share-based payments PARR 2 3% +F 328 1,102
Operating cash flows before movements in KEBSEERMLE

working capital WER (20,615) (13,144)
Increase in inventories HFEEN (22,889) (28,485)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E fth JiE Ut BR FR3E A0 (26,921) (9,360)
(Increase)/decrease in advances to customers REFRESBERFZ

in margin financing ]I (Em) SEd (33,287) 8,798
Decrease in loans receivable U E TR 49,244 88,678
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRAFESABRH

through profit or loss CRVEEEM (65,778) (2,044)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances and cash RITRBRERE RS/

— held on behalf of customers (#Em) —REFEE 8,247 (1,329)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E A FE A BR ZOE AN 39,851 25,484
Cash (used in)/generated from operations RELEER(FMA),/

EENRS (72,148) 68,598
Overseas tax paid B8N A (7,529) (3,368)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENBBMNEH (3,560) (53)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities KREEEFH(FA)

EENREFHE (83,237) 65,177
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %2 8 IR &R E K
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
Kz FHT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REREEEZRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WESHT B A B
(MBFEZHE) 48 (54,673) (84,467)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEKBAF
(H&RmEEZRE) 47 250,505 2,993
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ Ux B& FE Ak #E 25 B 5% 46 - (15,300)
(Advances to)/repayment from joint ventures (Rt F) EESE
EEBERL (12,595) 53,941
Dividends received from joint ventures SEPEREHRE 2,175 =
Advance to an associate RET—EHE D ERR (11,157) (27,912)
Advances from non-controlling shareholders R B FEIERE TR 2 B = 2268
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BHER&E (27,201) (9,225)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE &R ERE
plant and equipment 904 204
Additions to construction in progress and buildings ~ FEE TR FZ &Y Iz (196,410) -
Consideration paid for acquiring land-use rights WE T FRESMHRE - (310,332)
Proceed from refundable deposit for TBNHEEFEN A RER S
prepaid lease payments B FUE 13,585 =
Consideration paid for refundable deposit on BERTIREARE X NH
construction in progress RE (34,187) -
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (13,316)
Proceed from disposal of investment properties HEREWEWE 52,360 =
Increase in restricted bank deposits X BR HISR 1T 17 2L AN (9,849) (20,000)
Interest received B U FI 2 2,759 3,550
Net cash used in investing activities AR EEESHREFHE (23,784) (417,596)
Cash flow from financing activities KEREEBHZHSRE 49
Proceeds from issue of new shares under R ERETE
share option scheme BATHIR O 2 Wiz 12,300 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon BRIEIT R REEET
exercise of warrants D 2 Was 3,222 42
Principal elements of finance lease payments MEMERENEEMY
=5 651 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings BT ER 639,041 455,706
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEFER (516,141) (245,412)
Advance from a related party RE—BEEATER 10,541 =
Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders REFERBREEE - 8,523
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEBERZER 8,649 -
Dividend paid BERRE (14,810) (11,232)
Interest paid BRFIE (31,724) (40,599)
Net cash from financing activities RERMEESREFE 111,729 167,028
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #Zr 8 IR &R E R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

2018 2017
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
K FH#ET FHBT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 384 MIB&EBWILN,
R ) %5 4,708 (185,391)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year F#3 4 KR & SEDY 49 137,326 328,468
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERZEHRE &
on cash and cash equivalents ReEBMeE (16,905) (5,751)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FHRIBE RIS EEY
represented by bank balances BURITHE B IR K
and cash and bank overdrafts BITEL 49 125,129 137,326
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERB&EBEYERZ
cash equivalents: P
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBR LB S 131,590 137,326
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX (6,461) -
125,129 137,326
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 201841231 H [t F &

o4

GENERAL INFORMATION

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 24 November 1993 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Main Board”) since 1 March 1995. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is 10th Floor, Island Place Tower,
510 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are mainly consist of: (i) retailing
and provision of sourcing services for branded apparel,
swimwear and accessories, and the newly acquired sourcing,
manufacturing and trading of health supplement products
through business combinations; (ii) development and
management of “PONY” trademarks; (iii) property investment
and holding; (iv) management and operation of outlet malls;
and (v) provision of financial services (including securities
brokerage, margin financing, money lending, underwriting
and placing of listed securities and financial consultancy
services); and (vi) operation of duty free shop.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal

subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has adopted the following new standards,
amendments and interpretation to existing standards,
which are relevant to the Group’s accounting policies
for the first time presented on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Annual Improvements to ~ Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
HKFRSs 2014-2016 in Associates and Joint Ventures
Cycle

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (see 2(A)A below) and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (see note
2(A)B below) have been summarised below. The
other new or revised HKFRSs that are effective from 1
January 2018 had no material impact on the Group's
accounting policies and amounts presented on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

66

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“HKAS 39”") for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects
of the accounting for financial instruments:
(1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment; and (3) hedge accounting.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018 has resulted in changes
of the Group’s accounting policies and
consolidated financial statements.

The following tables summarised the
impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on the
opening balance of retained profits as of 1
January 2018:

2. RNEENBREED (F)

A BEHMBREERRISEH
IR ([EEMBHRERRE

1)

(1)

THITAZSERGE
w78 B 1% 5 2 A B O5R
R2018F1A1H =k 2 &
Fa 2 F [ BRI &S
SR ERIEIE (ST
B BERARAE] A6
BITAESFEE2B=(E
FE:(DPERTE: (2)
BERQH PETRE -
B2018F1 A1 BREMAE
7B T 3RS 2RI O B
BASE S BRRNE
B4R A R ERR IS RR IER
meELEES-

AT RINBER B BER
& % Bl 595 $2018F 1 A
1B IR R E

HKD’000
FHETT
Retained profits as at 31 December 2017 M2017412 A31 H B 1754 A 416,436
Increase in expected credit losses (“ECLs”") B 5 & Ho A & W AR R %
in trade and other receivables and loans RN E RIEHEEE RSB N
receivable (Note 2(A)A(ii) below) ( BB FE2(A)ACGH) ) (20,813)
Adjusted retained profits as at $2018%1A1HH
1 January 2018 ERERERT 395,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it eliminates
the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held to maturity
financial assets, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of
HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.

2. FPNEENBREED (F)

A BEHMBREERFG LM
IR ([BEEHBHRERRE
st1) (&)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

08

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“HKFRS 15")), an entity shall, at initial
recognition, measure a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised cost”);
(i) financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”);
or (i) FVTPL (as defined in above). The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria:
(i) the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (ii) its
contractual cash flow characteristics (the
“solely payments of principal and interest”
criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”).
Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is
no longer required to be separated from
a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole
for the classification.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions are met and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

° it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

2. FPNEENBREED (F)

A BEHMBREERFG LM
IR ([BEEHBHRERRE
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(i)

Mo REERBHEUT
RE 4 + B3 A I AR
AT EEH AR B
PR

ZEMEERE K
BBEFAELREE
WHREHRSRE
ZEBEAAR
B R

ZEMEEZAN
AR E B B E
ERERE - MzH
TRENEEN
A R SIRAE-

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REEMBHREEL (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) A  BEHBHEELEITRLE
(Continued) TR ([EEHFHEZELE
awl) (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () ZBTAZSERIE
instruments (Continued) (%)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI MEHIZE RS AT

if it meets both of the following conditions MIE R - B IEIR E %

and it has not been designated as at AEEBEY ABE  BR

FVTPL: NEEEIIAEMEERK

AGTE:

e it is held within a business model e ZEBEBRERERE
whose objective is to achieved by BRWEE NIRE
both collecting contractual cash flows mMEREESME
and selling financial assets; and EZEBEXANF

g8k

e the contractual terms of the financial s ReMEBEEZAYN
asset give rise on specified dates B E B HBE
to cash flows that meet the SPPI AR ERE - MR
criterion. EREFEGEIN

s RF ST
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial
assets not classified at amortised cost or
FVOCI as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise. As at 31 December
2017 and 2018, the Group did not
designate or de-designate any financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

72

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
The following accounting policies would be
applied to the Group'’s financial assets as
follows:

FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

Amortised  Financial assets at amortised cost are

cost subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS
39 and the new measurement categories
under HKFRS 9 for each class of the
Group’s financial assets as at 1 January

RNEEMBREER ()

A BEHMBREERRISEH
IR ([EEHBHREEREI
st1) (&)

) ERMTAZIBER;E

(i)

(%)

TERBAMR2018F1A1H
AEEEBETHEERE
ARG ERIFE3RZ R
Bt EERI RBEERBM
15 ¥R &5 2RI SB95% 2 #rat

2018: Rl
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
as at as at
1 January 1 January
Original classification New classification 2018 under 2018 under
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
RESHEET RESHEHB
RISE395%  MEERIFE
#20185 #20185
RIREEE R REEEMBRE 1A1E8Z 1A18Z
SREE EIRZEHER ERIFSRZHER ARE{E ARE{E
HKD'000 HKD'000
TAT THAT
Trading securities Held-for-trading FVTPL 9,118 9118
EEZEH RHIEEE AFBEIIARR
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 114,556 110,458*
B 5 R E i U R B R ERER R BN
Amount due from an associate Loans and receivables Amortised cost 27912 27912
JE U — & (A ERREYEER BHRA
Advances to customers Loans and receivables Amortised cost 110,858 110,858
in margin financing
RETRESCBERTPZ2BN  BEARERER BN
Loans receivable Loans and receivables Amortised cost 237,132 220,417*
FEME R B R ER R B A
Restricted bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 25,229 25,229
Z IR #IRITER B3R FE AR FR BHRA
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables Amortised cost 161,334 161,334
FITHBRRE S R R W BN

*

Net of expected credit loss balances as at

1 January 2018 upon the initial adoption of

HKFRS 9

* HBRR ERRANE B
¥ 5 4 Bl E£95% 1% 702018
FIAIEMERERER

R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

74

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group's impairment model by replacing
the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“expected credit losses (“ECLs”) model”.
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise
ECLs for trade receivables and financial
assets at amortised cost earlier than
HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current financial year.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following basis:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has measured loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

70

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, the ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. The 12-months ECLs is the portion
of the lifetime ECLs that results from
default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the loss allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &2 &

Bt 75 3R 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due. The
following information is also taken into
account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal
and/or interest on their contractually
due dates;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial asset's
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological,
or legal environment that have a

market, economic

significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

73

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group rebutted the presumption of
default under ECL model mainly for trade
and other receivables, loans receivable,
advances to customers in margin
financing, loans to an associate, amounts
due from joint ventures and an associate
over 90 days past due based on the good
repayment records for those customers
and continuous business with the Group.
For trade receivables are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix
based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking estimate.
For other financial assets are assessed
individually based on their repayment
record, financial background and forward-
looking estimate. The Group considers a
financial asset to be credit-impaired when:
(1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising securities collateral, if any is held;
or (2) the financial asset is more than 180
days past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) it has a low risk of default; (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

30

A.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECLs model

(a)

Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECLs which
adopts a lifetime ECLs for all
trade receivables. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past
due mainly towards the retailing
and sourcing and financial services
segments, with the adjustments of
forward looking macroeconomic
data specifically to the market they
operate as the outstanding balances
are arise from these two segments in
majority.

The increase in loss allowances
for trade receivables upon the
transition to HKFRS 9 as at 1
January 2018 was approximately
HKD4,098,000. The loss allowances
further increased by approximately
HKD1,688,000 for trade receivables
during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECLs model (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of loans receivable and
advances to customers in margin
financing

Loss allowances for advances to
customers in margin financing are
measured on 12-months ECL basis
and there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Management considers
that the ECL is immaterial.

For loans receivable, management
observed that some of the balances
have been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition
and the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. As at 1 January 2018, the
additional loss allowances of
approximately HKD16,715,000
had been recognised against the
retained profits. The provision
of loss allowances decreased by
approximately HKD25,915,000
during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

32

(CONTINUED)

A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECLs model (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of amounts due from
joint ventures, loan to an associate,
amount due from an associate and
other receivables

For the balances of amounts due
from joint ventures, loan to an
associate, amount due from an
associate and other receivables,
there was no changes in loss
allowances upon the transition of
HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018
as the Group assessed that the
expected credit loss for these
balances was immaterial after taken
into account of historical loss rates
of each category of receivables
and financial background of each
counterparty with the adjustment
of forward-looking macroeconomic
data. However, for the balances of
loan to an associate and amount due
from an associate, loss allowances
totalling HKD5,431,000 was
recognised during the year ended
31 December 2018 due to the loss-
making situation of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
have any hedging relationships.

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS
9 was generally adopted without restating
the comparative information. The
reclassification and the adjustments arising
from the new ECLs rules are therefore not
reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1
January 2018. This means that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained profits as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 does not reflect the requirements of
HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REEMBHREEL (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)
A.  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) A  BEHBHEELEITRLE
(Continued) TR ([EEHFHEZELE
awl) (&)
(iv)  Transition (Continued) (iv) #BE (&)

The following assessments have been LA A TR 5 & 7 B 75

made on the basis of the facts and R4 X ZE% BN FE A

circumstances that existed at the date of BE([BXEABH])

initial application of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA”): FEZEERBEAME

fi ¢

e the determination of the business e EXNACoREE
model within which a financial asset ZEBEN R
is held; and

e the designation and revocation of o  EENMBUHAIE
previous designations of certain EaTEATFEE
financial assets and financial HAEBZFTENS
liabilities as measured at FVTPL MEERSHA

f&eo

If any investment in a debt investment had N ERIZE 2 F AR E

a low credit risk at the DIA, then the Group E%)T\FFH HEIEBEKE

has assumed that the credit risk on the 2Bz - RIS [ R 5% 5%

asset had not increased significantly since QEZEE S=EE= PN

its initial recognition. TR tjrﬂﬁkfpai“ﬂu °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEHEVBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, HKAS 18 “Revenue and related
interpretations”. HKFRS 15 has established a
five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.

HKFRS 15 applies to the contracts with
customers for the following transactions arise
from the Group:

Sale of goods;

- Commission income from concessionaire
sales;

- Royalty income;

- Brokerage commission;

- Underwriting and placing income;

- Financial consultancy income; and

- Other services income
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

36

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

Rental income and interest income will continue
to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 17
“Leases” and HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening balance of retained profits (or
other components in equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group can elect to
apply the standard using the full retrospective
method with certain practical expedients that
most of the contracts begin and end within
the same annual reporting period and/or
completed at the beginning of the earliest period
presented. For completed contracts that have
variable consideration, the Group had used the
transaction price at the date when the contract
was completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEHEVBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 introduces a five-steps model when
recognising revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations

in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when applying
each step of the model to contracts with their
customers.

Based on the assessment of the Group, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018 has
resulted in changes of accounting policies of
the Group, however, it does not have significant
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognition of the Group, and no adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018 has been made. However, additional
disclosures have been presented in Note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as a result of adoption
of HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated
financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Leases!

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Definition of Material*

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements’

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes!

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs?
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REEMBHREEL (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 R20194F1 A 1H 35,2 1% 6 19 F /& BT
2 i’fféfﬂve for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 }J’%‘gﬁ HHj5t.2 1% [ 16 19 F [Z AR 4 5%
determined
3 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 3 FUFE HE 8202091 A1H 3.2 # F 15
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the #) B EFZ RT3 2 1 B R & v
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 A
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RO020 1 A1H 2.2 # [ 15 89 F [Z 7 AT
2020 SEHL
HKFRS 16 - Leases EEUBHEEREI6H-HE
HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will BN BREENFISRBENE
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related HEGEARESSFT2ERIZE175 [
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting & RABEZERE A5 A B —FHEA
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and SETEEER  WRTEAB AR AT
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 HiB12E A 2 AEHERAEENRE
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. & BRIFREEERRKEEBEEEAE
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is generally Alime LEEMmM S IRIBEDBVIERE
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing ARIE165;  AMABEREREE
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a E(RFERARBREEEN®ER) K
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease HEaE (XNHEERENEE) °
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise At A AEEREREEENTE
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on FHEEEEMNE THHAEEEZR
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments CERDEAERSID RFIEI S
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an WRBEERERKNES BN F 5
interest portion and presents them in the statement of BEEREEBEVSIZBEELE
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease SEC-sfE2eE AR REAEN T
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. MeFEBASEE EBITERE
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease REERESNITE SRR RS
payments and also includes payments to be made in BT R ERERAAEL 2
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to et 2 REE L FHEBERERR
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise B EAFI/IRoBERKERE
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting ZHEREBASHEERET NBEED
treatment is significantly different from the lessee [E] °

accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

90

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was a lessor
and lessee under a number of leasing arrangements.
In respect of those arrangements in which the Group
was a lessee, a preliminary assessment indicates that
the arrangements will continue to meet the definition
of leases under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset or other asset as
appropriate and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.
In addition, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEHEVBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC) Int23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the
entity shall determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together based
on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material
to make it easier for entities to make materially
judgements. The definition of material, an important
accounting concept in HKFRS Standards, helps entities
decide whether information should be included in their
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

r

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 28

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments improve the definition of a business.
The amended definition emphasises that the output
of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused on
returns in the form of dividends, lower costs or other
economic benefits to investors and others. In addition
to amend the wordings of the definition, the Board
has provided supplementary guidance. Distinguishing
between a business and a group of assets is important
because an acquirer recognises goodwill only when
acquiring a business.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

RNEEMBREER (5])

EEEERF28SHIIETE
ZIEFT AR BBE BV REEAEI
BEARBECRAAELENRY
s ([REEDR] BN S0
ZRECEFREN D) AR
EBRABMBREEAFIRENER
SRR F28FRER BRI AR
ZERED -

BB & EREITBIIEETE —
B EE
REFERRNBICEBHER - % &(E
FIMERBRBAEBHNELRZAZTLIR
HrEmE R mEMERIEER
KREHRHEMATHRBE  BIEK
AN Bl H Ath 4878 ) 25 72 3 B [ R 05 [ e
BRIEFIEEMREIN EFSCREM
e sl - By —HERFREEHER
EHER ZERWELTENKERS
R A o

BB & BRI EITIIIEETE —
REEHEG A5

RZEFEBRIANBR M AFEMRE
AEAMENENENEREENR
BHEKRASEAFEEIARME
mi st E MR A FEEIIAR

S o

Bt
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNEHEVBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or BB IR EEREIORREEES

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business, the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business, the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations is expected to
be in the period of initial application, and except for
the assessment has been made to HKFRS 16, the
directors of the Company are not yet in a position
to quantify the effects on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

94

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies
that when a joint operator of a business obtains control
over a joint operation, this is a business combination
achieved in stages and the previously held equity
interest should therefore be re-measured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify
that when a party that participates in, but does not
have joint control of, a joint operation which is a
business and subsequently obtains joint control of
the joint operation, the previously held equity interest
should not be re-measured to its acquisition date fair
value.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REEMBHREEL (&)

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle BB & ER2015FF2017F
- Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes BRI FEXE - FEESTEAFEI2

AV LA S

The amendments issued under the annual RE R BCEBIZFEMIZFETA
improvements process make small, non-urgent SR IRy Q7 1 BA A 9 2% T8 28 Al H (AR
changes to standards where they are currently unclear. ERENEs) 252D BREEE
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify BEFtERE 125 aEE] - HERR
that all income tax consequences of dividends are BEWFTEFTEHi& REE 4 0] 5K iR
recognised consistently with the transactions that FWZ SN —B T AR EE &
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or fib 2 E UGS E B R S A TR o

loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle BB & ER2015FF2017F
- Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs BRI FENE - FEESTEEFE23
ot [ &=L A | B91ET R

The amendments issued under the annual RE R BCERIEFEMOZZETA
improvements process make small, non-urgent SR IR I 1 BA A 9 2% TR 28 Al H (AR
changes to standards where they are currently unclear. EREYNEs) 252D BREEE
They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies BEFtERE23RMEE]  HERA
that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying NEEEREEMEFIELAER
asset which remains outstanding after the related R & EREE R BIERERRSK
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale HEITHERDNAES  QZETEK
would become part of the funds an entity borrows REB—RFEESH —HBoLA L
generally and therefore included in the general pool. ATA—MREEMNA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

o5

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
leasehold land and buildings, buildings, investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the Group’s
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHEE

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides an
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the losses is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at fair
value on the acquisition date. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at fair value on the acquisition date and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
the present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

98

(CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value on the acquisition
date. Subsequent adjustments to the consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value on the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amounts
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists, the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

° The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of other parties who hold
voting rights;

° Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and

° Historic patterns in voting attendance

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at costs less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

100

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net asset
including goodwill.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policy decisions.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at costs and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless the Group has incurred legal or constructure
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying amount of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred, they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interest in an associate is carried at cost less
impairment loss. The result of the associate is
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable during the year.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has both rights
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
joint arrangement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

492,

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° the structure of the joint arrangement;

° the legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° the contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in
the same manner as interest in an associate (i.e. using
the equity method — see Note 4(C) to the consolidated
financial statements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in a joint venture. Where
there is an objective evidence that the investment in a
joint venture has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. The results of the
joint ventures are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable during
the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregation of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree on the acquisition date, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date
immediately after the re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses,
if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating units that are expected
to be benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount against its
recoverable amount (see Note 4(S) to the consolidated
financial statements), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising from an acquisition during a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
sales related taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group'’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right for payment of performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at the contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods directly to customers
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of goods have been passed to customers, which
is primarily upon the goods are delivered and
accepted by customers. There is generally one
performance obligation for sales of goods. For
goods sold to wholesale customers, payment
terms are usually ranged from 30 to 60 days.
For goods sold to retail customers, payment is
normally due immediately when the customers
purchase goods. The invoice amounts are usually
net of sales related taxes. Contract generally
provides no right of return, sales discount
or volume rebate that give rise to variable
consideration.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Financial consultancy income

Revenue from the provision of financial
consultancy services is recognised over time
as customers simultaneously receive and
consume benefits when the Group performs the
consultancy services. The services are generally
charged at a fixed monthly fee. Invoices for such
services are issued on a monthly basis and are
usually payable ranged from 30 to 60 days.

Commission income from concessionaire sales
Commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised over time when the underlying
services are provided to the relevant shops
located in the outlet malls based on certain
commission rate of revenue generated from the
shops in accordance with the agreed terms of
the contracts. No minimum guarantee income is
required for such concessionaire sales. Invoices
are issued on a monthly basis and are usually
payable ranged from 30 to 60 days.

Royalty income

Royalty income represents licence fee for rights
to access the Group’s intellectual property,
i.e. manufacture, sale and distribution of the
“PONY” branded products in the licensed
territories. Most of the agreements include
minimum royalty guarantee and a sales-
based royalty. Management considers that the
intellectual property is significantly affected by
the Group’s activities, therefore, the minimum
royalty guarantee element is recognised over
time rateably over the licence term. Any
additional sales-based royalty in excess of the
guaranteed minimum would be subject to the
royalty exception and recognised in the period
accordingly when the usage occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vif)

(Vifi)

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease terms, except for the contingent
rental income which is recognised when it arises.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a timely basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and calculated at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Brokerage commission

Service income from brokerage commission,
net of commission income waived for certain
customers, is recognised on a trade date basis at
a point in time when the relevant transactions are
executed in accordance with the agreed terms
of the account opening agreements. Invoices
are issued on a monthly basis and are usually
payable within 30 days.

Underwriting and placing income

Service income from underwriting and placing
of listed securities are recognised at a point in
time in accordance with the agreed terms of the
relevant underwriting and placing agreements or
deal mandate when the relevant significant acts
have been completed. Invoice are issued when
those acts are completed and are usually payable
within 60 days.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

108

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)
(ix)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's
right to receive the dividend is established.

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration
received or receivable, which is net of estimated
customer returns, discounts and sales related taxes,
and represents amounts receivable for goods or
services provided in the normal course of business.

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on
transfers of risks and rewards of ownership,
which is at the time that goods are delivered and
title has been passed.

(i) Financial consultancy income
Service income is recognised when the relevant
services are provided.

(i) Commission income from concessionaire sales
Commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised when the services on which the
commissions earned are provided to the relevant
shops located in the outlet malls in accordance
with the agreed terms. No minimum guarantee
income is required for such concessarie sales.

(iv)  Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the relevant agreements,
which is in general on a straight-line basis over
the contract periods of the agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vif)

(Viii)

(ix)

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease terms, except for the contingent
rental income which is recognised when it arises.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a timely basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and calculated at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Brokerage commission

Service income from brokerage commission,
net of commission income waived for certain
customers, is recognised on a trade date basis
when the relevant transactions are executed in
accordance with the agreed terms of the account
opening agreements.

Underwriting and placing income

Service income from underwriting and placing
of listed securities are recognised at a point in
time in accordance with the agreed terms of the
relevant underwriting and placing agreements or
deal mandate when the relevant significant acts
have been completed.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's
right to receive the dividend is established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

gi®

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at revaluation amounts less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period. Increases in value arising on
revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of “properties revaluation reserve”. Decreases in
value arising on revaluation are first offset against
increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are recognised in profit or loss
up to the amount previously charged and thereafter to
the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its

purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost or revaluation amounts, net of
expected residual value, over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The below items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method, their annual depreciation rates
are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings in Shorter of useful lives and
Hong Kong and the PRC
Buildings Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term

the remaining lease term
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term

Plant and machinery 9% - 45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 20%
Motor vehicles 16% - 20%
Vessel 10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its usage has changed
as evidenced by the end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceed and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

Asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over

its expected useful life on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the relevant lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds property interests under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
classifies and accounts for these property interests as
investment properties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

114

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value models, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date and
their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that
time. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its usage has changed
as evidenced by the commencement of owner-
occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss for the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Asset held under a finance lease is initially recognised
as asset at its fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments
are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period
of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a
constant proportion of the lease liability. The capital
element reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

BHE G N A R R AR
DEBMOHRERTARAREES
WoBERREHEE -AAEMEES
WO BREEHE -

FEEEBHBEA
REHENESRATIRBEBEES
HABERENBRPHER - NER L
RHREHEREENT P ERKA
TTMAHEEENREE TRHEE
FHABERRER /A -

FEEEBRBEA
REBEHERBANEENTERF
BEIFREHEFRARE (HEELR
) ERREE - HEBEERESE
BE-HEFRBRREARMES -
ME O RERARNERRIOR - UG
SR EN—EEE A7 G
B BARFDAMBRAERHEANLS
84 o

REHER T RNESREIAE
REE A MER AR BMS
BROMEERREAEREAETARE
1 HEEEMNKE RSB EOERE
ARRIN - REHEMEENHAES
HEELEHNERMAHER-

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the relevant lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that is classified and accounted for as an
investment property under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses; whereas,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated impairment
losses.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives,
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives and recognised in profit or
loss as follows.
Customer relationship 15 years
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

For the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are the foreign trademarks which have been
granted for licensing periods ranged from 7 to
15 years by the relevant government agencies,
the rights to manufacture, market, distribute and
sell health supplement products under certain
trademarks in Hong Kong, with the option of
renewal when the periods expired, and trading
rights granted by the Hong Kong Exchange and
Clearing Limited, which allows the Group to trade
securities on or through The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. Both trademarks and trading
rights can be renewed indefinitely at little or no
cost to the Group and are expected to generate
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. The
Group intends to renew both of the trademarks
and trading rights indefinitely given by evidence
to support its ability. As a result, they are treated
as having indefinite useful lives.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

g

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets (Continued)

The useful lives are reviewed at the end of
reporting period to determine whether the
indefinite useful life assessments continue to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to definite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested
for impairment when there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible
assets are tested for impairment by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see Note 4(S) to the consolidated
financial statements).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be
increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have
resulted had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions entered into by these
group entities in currencies other than the currency
of the primary economic environment in which they
operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the prevailing exchange rates when the transactions
occur. At the end of reporting period, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary assets and liabilities, and on the retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary
asset or liability that forms part of the Company's
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve and will be reclassified from translation reserve
to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except
for exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary assets and liabilities in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

210

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, all assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period, and income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the
exchange rates approximating to those prevailing rates
when the transactions took place are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
the group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary assets and liabilities
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in translation reserve in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss of such disposals. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal
of an associate or a joint arrangement that does not
result in the Group losing a significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

72

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the

cost of those assets until such assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income

earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings

pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Income tax expense for the year represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
income tax expense” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arise from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affect
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

124

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are appropriately expected to apply in
the period of which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Deferred tax (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Club debenture is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all of the costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present locations
and conditions. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated cost necessary to make the sale readily.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2o

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. For a trade receivable without a
significant financing component, it is initially measured
at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and amortised cost. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised or derecognised on the trade date
basis, i.e. the date when the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. A regular way
purchases or sales is purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The following are
the two measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its financial assets:

Amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, amount due from an associate,
advances to customers in margin financing,
loans receivable, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash. These assets are
non-derivative financial assets not quoted in
an active market that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows in a fixed or determinable
manner where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. They arise principally through
the provisions of goods or services to customers
and also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised costs
using the effective interest rate method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on “impairment loss on financial assets”
as defined below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost (Continued)

The effective interest rate method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest income is recognised
on an effective interest basis, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets at FTVPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FTVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt instruments may
be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, except the financial assets at FTVPL. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial asset. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

130

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has measured loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9's simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs.
However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the loss
allowances will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information specific to the debtor
and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The following information is also taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant
determination in a financial asset’s external
or internal credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant
determination in the operating results of
the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the
technical market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either on individual basis
or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based on share credit risk
characteristics such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

32

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under ECL model mainly for trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, advances to
customers in margin financing, loans to an
associate, amounts due from joint ventures and
an associate over 90 days past due based on the
good repayment records for those customers and
continuous business with the Group. Customers
are assessed collectively based on provision
matrix with reference to historical credit loss
experience adjusted by forward looking estimate.
The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising securities collateral, if any is held; or (2)
the financial asset is more than 180 days past
due.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset
is determined to have low credit risk if : (i) it
has a low risk of default; (ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in near term; and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrowers to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowances) of the financial assets. For non
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy of financial assets

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is reasonable and supportable information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account of legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred. Equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

134

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to joint ventures,
amount due to a related party, bank borrowings,
bank overdrafts and finance lease payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss on an effective
interest basis.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments
at the time the guarantee is issued to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because of a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at FVTPL
is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount is determined in
accordance with the ECL model under HKFRS
9; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantee contract is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming
the obligation. Where guarantee in relation
to loans or other payables of associates are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial assets expire or when
the financial assets has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial assets and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

4. FEEFTBR (&)

BH2018%1H1HEEHHEF B &

(%)

(i) HBEERER (B)
MBERAHVNRFEEIR
BEFTABETATAAMNR
B EERBERTABNRZ
BHREREZRERE  IBE
= AEEEMENE=TH
R SEEE - W EbEER
SHMENKBRERSEER
#Ho AR FEEARIET
B UHERRREKRA D -

(iv) #EIEFERR
ETRMEEMNRERSREN
BRRERNEm NEMEED T
BEMEBERRETENH
HEERFIRTT A K I LHERR

o AKESRILERERE

E-RRIEREREER &

EHRREEED KR EWRRE

B E At 2 [ Ut P FERR I

BEA R RS E

BRMNERE RBSNRER -

i

w4

s

mn



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position, if and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Z%: &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

138

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis (i.e. the date when the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset). A
regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place
concerned.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Bt 75 R 2R B =

4. FEEFTBR (&)

HRHE2017F12H31 LM E 518
*

AEBEWERE LM B RS ER
FOW D BETEIILLEKEH -
It PR Y L B 7S B R R R AN
SEBESTHRARK-

TREELREMABRIN —BAEEE
B A% TASKNRXHETOTER
B SRR R HERR o

TREENEBMABBVIZIUARFER
AR MBAETEREENEREA
B (RATFEEFABENEREE
kEBAERRINNEREIERS
AR TR A A HER R A SKIN B £ Bl
EEXEREE (WER)NRTE
B WERATFEEINABEZSH
EEXTHABRNEERREIZINA
BB R e P RERR o

() =HEE
AEBER VT HERERFUE
BEZBNKEREEN R K
SECEREEIBEA/ARAF
BEIABGEZEREENR
ERREWEER - 1B — RS 5
BEEEHNRZA (AAXEE
FwBEIHEEECH) T

RRKITER - —REE hiE
A A R A B T 45 4R 1 2k 18 B
B2 HRAERARZNEED
EHEEEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets include financial assets held
for trading. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods or services to
customers (mainly trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables, (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from joint ventures,
amount due from an associate, advances to
customers in margin financing, loans receivable,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method as described below, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on “impairment loss on financial assets”
as defined below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

140

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

The effect interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments, of which
interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For the financial assets at amortised cost,
objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial liability of the issuer or
counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade and other receivables and loans
receivable, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 60 to 90
days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

142

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, loans receivable and advances
to customers in margin financing, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When there is any of the balance
is considered as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

BRHE2017F12H31H LM E 51
(&)
EHMRAREETA

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)
(i)~ Financial liabilities and equity instruments (iif)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to joint ventures, amount due to a
related party, bank borrowings, bank overdrafts
and finance lease payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

144

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iv)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured of
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share options
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied.
The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

RLAEE REEHBURS ZEMAL
R iERRE  FTUE RS 2 A FEE
D2RERERNRLE R ZAFEE
AE-AHATEERFEBHEER
= ARER - WS N B
RYEMRRIE N FET SR B RS —
HER  HARAERSREHRE
HFB AT AESE  EX5EEH
AR RRBEERRBEREKE B
ZBEBEZRB R -MERE RS
REBREZ ATFEEAERERZZ
—-RENEMANMSRE G
THwRELANAMEHEBIRT BEfF
R - RAFX T EEM 5 RE K
ERBEER AR -

JUTE 57 8 A 18 5T 3 BHE 2 R 3R B A6k
- EERERT AR E 2 BRER
FEEZIBM FRERTHEEREA
FEiE g P HERR o

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

146

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the Group
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
services. The fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is re-measured, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° prepaid lease payments;

° investments/interests in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures (except for those
classified as held for sale (or disposal group) (see
Note 4(W) to consolidated financial statements);
and

o club debenture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see Note 4(E) to the consolidated
financial statements), discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

148

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable to result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when:

° they are available for immediate sale;

° management is committed to a plan to sell;

° it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

° an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

° the asset or disposal group is being marketed at
a reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

° a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of:

° their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

° fair value less costs to disposal.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-
current asset (including those in a disposal group)
are not depreciated. For the deferred tax assets,
financial assets and liabilities (other than investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and
investment properties, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(i) Classification between investment properties

and owner-occupied properties

The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other
assets used and service provided. If an entity
provides ancillary services to the occupants of a
property it holds, an entity treats such a property
as investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (Continued)
Included in carrying amounts of the Group's
prepaid lease payments and buildings as
at 31 December 2018 of approximately
HKD233,197,000 and HKD331,295,000 (2017:
HKD252,519,000 and HKD339,806,000)
were related to the land and building portions
respectively, of an outlet mall in the PRC (the
“Property”). Based on the mode of operation of
the Property, in particular, that income earned
is largely dependent on the performance of the
retail business of the occupants and the Group
has the power to make significant operating and
financing decisions regarding to the operation of
the Property, management is of the opinion that
the Property is in the nature of owner-occupied
properties under the existing use for accounting
pUrposes.

Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to income and other taxes
in a number of tax jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

154

(iii) Deferred tax assets

(iv)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
The Group’s intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are the foreign trademarks which
have been granted for licensing periods from 7
to 15 years by the relevant government agencies,
the rights to manufacture, market, distribute and
sell health supplement products under certain
trademarks in Hong Kong, with the option of
renewal when the period expired, and trading
rights granted by the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, which allows the Group to trade
securities on or through the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. Both trademarks and trading
rights can be renewed indefinitely at little or no
cost to the Group and are expected to generate
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. The
Group intends to renew both of the trademarks
and trading rights indefinitely given by evidence
to support its ability. As a result, they are treated
as having indefinite useful lives.

The useful lives are reviewed at the end of
reporting period to determine whether the
indefinite life assessments continue to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to definite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

v)

Determination of control of subsidiaries, joint
control of joint arrangements and power to
exercise significant influence

Judgement is required to determine when the
Group has control of subsidiaries, joint control
of joint arrangements and power to exercise
significant influence. This require an assessment
of the relevant activities and when the decision in
relation to these activities are under the control
of the Group, require unanimous consent under
the joint arrangements or exercise significant
influence in an investment.

In determining the classification of a joint
arrangement between a joint venture and a joint
operation, evaluation of rights and obligations
arising from such arrangement is required.
Where the Group holds less than 20% of voting
rights in an investment but the Group has the
power to exercise significant influence, such
In the
opposite situation where the Group holds over
20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and the
Group does not exercise significant influence,

investment is treated as an associate.

the investment is classified in a accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Differing conclusions around these judgements
and evaluation, may materially impact how
these businesses are presented in the
consolidated financial statements — under the
full consolidation method, equity method or
proportionate consolidation method.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Do

(vi) Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries.
In determining the functional currencies of
the group entities, judgement is required to
determine the currency that mainly influences
sales prices for goods or services and of the
country whose competitive forces and regulations
mainly determines the sales prices of its goods or
services. The functional currencies of the group
entities are determined based on management’
s assessment of the economic environment
in which the entities operate and the entities’
process of determining sales prices.

(vii) Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition
of subsidiaries qualifies as an acquisition of
business in accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business
Combination” or as an acquisition of assets,
a process which would require exercise of
professional judgement. The directors consider
the substance of the acquisition of subsidiaries
that constitute a business will be accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business
Combination”, and in case the acquisition of
subsidiaries does not constitute a business, it is

classified as an acquisition of assets.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

at the end of reporting period, that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year:

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of interests in joint ventures

The determination of whether interests in joint
ventures are impaired requires an estimation of
the share of present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
investees and the proceeds on ultimate disposal
of the investments, and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. Adequate
impairment loss had been recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amounts exceed the
carrying amount of the interests in joint ventures.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Determining whether goodwill and intangible
assets is impaired requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated respectively. The value-in-use
calculations require the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating units and suitable discount rates
in order to calculate the present values of the
goodwill and intangible assets respectively, as
well as their view based on the past performance
and expectations for the market's development
with reference to specific risk relevant to the
business when determining the growth rates and
discount rates in the underlying forecasts.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

o>

(iii)  Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used
in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs; and

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data)

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(iv)

The Group measures a number of items at fair
value:

° Leasehold land and buildings (Note 14);

° Investment properties (Note 15); and
o Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 25).

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
inventories at the end of reporting date to
determine whether the inventories are carried
at lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
set out in Note 4(P) to the consolidated financial
statements. Management estimates the net
realisable value based on the current market
situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions
would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of
write-down and affect the Group's profit and net
asset value.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
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v)

Trademarks

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired through business combination are
capitalised on the consolidated statement of
financial position. These trademarks are valued
on the acquisition date by using a discounted
cash flow methodology and the directors make
assumptions and estimates regarding to their
future revenue growth, prices, marketing
costs and economic factors in valuing them.
These assumptions reflect the directors’ best
estimates but these estimates involve inherent
uncertainties, which may not be controlled by the
directors.

Upon acquisition, the directors assessed the
economic lives of the trademarks. In arriving
at the conclusion that the trademarks with
indefinite useful lives, the directors considered
the fact that the Group is expected to hold and
support the trademarks for an indefinite period,
through spending on consumer marketing and
promotional support, which are deducted in
arriving at revenue for the “PONY” trademarks
and at minimal costs to renew the rights to
manufacture, market, distribute and sell health
supplement products under certain trademarks
in Hong Kong through a local government
agency. For the “PONY” trademarks are
established over many years and continue
to provide considerable economic benefits.
The directors also considered factors such as
the Group’s ability to continue to protect the
legal rights that arise from these trademarks
indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory,
economic or competitive factors that could
truncate their lives.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBER
BIEZKIE (48)

v) E=E
BREBANBEERGHS
2 AERGAE M BRAERA
BAAL o %S PIE R U B R 5 F
FEESREXETHERRN
RRAEERNESHEEZ AR
BEEHRE B THBEREK
AREEREREL R R A -
ZEBRRRMEE 2 REME
BZEMTPRANETEERA
= MZEREAETISESA
o

PSR - EZHEE A
OB ERET TR o RIEBIE
BEERERAFH Emk - &
£ E B RS B T8 B T E A
MBERNEEEMSREHST
B (HRESE B [PONY
PR EERR) AR
TRRZEEE  REBE BT
BENREKANEENEES
TREETNEE 2 2HEK
HERBEmROENZBER-
[PONY | B1EE KL% F » Wi
B IR A ERAC B 25 - EH IR
7 AN B RE S I AR R HR (R
ZEEEELECEEREN L
4 () AT LA MR 2 2 S 2 4 1
LEE BN GEREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

)

Trademarks (Continued)

A strategic decision to withdraw marketing
support from trademarks or the weakening
trademarks’ appeal through changes in
customer preferences might result in the
directors concluding that the trademarks’ lives
had become finite. Were intangible assets to
be assigned a definite life, a charge would be
recorded that would reduce reported profit
from operations and reduce the value of the
assets reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
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(vi)

Impairment of financial assets at amortised
cost

As explained in Note 2(A)A(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, significant judgements
is required in applying the accounting
requirements by the Group’s management
for measuring the loss allowances of financial
assets at amortised cost, comprise of trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, advances
to customers in margin financing, amounts
due from joint ventures and an associate and
loan to an associate, based on the respective
measurements of risks of default and expected
credit loss rates. The Group’s management use
its judgement in making such measurements
including the credit history, existing market
conditions, qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, and market value of collaterals
if applicable. In order to determine the most
appropriate models in estimating the loss
allowances for each type of financial assets at
amortised cost, significant judgement is required
to relate appropriate key drivers of credit risk as
well as future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each
other. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amount of financial assets at amortised
cost and thus the loss allowance in the period
in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the loss allowances at the end of
reporting period.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision-maker,

being the directors of the Company, for the purpose of

resources allocation and performance assessment focused

specifically on the assessment of operating performance in

each operating unit, which is the basis upon the Group is

organised. Each operating unit is distinguished based on

types of goods or services delivered or provided. Financial

information on segment results, segment assets and liabilities

are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear
and accessories, and newly acquired sourcing,
manufacturing and trading of health supplement
products through business combinations;

Branding — development and management of “PONY”
trademarks to derive revenue from sale of goods and
royalty income;

Property investment and holding — rental income;

Outlet malls — commission income from concessionaire
sales;

Financial services — securities brokerage commission,
interest income from margin financing and money
lending, underwriting and placing income and financial
consultancy income; and

Duty free — sale of goods.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. SEREH (4F)
(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) EPEXBREE (HEDE)
(BUSINESS SEGMENTS)
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue and AR ARG EEY 2 AL E & 2
results by reportable segment: BREEDN:
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018%F12A31HILEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
FEERE R RAME BSRE SRR GHES e
(Note)
(BaE)
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000
TiER TiET THET TiER TR THET FiET
Revenue from external BINBEERIRA
customers 199,153 27,771 64,062 39,623 35,069 16,170 381,848
Inter-segment revenue* D EEBA 14,669 - 4,370 362 = = 19,401
Reportable segment revenue IR D S A 213,822 27,771 68,432 39,985 35,069 16,170 401,249
Reportable segment ARERE (BE) /w55
(loss)/profit (23,759) 6,165 248,689 (39,962) 4,081 (9,319) 185,895
Corporate income ARBA
— Interest income —FEHA 2,778
— Fair value gain on —-EfER A%
re-measurement of equity CERZHAT
in a joint venture BE%RE 5,363
Central administrative costs I RITHAA (48,959)
Share of results of joint FEBhEEE
ventures 19,955
Share of result of an associate (B2 (D EEE (2,326)
Profit before income tax BRETSH S AR
expense 162,706
Note: st
The revenue from outlet malls  BL43EHT 43 2B AY Mg \
segment is analysed as ST
follows:
Gross revenue from R HEERA
concessionaire sales 367,236
Commission income from R EHEMGRE KA
concessionaire sales 39,483
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Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order.

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. SERER (4F)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) EER|RELS (FRTE)
(BUSINESS SEGMENTS) (CONTINUED) (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A318 L FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERFE Yt BENE R SEMRS ERES e
(Note)
(KtzE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT T T T THT T T
Revenue from external BNBEERIRA
customers 169,601 23,120 51,349 33,775 56,265 14,809 348,919
Inter-segment revenue* 2B A 1,321 - 3,284 48 = = 4,653
Reportable segment revenue  A[3RE 2 HKA 170,922 23,120 54,633 33,823 56,265 14,809 353,572
Reportable segment profit/ AREA (BE) /#F
(loss) 2,425 5,558 153,106 (20,075) 17,746 (10,756) 148,004
Corporate income NGLON
— Interest income LN 3,550
— Gain on disposal of —HERBA K
subsidiaries 1,204
— Management fee income —EEBHA 247
Central administrative costs RITERBY AN (55,712)
Share of results of joint FEBhEEE
ventures 19,407
Profit before income tax BRET1S B S AT
expense 116,700
Note: Hiit:
The revenue from outlet malls B4 387 48R 45
segment is analysed as W
follows:
Gross revenue from R EHEERA
concessionaire sales 300,606
Commission income from R EHEMGRE KA
concessionaire sales 33,775

* DEER 5 TI2ERRALETEMINEEA

T IRER A EAR SRAT (B
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

166

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
(loss)/profit represents the loss incurred or the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of corporate
income and expenses, which includes interest income,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, fair value gain on re-
measurement of equity in a joint venture, management
fee income, central administrative costs, share of
results of joint ventures and share of result of an
associate. These segment result is reported to the chief
operating decision-maker, being the directors of the
Company, for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

In the following table, revenue for the year ended
31 December 2018 is disaggregated by primary
geographical markets, major products and services
lines, and timing of revenue recognition. The table also
includes a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue
within the Group’s reportable segment for that year
into two categories: (i) revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15; and (ii)
revenue from other sources as defined in Note 2(A)B
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & Bt # 3k &R MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
(DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15

6. SEEF (&)

(B) HMEXFREE (EXHAS)

(#48)

HE BB HREERIF 1557 EE A
EFSHIMA

Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R RaEmE BESRE SRR RBER &a
(Note)
(Hi#t)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET TET FHET FHET THET FTHET
Primary geographical markets £ E#E 15
The People’s Republic of FEARENE
China (the “PRC") 181,614 - - 39,623 - - 221,237
Taiwan A - - - - - 15,916 15,916
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &% (B /EH) 17,539 - - - 10,288 254 28,081
United Sates of America e - 6,192 - - - - 6,192
Other Asia countries (Note) — EfZNEIR (frzt) - 16,716 - - - - 16,716
Others (Note) Hit (#izE) - 4,863 - = - = 4,863
Total FeH 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
Major products and services T EERRIRE
Sales of goods HEER 197,987 11,234 - - - 16,170 225,391
Commission income from R EHEMGRE KA
concessionaire sales - - - 39,483 - - 39,483
Royalty income EFWA = 16,537 = = = = 16,537
Brokerage commission ‘AL - - - - 4,262 - 4,262
Underwriting and placing BEREERA
income - - - - 3,898 - 3,898
Financial consultancy income ~ Bi &7 KA - = = - 2,128 = 2,128
Other services income HftRIBRA 1,166 - - 140 - - 1,306
Total 85t 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
Timing of revenue recognition FEBUI A B R
Ata point in time R AR 197,987 11,234 - - 8,160 16,170 233,551
Transferred over time —BBRRNER 1,166 16,537 - 39,623 2,128 = 59,454
Total 85t 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

168

(DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from other sources not within the scope of

6. SEREAF (&)

(B) HMEXFREE (EXHAS)

(&8

FEEEMBRERRE1SFEER

HKFRS 15 B9 B B i KA
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE AR RENE RS SRMRS RHES e
(Note)
(Hizt)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT THT TR THT THT THT THT
Primary geographical markets +E#E 15
The People’s Republic of H
China (the “PRC") - - 56,049 - - - 56,049
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &% (RE ) = = 8,013 = 24,781 = 32,794
Total @t - - 64,062 - 24,781 = 83,843
Major products and services ~EEERRRE
Rental income AL WA - - 64,062 - - - 64,062
Interest income FSMA = - = = 24,781 = 24,781
Total o5t = - 64,062 - 24,781 - 88,843

Note:

The geographical information for the revenue attributed to each

country is not available as the cost to capture such information

would be excessive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. PEBEHFE (F)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by
reportable segment:

TR mED 2NN 2 AEEE
EOM:

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#ET TET

Retailing and sourcing T EEEE 132,565 95,905
Branding AR bR HE E 150,062 148,582
Property investment and holding MEIRERFEYE 2,133,548 1,673,694
Outlet malls B A HT 1,176,308 996,105
Financial services & B AR 443,603 425,091
Duty free R ETE 10 11,999
Total segment assets DELEELE 4,036,096 3,351,376
Unallocated KoL 317,378 883,065
Consolidated assets REEERE 4,353,474 4,234,441

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets
are allocated to reportable segments other than
corporate assets, which includes interests in joint
ventures, interest in an associate, loan to an associate,
deferred tax assets, club debenture, amounts due
from joint ventures, amount due from an associate,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
assets of disposal group classified as held for sale.

RUAERDMERBARR D BEDEE
B-BRAEE (BRAELEEZ
B RNBERR S ERTH
BRE BEEMEEE SMES
FEU & & (R FNIR - FEUREE & R R
BT IR s RRBIRTT
T RITER RS RO BAFE
HEHRNEBE)IN ABEESRA

HEDEOR
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

7

The following is an analysis of the Group'’s liabilities by

SEBEF (])

AT R mE D22 KB R

reportable segment: (EVaRi
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHT FHET
Retailing and sourcing T EEE 45,635 15,220
Branding AR b HE E 11,048 9,885
Property investment and holding MERERFEYE 90,080 63,791
Outlet malls B A HT 63,970 53,237
Financial services & B AR 20,906 29,009
Duty free X 263 3,214
Total segment liabilities NEPEERE 231,902 174,356
Unallocated PNl 1,507,705 1,462,722
Consolidated liabilities A BaERE 1,739,607 1,637,078

Similar to the reporting purpose of segment assets as

disclosed in Note 6(C) to the consolidated financial
statements, all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than corporate liabilities, which

includes dividend payable, amounts due to joint
ventures, amount due to a related party, finance
lease payables, bank borrowings, bank overdrafts, tax

payable, loan from non-controlling interests, deferred
tax liabilities and liabilities of disposal group classified

as held for sale.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

6. SEREF (&)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION () HithsEBEH
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE20185F12A31HILEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R RAME BESRE SRR RBER &a
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET THET FHET TET THET FTHET
Amounts included in the FHAGHEMD (1)
measures of segment BHHTBEER
(loss)/profit or segment BfERE
assets/liabilities:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARX (Maz) 4,720 72 1,089 217,725 5 = 223,611
Depreciation of property, mE- BEREENE
plant and equipment 3,255 330 9,712 18,975 404 2,075 34,751
Amortisation of prepaid BNRETBEH
lease payments - - - 14,752 - - 14,752
Amortisation of intangible B EESEH
assets 3,596 - - - - - 3,596
Gain on disposal of HEHBARKE
subsidiaries - - (117,764) - - - (117,764)
Gain on disposal of HEREME K
investment properties - - (31,660) - - - (31,660)
(Gain)/loss on disposal HEME  BEREE
of property, plant and (W) /B8 38
equipment, net (248) = (180) - - 138 (290)
Increase in fair value of REMEATEEEM
investment properties - - 112,267 - - - 112,267
Impairment loss on financial £ R & EEERE
assets 7,118 - 412 - 5,085 - 12,615
Provision/(reversal) of FEEE (BR) /EE
allowance for FE
inventories, net 1,464 - - - - (626) 838
Interest income FEBA - - - - 24,781 - 24,781
Interest expense FEXZE 229 - 33,577 - 127 - 33,933
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

7

6. NEE

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A318 L FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TERFE R BENE R SEMRS RRES e
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T FTHT T T T T
Amounts included in the AR BT
measures of segment (BR)RAEpEE/
profit/(loss) or segment BfEHRE
assets/liabilities:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARRY (f1:F) 4,611 122 382 4,037 24 49 9,225
Depreciation of property, mE BEREENE
plant and equipment 3,515 380 9,012 16,768 487 3,030 33,192
Amortisation of prepaid BNREETEEHN
lease payments - - - 13,002 - - 13,002
Loss/(gain) on disposal HEME BB K
of property, plant and BB/ (%) 38
equipment, net 952 - (7) - - - 945
Increase in fair value of REMEATEBELEM
investment properties - - 197,663 - - - 197,663
Impairment loss on SREERNERE
financial assets - - 3,897 - 8,000 - 11,897
(Reversal)/provision of FERERRD FE
allowance for
inventories, net (13,561) 137 - - - (184) (13,608)
Reversal of provision for EHERERR
redundancy costs 2,000 - - - - - 2,000
Interest income FEHA = = = = 37,331 = 37,331
Interest expense FISAX - - 41,965 - - = 41,965
Note: Capital expenditure includes additions to property, plant and Kiit: BRARIZBEREME BERZER

equipment, interest expense of bank borrowings and direct
attributable costs being capitalised to construction in progress

of new outlet mall in Xiamen, the PRC, classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location of the delivery destinations
and information about its non-current assets by

geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

6. SEREF (&)

AEEBINBEFPHIRAREXE D
i@ BN AR EEEMIRE
EMERDENFHIBTOT

Non-current assets
located (Note (i)

Revenue from
external customers

BiMERE R ERBEERAES (H0))
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET THT FHT THT
The People’s Republic of China i AR AFE 277,286 247 576 2,125,711 2,023,747
Taiwan =) 15,916 14,367 = 2,563
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &5 (REH) 60,875 63,856 753,976 577,539
United States of America 35 6,192 2,886 - -
Other Asia countries (Note (i) HamMBER (47223)) 16,716 18,832 = =
Others (Note (i) A (F7:20)) 4,863 1,402 146,031 146,300
381,848 348919 3,025,718 2,750,149

Notes: Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

Similar to Note 6(B) to the consolidated financial statements,
the costs to capture the geographic information of revenue
would be excessive; and

Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, interest
in an associate, loan to an associate, deferred tax assets and
restricted bank deposits.

No revenue from transactions with a single external

customer (2017: one of the customers in the

retailing and sourcing segment of approximately
HKD40,305,000) represent 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December

2018.

0] BARE B TS RR M RE6(B)AEIL - EEUKA
MR ERRARS K

(i) FRBDEETEERALELEZER-
REPERRZ S BERTHERR B
JEFRIRE EE ) R BIRIT K

B Z20185F12A31HILFE 2B H
B-INEEPHR WA (20174F :
—REEERBHBNETL WAL
#340,305,000/8 7T ) (h N =B 2 X 5
10% 3 A | o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

7. REVENUE

Revenue includes the net invoiced value of goods sold,
commission income from concessionaire sales, royalty
income, rental income, interest income, brokerage
commission, underwriting and placing income, financial
consultancy income and other services income. The amounts

7. B¥EHE

of each significant categories of revenue recognised during

the year are as follows:

EXFERCERAMmNBERFE KTE
HEMBASWA  EREA -FHEEA -
MBWA BLERE BEREERA B
Bk A R B A AR AS UL A » I F R RERR
M ERBENSEABERIKALT :

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET T T
Revenue within the scope of HKFRS 15: NEEBMBREER
51557 A& E A BUg A ¢

Sale of goods Gk 225,391 195,365
Commission income from concessionaire sales 4 aFE S E TS A IA 39,483 33,775
Royalty income HF U A 16,537 11,560
Brokerage commission L fe 4,262 5,276
Underwriting and placing income B 88 R AL E WA 3,898 9,923
Financial consultancy income B 15 7 s 2,128 3,735
Other services income H A RS UL A 1,306 605
293,005 260,239

Revenue from other sources not within TEEHMBREEL

scope of HKFRS 15: 155 R E A Y

H o 2R iR A

Rental income HalA 64,062 51,349
Interest income B WA 24,781 37,331
88,843 88,680
Total FER 381,848 348,919
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FINANCE COSTS 8. BAEME
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET THT
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEFFERAZ 41,046 44,652
Interest expense on loan from TR ERERF B
non-controlling interests 229 -
Interest expense on bank overdrafts RITBESMNBE LT H 127 -
Others H A 63 -
41,465 44 652
Less: Interest expense being capitalised (Note) i : ## & A{LE F B 3 H
(K1eE) (7,532) (2,687)
33,933 41,965
Note: Interest expense on bank borrowings amounted to approximately B - RITREREIRE S H R#941,046,0007 7T (2017
HKD41,046,000 (2017: HKD44,652,000) of which a total amount £ : 44,652,000/ 7T ) - & H & £ 497,532,000%
of approximately HKD7,532,000 (2017: HKD2,687,000) was being 7T (20174F : 2,687,000/ 7T ) R E RN E AEA D
capitalised into construction in progress classified as property, plant BAME BERRXENEZIR-

and equipment during the year.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiEWixZil
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated REBmRANRERE HEREE:

statement of profit or loss represents:

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFH#IT T
Current tax AHIFIE
Hong Kong BB
— Profits Tax —FriSH
— current year —REEZ (1,071) (2,299)
The PRC and other jurisdictions A B R HA RERE =
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —H B EREH
— current year —REE (23,561) (7,405)
— over provision in prior years —BEFEBEEE 80 =
— Foreign tax — BN IE
— current year —ARFE (686) (641)
— under provision in prior years —BEFEEENR - (54)
(25,238) (10,399)
Deferred tax (Note 29) BEBIE (M17729)
Hong Kong and the PRC B &F
— Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FIEFM RPN
FTig#t
— current year —REE (24,796) (48,552)
Income tax expense FriS®i s 1 (50,034) (58,951)

17 6 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HKD2,000,000 of estimated assessable profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and estimated assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5% of the
remaining estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2018. For a group of “connected entities”, only
one entity within the group can elect to apply the two-tier
rates.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong Profits
Tax of the selected entity was calculated at 8.25% (2017:
16.5%) of the first HKD2,000,000 estimated assessable
profits and 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the remaining estimated
assessable profits. For the remaining entities within the group
was calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

All group companies operating in the PRC are subject to
the applicable tax rate of 25% for both years, except for an
acquired subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged
in property investment in the PRC, which is subject to the
applicable tax rate of 10% on its gross rental income, net of
value-added tax, earned in the PRC, based on the existing
legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

9.

Fra#ZH (8)

20183 A21H  H B A i@ i#E2017
FEHB (EE]) (BIR)GEHER(TE
R]) HS| AMBAFEHEHE ERR
20183 A28AHZE XK AR ERERTIE
B

RIBR ARG HE - B E2018F 124
BIRLEE AERMENE2BES B
STIEER T % 7 LAB.25% B0 B = 4 - T R
BB BB TR T (G 5T B SR B A A% A
165%M MR -5 —H[FEEER] M
5 REAE-HXERAEEERAMMAN

o

B¢ o

ils

HE2018F12A31IB LFE BT EEN
B2BE BB ERTR NN B AN EH
128.25% (20174 : 16.5% ) 5+ & - MeR T ik
ST e SR Bk F4R16.5% (20174 : 16.5% )
FE -SERNBTEENMETENERMY
=t e R W % K #916.5% (20174 : 16.5% )

o
Al °

ERFMEFA RPBEELENMAEE
NARIRE R R25% H AR - B
REBZEMRZENPERLEYRIKREN
MIEARIERIN REBEBRRITER  2ER
B ZARZARENHERRHES K
ANEBRIERRE10%HMTHIE (NKREE
B o
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&

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Up to the date of approval for issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the above acquired subsidiary engaged
in property investment in the PRC has not filed the tax
returns for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax in respect of its
income derived from the PRC. The PRC tax authority has the
right to levy penalty for late filing of tax returns. The amount
of such potential penalty cannot be reliably estimated as the
range of which is wide. However, for all tenancy agreements
signed between the Group and tenants since the financial
year of 2016, a new term has been added such that the
tenants are required to pay the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
based on 10% of gross rental income, net of value-added
tax, earned in the PRC on behalf of the Group in accordance
with the existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof. Based on the experience of the Group's
management and the above measures adopted, the amount
of such penalty, if any, will not be material to the Group's
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
the agreement in respect of acquisition of that subsidiary, the
vendor and its guarantor have undertaken to indemnify the
Group for any tax liability arising from the above late filing of
tax returns prior to the completion date of the acquisition.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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9.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax expense per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss as follows:

9. FifR¥ixt (&)

FEMEHHAELES
P32 H B AT RR 0T -

B RPRAE

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHET T
Profit before income tax expense B BT 1S i 2 Al A 162,706 116,700
Tax expense calculated at Hong Kong Profits KBTS E16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (20174 : 16.5% )
AR ZHB (27,216) (19,256)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NEMRBIENFRS 2
purposes HIg e & (11,510) (14,741)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax BARBHWMA 2 BE 2
purposes 67,176 10,913
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures hEErEEE I HEFE 3,293 3,202
Tax effect of share of result of an associate HEEDEEB I BB E (384) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMISERZRGEHE (88,543) (35,030)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHRERERE L
difference not recognised s 2 902 2,903
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PHRBERBERTEEEZ
previously not recognised MG 2 3,166 3,565
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE fth AR R L& /Y
operating in other jurisdictions WEB AR TR R 2 & 3,002 (10,453)
Over/(under) provision in respect of prior years @1 & E fBrEE
(BBETR) 80 (54)
Income tax expense TSR i (50,034) (58,951)

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group's leasehold land
and buildings of approximately HKD5,328,000 (2017:
HKD12,316,000) has been charged or credited directly to
other comprehensive income as disclosed in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

BREBEEMENSEIN FHEMAEH
MR E 1+ i ]2 18 F AR AT IR #95,328,00078
7T (20174 : 12,316,000/ 7T ) E E# B &
b2 E W E P IR HETA (R BB R
RMTFE29KER) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(A)

180

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

10. F il

(A) HbUA Rl

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET THET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A F s 117,764 1,204
Gain on disposal of investment properties H & & ¥ % Iz 31,660 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BER&EFRE
equipment, net 290 -
Fair value gain on re-measurement of B ERE —SEEN
equity in a joint venture N EEKE 5,363 =
Dividend income from financial assets at 26 8 & @b & E M B U A
fair value through profit or loss (A RAFEBESEA
Yoz K gstE ) 38 4,371
Interest income R EFRITERFBUA 2,778 3,550
Government grant (Note) BFE (i) 2,030 901
Reversal of provision for redundancy costs & Ak & (o] - 2,000
Others HA 8,635 4,826
168,558 16,852

Note: The Group received grants from the relevant PRC government

authorities in support of the Group’s retail business in the PRC.
There were no unfulfilled conditions to receive the grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

10. F£E#F (48)

(B) OTHER EXPENSES (B) HihFX
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
Fi#&T AT
Bad debts written off B s R 331 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERXEESE
plant and equipment, net R - 945
Write off of property, plant and equipment #13 - = & :& i il BR 830 =
Net loss on trading securities EEBSFNFEE - 3,325
Fair value loss on financial assets at AAFEBEIAEBZNEE
fair value through profit or loss BEMNATFEBEESR 2,443 3,640
Others HAth 1,443 2,098
5,047 10,008

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

182

10. FE#F (48)

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFH#IT T
After charging =]
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11(A)) BEwe (HEF11A) 6,967 6,310
Other employee costs: HifE A :
- Salaries ¥ 60,925 57,344
— Welfare and other expenses — @ R H AR 2 4,575 4,443
— Retirement benefits schemes —RRBREEIER
contributions, excluding directors TBREES 9,343 8,021
Share-based payments, excluding directors LAJ& ) % it N FEES 328 702
82,138 77,320
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2R BN & 2,000 1,950
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  T&{+ 10 & 2 E #E 8 14,752 13,002
Amortisation of intangible assets | & 3,596 =
Cost of inventories recognised as expense &3R5 B X 8917 & Ak 4 122,145 119,822
Depreciation of property, plant and VI BB MR E
equipment 34,751 33,192
Exchange losses, net N EE - FE 2,971 8,199
Minimum and contingent lease payments 7~ A] ERGH 48 & 0 & &)
under non-cancellable operating lease =R R ATEEFIE 45,826 19,087
After crediting 25t
(Provision)/reversal of allowance for FEHBIE (BH) &D -
inventories, net (Note) FEE (A7) (838) 13,608
Gross rental income from investment BEYHEBSRABE
properties 64,062 51,349
Less: direct operating expenses B RTEEMNEELERS
incurred by
— investment properties that —EXHESWAD
generate rental income HEME (11,764) (9,930)
— investment properties that did —WEELERAS WA
not generate rental income ORI ES (17) (49)
52,281 41,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

(C) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR HAS BEEN ARRIVED (C) FERFER: (8F)

AT: (CONTINUED)

10. F£E#F (48)

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFHT FH& 7T
Interest income from: FEWA -
— Bank deposits —RITIF 1,488 380
— Joint ventures — &g 1,066 2,954
— Associate — B2 224 216
— Loans receivable and advances to —RERBERFBRK
customers in margin financing U E R 24,781 37,331
Increase in fair value of investment BEYENNFEEEN:
properties:
— Investment properties classified as — D RERFIELERN
other than held for sale EYE 29,105 197,663
— Investment properties classified as —DEABELER
held for sale KEYE 83,162 =
112,267 197,663

Note:  The (provision)/reversal of allowance for inventories arising

from (decrease)/increase in net realisable value caused by the

(decrease)/increase in estimated scrap value.

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &

Kret: PIEBEE CRD) (AENEENTER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & Bf 5 3R 3% My &%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A)

184

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
disclosed as follows:

11.

EEHERESHN

(A) EEREFETHASHMN

EERETBTHABFMEIIMT

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018F12A31HIEFEE
Cheng
Tun Nei Lee
(Chief Chan Hong Kim Cheung Wah Chow
Executive Kar Lee, Cheong Ming Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
Officer) Gary (Note a) (Note b) Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
HER
(§-1: Ha#
#iTE) BREH (BtaEa) FR# wEE ERH AF#& &
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTET TERT FTET TERT TERT TET TET TET
Fees A - - - - 160 170 170 500
Other emoluments: Hipag:
Salaries and other benefits ¥ & R EMEF 2,382 1,962 442 1,158 - - - 5,944
Bonus (Note C) TEAT (MEEC) 200 165 - 99 - - = 464
Contributions to retirement  R/KAEFI 5+ B4
benefits schemes 18 18 5 18 - - - 59
Total emoluments e lE 2,600 2,145 447 1,275 160 170 170 6,967
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A318 L FE
Cheng
Tun Nei Lee
(Chief Chan Hong Kim Cheung Wah Chow
Executive Kar Lee, Cheong Ming Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
Officer) Gary (Note a) (Note b) Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
#ER
(B bt
HiTE) BREF (MizEa) TR R R BFE A%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT TET THT THT FTHET THT THET THT
Fees EH - - 45 - 160 170 170 545
Other emoluments: Hibig:
Salaries and other benefits % & R EMEF 2,382 1962 1,473 - - = = 5,817
Contributions to retirement  R/KAEFI 5T EIE T
benefits schemes 18 18 12 - - - - 48
Share-based payments PARRR 32 A+ = 200 200 - = = = 400
Total emoluments HezBE 2,400 2,180 1,730 - 160 170 170 6,810
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Hong Kim Cheong was appointed as executive director
effective on 1 April 2017 and retired after the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting held on 8 June 2018;

(b) Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed as executive director
effective on 1 January 2019; and

(c) the bonus is based on the performance of individuals and the
entity.

There are no payments for the loss of office paid to
directors in connection with the management of affairs
of the Group during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

No retirement benefit was paid to or receivable by
directors for management of affairs of the Group during
31 December 2017 and 2018. No directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, one of the
executive directors resigned and the outstanding share
options lapsed on his resignation date, and a new
executive director was appointed with new warrants
were previously granted to him before his appointment.
The fair value of such options, which was recognised
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amounts included in the
consolidated financial statements for both years are
included in the above directors’ and Chief Executive's
emoluments disclosures.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

11. EFHERESHN (F)

ez -

(@ HEEB017F4A1BRBZEBHNIT
EEIWMN2018F6 A8A IR NS A 6F
RAE:

(b)  FEEB2019F1A1H BB EERHNT
B R

) TEARERALRARRRMER-

B ZE20174 &2018F 12 H31H 1L F
B BEEFAREEASEEES
A R B B T S (I 500R

HZE20174 K2018F12A31H 1F  #
BESRAASEEESEHBEENE
EMES S EBGR IR @R TR E
EEMREM-

HZE2017F12A31BIEFER - &F
EZRBALNRZBRETSIBER
AEERE REERBRE 5
HE—THBENGREMBEREME
34 - AEE2018%F 128318 ILEfE

—ZBHITE BT - UK TTEBR
ERERTBERS R—&HBT
EEELT BERARNEEZRER
R ZHRBEE -BRABREZ A
FEE(REBHRREGEBEERZIE
mATER) IR A HBETE R M
BFEETAZE T EME 2SI
AENEERFEZTHABEH 2 #
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

186

Salaries and other benefits paid to or for the Executive
Directors are generally emoluments in respect of
those persons’ other service in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
the five highest paid individuals of the Group included
the Chief Executive and one director (2017: the Chief
Executive and two directors) whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 11(A) to the consolidated financial
statements above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2017: two) individuals are as follows:

11. ESHREaRESHM (F)

RTHTES 2 BEMEN R
REFEBALHEERNRRRENE
NAL BB E A B R Al AR A5 2 B

S MEE -

220174 F20184F12A318 IE4F
B AEESREHFHMHNSEALT B
BT ABRIZES (2017F : &
RITHRABR2EZESR)  HENF B
BN EXRE TS RRMFLILA)E
B o Hf34 (20174 : 28 ) AT EOF:
Ban T

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

TF#IT T T

Salaries and other benefits e M EMmEF 4,415 2,844
Retirement benefits schemes contributions 3B {48 FI| 5t 21 £ 7X 54 36
4,469 2,880
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

11. ESHRERESHM (&)

(B) EEFM (&)
WERFME T IIBER

2018 2017

No. of No. of

employees employees

EE A EEAH

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 2 -

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management and an executive director were within the
following bands:

ENSHENESREEARR—R]T
EEWFMET S EHER -

2018 2017
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE BB A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 1 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 3 4
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 2 -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BE
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FTAT
2017 final dividend of HKDO.005 FRBE IR N2017H R B
(2017: 2016 final dividend of HKD0.0038) £ J% 38 A%0.00578 7T

per ordinary share declared and paid (20174 : 2016F HA R I &

& @mA%0.003878 7T ) 14,810 11,232

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &
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12.

13.

188

DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

No interim dividend was declared and paid to the
shareholders of the Company for the financial years ended
31 December 2017 and 2018. For the financial year ended
31 December 2018, the board of directors recommends the
payment of final dividend of HKD0.012 (2017: HKDO0.005)
per ordinary share to the shareholders of the Company of
HKD35,688,000 (2017: HKD14,810,000). For the remaining
dividend unclaimed after a period of six years from the date
of dividend payment shall be forfeited and reverted to the
Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

12.

13.

Iz 2 (48)

B E2017F k201812 A31H I F &
B EAARBRREIRSOK N HARE
B ZE2018F12A3IH LM BFE E2 €
EERARRRRIRNARRE SR TR
f%0.012%8 7t (20174 : T AR & i@ A%0.0057%
JT)  #)4& #£R35,688,0007% 7T (20174
14,810,000/ 7T ) ° I AR SR B HAREET X
FRINREBBOF SRR B K T RERER
ZN/NCTE

BikEH

ARRFEEAREESREARETRFT)
RTINBEE

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TF#IT FH& T
Earnings 2%
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ ZN2 BI¥E A A FE(L 4 2% T
the Company 118,213 41,018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

13. ixR A (&)

2018 2017
Number Number
of shares of shares
x5 & H B 15 &k B
'000 '000
T T A%
Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  F AT E SRR ERZFIH
for the purpose of calculating basic TR I
earnings per share 2,964,675 2,910,571
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BESESTERZRE
(Note) (K1at)
— share options — AR 4 681 364
— warrants L 4,854 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARG ESRERZFIA
for the purpose of calculating diluted TR IR
earnings per share 2,970,210 2,910,935
Earnings per share SEREH
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EFRREARZEF (BL) 3.99 1.41
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRRESERF (B1L) 3.98 1.41

Note: The Company’s share options and warrants as at 31 December 2018 Bt -
and share options as at 31 December 2017 gave rise to dilution effect
to the earnings per share because the exercise price of the Company’s
share options and warrants outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2018 were lower than the average market price of the

Company’s shares for the year.

The Company’s warrants as at 31 December 2017 did not give rise
to any dilution effect to the earnings per share because the exercise
price of the Company’s warrants outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2017 were higher than the average market price of the

Company’s shares for the prior year.

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

AR AIR20185512 A31 A # 85 AR 4 & B AR HE
LA R R20174612 331 B KB R E S E S R B
- H & Z=2018F12A31H I FE AR A H A
TR A R A e S R AR R RO 1T (BRI AN F [

AABRMD FHTIHE-

ARAMR2017F12A31 A BRI E R B #8
BRAER  EA#HZE2017F12A318 IEFEARR
RIMARITRMBREZ ZTRER L —FER

REEA TR HES -

189
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

)
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE
Leasehold land  Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold ~ Construction in Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings  improvements progress machinery equipment vehicles Vessel Total
REEN RePER
HELHE  AEIHER HENE HE.
| =3 | = [ =3 B3 HRBIE RBERKE KERZH RE e Eo
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
ThL TAT FhEL FhL TAL TAT FhL FhL TAL FET
Cost or revaluation RASEE
At 1 January 2017 W201741A1R 225,000 25379 305,640 91,510 - 479 20372 4150 2930 675,460
Additions RE - - - 2,822 2893 - 2982 528 - 9,225
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—EHELH
(Note 48) (Hrit48) - - - - - - 20 2 - 312
Surplus arising on revaluation ~ EfEELMBE 32,000 38 11,616 - - - - - - 43,654
Disposals HeE = = = (2,702) = = (269) (119) = (3,090)
Exchange realignment [EZES| - 1,983 22,550 6,957 - 6 652 188 - 32336
At 31 December 2017 R2017£12A318 257,000 27,400 339,806 98,587 2893 485 24,027 4,769 2,930 757,897
Comprising: a8
At cost KA - - - 98,587 2893 485 24,027 4769 2,930 133,691
At revaluation - 2017 fHE-2017F 257,000 27,400 339,806 - - - - - - 624,206
257,000 27,400 339,806 98587 2893 485 24,027 4769 2930 757,897
Cost or revaluation BASEE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1R 257,000 27,400 339,806 98587 2893 485 24027 4769 2930 757,897
Additions AE - - 14,294 23,502 182,116 73 2375 1,251 - 223611
Acquisition through business  EBERA G I
combination (Vote 48) (Hrat48) - - - 537 - 1,393 213 - - 2143
Surplus arising on revaluation  EfREEMEH 16,000 786 (5,111) - - - - - - 11675
Disposals e = = = (7,097) = ()] (1,726) (1,734) = (10,566)
Write off it = = = (12.923) = = (4,29) (12) = (17,231)
Exchange realignment EXES - (1,406) (17,694) (4,661) (22) 171 (864) (127) - (24,603)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A318 273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19729 4147 2,930 942,926
Comprising: a8
At cost KA = = - 97,945 184,987 2113 19,729 4147 2930 311,851
At revaluation - 2018 fHE-20185F 273,000 26,780 331,295 - - - - - - 631,075
273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19,729 4147 2930 942,926

Accumulated deprecation B3t %

At 1 January 2017 W201741A1R - - 1,387 57,340 - 272 16,890 2,354 463 78706
Provided for the year FREE 6,947 414 8,935 13533 - 131 2,209 731 292 33192
Acquisition of a subsidiary W -FEHEAR

(Note 47) (#i347) - - - - - - 140 2 - 161
Write back on revaluation EEEEH (6,947) (414) (10,804) - - - - - = (18,165)
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - - (1,709) - - (115) 1 - (1941)
Exchange realignment B &5 - - 482 4,808 - 4 620 118 - 6,032
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 - - - 73972 - 407 19,744 3107 755 97,985
Provided for the year FEER 7,058 1,220 9,768 13,620 - 145 1972 675 293 34,751
Acquisition through business @ £ 4 G

combination (Note 48) (fit48) - - - 504 - 1125 140 - - 1,769
Write back on revaluation BEEE (7,058) (1,156) (9261) - - - - - - (17.475)
Eliminated on disposals HE R - - - (6,791) - ©) (1,646) (1,506) - (9.952)
Write off HE = = = (12,479) - = (3910) (12) - (16,401)
Exchange realignment I 535 - (64) (507) (3977) - 7 (504) (88) - (5,133)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31R - - - 64,849 - 1675 157% 2,176 1,048 85,544
Carrying amount REfE
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A318 273,000 26,780 331,295 33,0% 184,987 438 3933 1971 1882 857,382
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 257,000 27,400 339,806 24,615 2893 78 4283 1,662 2,175 659912
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The net book value of construction in progress of
approximately HKD184,987,000 (2017: HKD2,893,000)
related to new outlet mall under construction in Xiamen, the
PRC, which will be depreciated once the construction work
is completed and available for use. Additions during the year
of approximately HKD182,116,000 (2017: HKD2,893,000)
was related to interest expenses and direct attributable costs
capitalised during the year.

For the buildings in Shenyang, the PRC, the Group
completed the renovation work of approximately
HKD14,294,000 (2017: nil) during the year.

During the year, the Group has entered into a finance
lease contract for leasing a motor vehicle of approximately
HKD774,000 (2017: HKD nil) as detailed in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the outlet mall and leasehold land and buildings located
in Shenyang and Shanghai, the PRC and Hong Kong, they
were valued on 31 December 2017 and 2018 by Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited and Greater China Appraisal
Limited respectively, independent firms of professional
property valuers not connected to the Group.

In prior year, the fair value of leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC of approximately
HKD284,400,000 as at 31 December 2017 was transferred
from level 2 to level 3 recurring fair value measurement.
The transfer out of level 2 into level 3 recurring fair value
measurement was due to the significance of adjustments to
discounts or premiums on differences in characteristics of
the properties being valued and the properties for which the
observed market transaction prices were based on.

14. W2 BB R iE (8)

EETIERMFERARNEEREMNH
BERFT(BAEAREZD —B2YWE
BRTMAEEREETHE)EENEER
184,987,000/ 7t (20174 : 2,893,000/%
TT) ° FNRNE182,116,0007 7T (20174F :
2,893,000/8 7T ) B F W E AL K| B R &
HEEKAERE-

APERENETMN S AEERFAT
P B8 1 T2 4914,294,0007% 7T (20174 -
&)

RER  KEBFIVBERESL UHE
SREEAY774,0007 7T (20174F - &) - sEIEH
RERA IS RERKIFE3L

SR BIERES - LigREBRREFHET -
MELTHPEFMS BER2017F K
2018512 A31H 7 fll ey B2 AN & (81 I % R 32
ZEIUFEEYEGLEMTRARTEEAR
NAMEEFEBRARETMHE

REF RPBRBEERELESNHEE i
NMIEFHR2017F12A318 N A FEELY
284,400,000/ T B 5 — RS E = R4
*‘/Ii{ﬂﬂ?{ﬁ@ﬁ%oa ZREREE=
LB AT EEFEHARNEEYESA
E%ﬁ%m BRGERMEKBNESEE
AR R EAENEE k-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - ME Rk (48)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the outlet MR2018F 128310 B ETUARHE L
mall and leasehold land and buildings of approximately &2 F B A F B E 4631,075,0007% 7T
HKD631,075,000 (2017: HKD624,206,000) was classified (20174 : 624,206,000/ 7T ) D EEBE =R
as level 3 recurring fair value measurement. The valuations KEERAFEETZ - HRBEB R EEMHE
of leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and Shanghai ErMREFNGAEDRAEELEE:
adopted direct comparison approach with reference to KR2MRIAETIS LR TS Al L EGH S 2UR M
market comparable sales evidence available in the market. EETE - M E R BUES B B AT (1A -
The valuation of outlet mall in Shenyang, the PRC was TERZAILREEEIRE 2 BR T EE R
adopted depreciated replacement cost approach in terms BREFEANBERNARERRE &N
of considering the building costs and fees incurred for the MEEENAAMEE
erection of building in the absence of comparable sales
evidence.
A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 recurring FUORFERE=ZREEUHNTFEBELERY
fair value balances is provided below. BRIOR o
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET TET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F 4148 (F=RKH 1T
~NYEE) 624,206 304,253
Additions NE 14,294 -
Transfer from level 2 recurring fair value A MR
NEEE - 284,400
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own st AEfb2E U AN IEE B
use included in other comprehensive income FOE/EER g 29,150 22420
Depreciation e (18,046) (8,935)
Exchange realignment bE & 7] (18,529) 22,068
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER (FRLH N
NEEE) 631,075 624,206
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

14. Y% - B ER&HE (8)

(CONTINUED)
Properties Valuation approach Notes Significant unobservable input Range
/ES fEERE Mzt EXFOUHZHABE i)
2018 2017
HKD HKD
Hong Kong Direct comparison (i)  (Discount)/premium on -15% to 15% -15% to 11%
approach characteristics of the properties
BB BELRE MERIER (37:8) 5B
Shanghai, the  Direct comparison (i)  Discount on characteristics of -0.5% 2% to 1%
PRC approach the properties
RELE  HELBE MR (7,5
Shenyang, the  Depreciated replacement (i)  Construction costs (HKD/sq. meter) 7,521 - 9,572 7,315-9,233
PRC cost approach
HEER WESEERANE BERA (B FHK)
Notes: B 5 -
(i) The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties (i) HEZSEDESE SETLERS2ERE 2

(ii)

which included the time, floor, age, quality, size and view of

comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on characteristics of
the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the premium on
characteristics of the properties would result in a significant (decrease)/
increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings.

A significant increase/(decrease) in construction costs would result in a (i)
significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the buildings.

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

B 2k B8 HERIHE-

YRS R EZIE N, OR D) R IE
BENEZ CRD) ENEEREEL 0 RIE
FRFEERNERE OR) 4.

BERANBEEN CRD) BEBIEFTHD
FEEBEZEM ORD) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% B ERR1E (48)

(CONTINUED)

There was no change to the valuation technique used by the
property valuers during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
in the amount of approximately HKD378,918,000 (2017:
HKD397,484,000).

FR-HEHEATELIRES

RNPEBEAEDNEAYMEZES REE
Rz (EERASRLEER) REE-

WM REFSEEHHE BEUES
B AR08 R 5H T E B - £9378,918,00058 7T
(20174F : 397,484,000/ 7T ) 5t AR & B 75
REK o

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHETT FET

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong REBHHEE L RIEF 83,914 86,169
Leasehold land and buildings in PRC RAPBE/ES it MEF 23,645 26,280
Buildings BF 271,359 285,035
378,918 397,484

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong is pledged to a
bank to secure the banking facility to the Group as disclosed
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. &M%

Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties Total
EEh B
BEME BEME W
HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD’'000
FHETT FABIT T
Fair value: AFEE:
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 414,986 740,282 1,155,268
Acquisition of a subsidiary I i —K B AR

(Note 48) (H17£48) - 366,040 366,040
Additions hE - 13,316 13,316
Increase in fair value recognised ~ RIERFERI A F

in profit or loss BB 0 25,829 171,834 197,663
Transfer to asset of disposal group & S48 A EHE

classified as held for sale HBIEE (MiF27)

(Note 27) (482,179) = (482,179)
Exchange realignment bE % &7 41,364 74,184 115,548
At 31 December 2017 2017 12A31H - 1,365,656 1,365,656
Increase in fair value recognised ~ RIEZRERE A F

in profit or loss BEE I = 29,105 29,105
Disposals ank= - (20,700) (20,700)
Exchange realignment [ 5,875 = (54,586) (54,586)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H - 1,319,475 1,319,475
Notes: Wit
(@) Al of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under (@) 20172018 12A318  NEEIRKEHENE

operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model as at 31 December 2017 and
2018.

During the year, the Group disposed of an industrial building in
Hong Kong and parcels of spare land located in Shenyang, the PRC,
which were classified as level 3 recurring fair value measurements of
approximately HKD20,700,000 and HKD538,721,000, respectively,
determined based on valuations carried out by independent
professional valuers. The fair value gain of these properties of
approximately HKD1,000,000 and HKD83,162,000 were recognised
during the year.

(b)

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

HEWAKNBEAZERENAE L REFH
HEELD  HOBMARBEYMREAR WARF
EEEX S

FER - ANEEHEVRBEANTERZRARF
BEGHEEREL (D EAE=AEE T
AFEEFE) RS BB BE L FEGER
{# 18 & %720,700,000/% It 538,721,000/ It
FRRZZYEER A T EEURZE491,000,000
7 7T 183,162,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bf 1§ 3R 3R Mi 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

196

(Continued)

The commercial and industrial properties in Hong Kong and Shanghai,
the PRC of approximately HKD292,810,000 was transferred from
level 2 recurring fair value measurement to level 3 recurring fair
value measurement in the prior year. Such transfer was due to the
significance of adjustments to discounts or premiums on differences
in characteristics of the properties being valued and the properties for
which the observed market transaction prices were based on.

In the prior year, the Group acquired a commercial property in
Chongging, the PRC of approximately HKD366,040,000, which was
classified as a level 3 recurring fair value measurement as at 31
December 2017 and 2018.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 recurring fair value
balances is provided below:

15. Ix&ME (&)

Hret: (&)

(b)

(%)

EF UREBRTELENEARTENEN
292,810,000/ 7L M 58 — L WA FEEE
HEEE-QRRERTEENE  TIRRHE
MERCBRDIHR 5 ERAKIBENDERE
EZRUBANGEABRNERE-

=E AREBBC T RERS —RERYE
#1366,040,00078 7T * % ¥) 120174 ) 20184F
12A31ADBAF=REFHATFHEENE -

FORFRE=ZMERUEATFBESHKEERD
To

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FHER (F=REF M
AFEE) 1,365,656 919,268
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 48) e B8 — B A & (A77248) - 366,040
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R TERE A FEE LM 29,105 154,723
Transfer from level 2 recurring fair value BEEE _AKEMATEE - 292,810
Transfer to assets of disposal group classified ERESEARFELEARN
as held for sale AE - (482,179)
Disposals unf— (20,700) -
Exchange realignhment &7 &5 (54,586) 114,994
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FERER (F=MEEMN
AFEE) 1,319,475 1,365,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s commercial property in Hong Kong at
the end of the reporting period were determined based on valuation
performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited, and those of the
commercial property in Shanghai, the PRC at the end of the reporting
period and parcels of spare land located in Shenyang, the PRC
disposed of during the year, were determined based on valuations
carried out by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited. Greater
China Appraisal Limited and Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited
are independent firms of professional property valuers not connected
to the Group.

For the commercial property in Hong Kong, the fair value at the end
of the reporting period was determined by applying the capitalisation
of rental receivables during the residual period of the existing tenancy,
at an appropriate capitalisation rate, by using the discounted cash
flow method. The valuation also taken into account of the estimated
terminal value and made provision for reversionary interests after the
expiry of tenancy, with reference to market rental of leased properties
nearby. For the parcels of land located in Shenyang, the PRC, their
fair values are determined by considering the most recent sales
transactions of government land nearby. Both valuation methodologies
have taken various factors into account, such as expected rental
growth rate, term yield, reversionary yield and market rent for Hong
Kong property, and locations, time and size of comparable transactions
for parcels of land located in Shenyang, the PRC respectively.

The fair values of commercial and industrial properties in Chongging,
the PRC at the end of the reporting period were determined based on
valuations performed by AT & ERT HiEMEFTEBR AR
FX#B5 A & and those in Beijing, the PRC and Hong Kong determined
based on valuations performed by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong)
Limited, both of which are independent firms of professional property
valuers not connected to the Group. The valuations of these investment
properties were arrived at by direct comparison approach with
reference to market comparable sales evidence available in the market.

15. Ix&ME (&)

Hret: (&)

(b)

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

(%)

RNREMR  AEBURBBOEEDENRT
BEDRBEEFEARAREL N GEETNES
E MR RE IR - AT B BB 3 A
RINENHE SRR T EIEGHNZHREE i
MAFEEDREAZTEEERAFAETH
HEMERE  ZEFEERIARARAETEEE
RARYRERNEEL ERENB L HEEYE
HEMMTT -

RRABEBNEENEMS  BREPRDFEE
DEBMBBEReREE HREBONTERE
ReyEKRASANEENERNCERERCEE
HETEEGFTREEEL2ZMEEENE
misAe R BORRRNEGEDEHRE-
RURTEZEGOEEL TS AXFEE
THEE EAR AT £ 3 B0 S I E R 5 1
JE ° M AT AT RIAHES LR T
Wk EHREEEETSES (RBEBYEM
FIRRAIELRZ H 02 - kK RRE (3
R ERGNEEL NS ) S HEAR-

RBERR URTEEENIARTEYE
MAFEEDREBERINDRIERIT L BEE
R AR AR A D A AEH & EEmEE
M RPEILREEBNEARTEDENA
FEEDRBAZTEEARABDETNMHE
MEERE » MR A )15 73 BN 6% B 3 4 e O 8 52
HEYELETT ZEREMEZHEISE
SRR AILBRTISHE R RRERLR
REERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bf 1§ 3R 3R Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

+ES

Hret: (&)

15. Ix&ME (&)

Information about fair value measurements using significant (c) ERFEREA TSR GABEN A FEBER
unobservable inputs: EHER:
Range
GE
Properties Valuation approach Notes  Significant unobservable inputs
fH{E % % Bzt BEXRFUTHREGAER 2018 2017
Shenyang, Direct comparison approach (0 (Discount)/premium on -5% to 4% -30% to 5%
the PRC characteristics of the properties
FEVES HELEE MERMD (FTR), 5B
Beijing, Direct comparison approach ) Discount on characteristics of 0% -0.5%
the PRC the properties
AR R HERIBUA MR ATE
Shanghai, Direct comparison approach @ Discount on characteristics of -0.5% 2% to-1%
the PRC the properties
FE HELEE V)R AT R
Chongging, Direct comparison approach (1) Market price (HKD/sq. meter) 12,532 13,180
the PRC
PREE HELEE mIBEMAME (BT, FHK)
Hong Kong Direct comparison approach (0 (Discount)/premium on -10% to 2% —20% to 13%
characteristics of the properties
BE HERIBUA YRR (FR),SRE
Capitalisation of rental (ii) Term yield 2.1% 2.1%
receivables approach
P HE & & ANMEE F IR
Reversionary yield 2.6% 2.6%
FEI R 18 B W
Market unit rent per month 501 501
(HKD/sq. meter)
mIBEMAME (BT, FHK)
Notes: Hiat
(i) The valuations take into account the characteristics of the (i) HEZEMEFE BEITLERSZ

properties which included the location, size, time, floor, age
and quality of comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on
characteristics of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/
increase in the premium on characteristics of the properties
would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in fair value of

the investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

Capitalisation of rental receivables approach measures the
fair value of the properties by taking into account the rental
receivables during the residue period of the existing leases with
due allowance for the reversionary interests after expiry of the
leases, which are then capitalised into the value at appropriate
rates.

A significant increase/(decrease) in term yield and reversionary
yield of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in
market unit rent of the properties would result in a significant
(decrease)/increase in fair value of the investment properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique used by the
property valuers during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, most of the completed
investment properties were rented out under operating leases.
Details of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements.

(d) Except for the property located in Shanghai, all of the above completed
investment properties are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
to the Group as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

15. Ix&ME (&)

Hret: (&)

(c) (&

ke (&)

(ii)

FEU AR & & AMLER KRB DT
HROERAES WEEZ BB ER
BOERERMIEMENRITFEE
A B SRR AEE LR E R
REE-

) ZE ) F B R I 1R R IR E RO B N
SO ZMET SENASHRE
OR) e B8R EME* A TFEE
HEE Opid) /B me

FALE PO - 3 8 T AR B F LA
EmEH -

R EEREBIA LY E 2 &5 R
A% (RERRGRLEZR) RE%E-

20174 k2018F12H31H  K# 5 E
BRREMEERCEHENE KA
ERBHBHNGE M IRKMT 40

d)  BERLDENMEN A LRERTREYE
EERTFROTUERRTAEENRITEER
B (RERA M5 IR M 304 3R ) -

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bf 1§ 3R 3R Mi 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

200

16. A ERIE

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FTABT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong held RBEE AN EAFE A
under medium-term lease: HE L

At 1 January MR1A1H 556,463 240,830
Addition (Note) NE (Ha2) - 310,332
Amortisation B8N (14,752) (13,002)
Exchange realignment JE R E5 (27,044) 18,303
At 31 December M®12A31H 514,667 556,463

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEBOMOTA:
Current asset RBEE 14,833 14,171
Non-current asset ERBEE 499,834 542,292
At 31 December R12431H 514,667 556,463
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group successfully Kiat - #iE2017F12A31B L FE - AEBRFPEHE

acquired a vacant land located in Xiamen, the PRC for constructing
an outlet mall thereon. Such land was pledged to a bank to secure
the banking facilities of the Group as disclosed in Note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B & E
Customer
Trading rights Trademarks relationship Total
R 1 EFEM% k]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Cost: 5%

At 1 January and R2017F1A1B &

31 December 2017 12A31H 599 145,818 - 146,417
Acquired through business BBEBEOREE

combination (Note 48) (Hzz48) = 2683 53,946 56,629
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 599 148,501 53,946 203,046
Accumulated amortisation and B3t E R iRE

impairment:

At 1 January and 31 December ~ R2017F181B &

2017 12A31H - - - -
Provided for the year FRRE - - 3,596 3,596
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H - - 3,596 3,596
Net book value: IREF{E
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 599 148,501 50,350 199,450
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 599 145,818 - 146,417

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the intangible assets comprise
of: (i) “PONY” trademarks; (ii) trademarks and customer
relationships of health supplement products; and (iii) trading
rights of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited which
allow the Group to trade securities on or through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. “PONY” trademarks, trading rights and
trademarks of health supplement products are considered
by the Group’s management as having indefinite useful
lives since they are expected to generate net cash inflows
to the Group indefinitely; and therefore, they are required
to be tested for impairment annually and considered not to
be impaired at the end of reporting period. For customer
relationship of health supplement products is considered by
the Group’s management as having estimated useful lives of
15 years.

For the purpose of impairment testing in respect of the
“PONY” trademarks and trademarks of health supplement
products, which had been allocated to the CGU of the
branding and retailing and sourcing segments respectively,
their recoverable amounts were determined based on
value-in-use calculations prepared by Prudential Surveyors
(Hong Kong) Limited and Greater China Appraisal Limited
respectively, which are independent professional firms not
connected to the Group. The value-in-use calculations of
both valuations adopt discounted cash flow methods. For
“PONY” trademarks, it covers a detailed 10-year budget
plan, plus an extrapolated cash flow projections by applying
a long term growth rate subsequent to the 10-year budget
plan, with a post-tax discount rate of 12.8%. The key
assumptions and methodologies are consistent with the prior
year.

Annual Report 2018

17.

EREE (8§)

201812 H31H - & & &= B 45 (i) &
[PONY | & B BN EER : (DREEmRD
BEMEPBE: R(NTHAKSEEBRE
BRPRGEEMBRAR (IBRHM)RE
BB BEENERSHMEEEFH
R AEBEEEERS [PONY | 1%
RXHENRBERNBIZHESERERF
H EZERRERAEAASEEMERSE
ERAFE AMKRERTFETHER
A BRmEHRER SERE - NEEE
BERRRBERNEFBERERISFN
fhetERF-

i [PONY | AR R R 12 EE mm O A IR BV RUE
RIS WE DRI B2 an e 1 & A K
ZERREDMNRECELEN  WEA
WE R IEAFEERDERNERE
EREENKSEEE A FEENRE
ARITEBERRAFEEFERGRAR
DRRENEE T UEE REHSEN
SEYEBENF L EXAERMTTMIA
BEMNXFEENEREREEFERD
RIS MBI -BL[PONY | F1EM = » H
MEFAWIOFEEF & I ER10F A
BB RARMERTEENRSIRE
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &2 &

Bt 75 3R 2R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are:

Cash flows beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated 3% growth rate;

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 10-year budget plan.

For trademarks of health supplement products, it covers a
detailed b-year budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash flow
projections by applying a long term growth rate subsequent
to the 5-year budget plan, with a post-tax discount rate of
16.3%.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan on the date of
business acquisition are:

Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated 3% growth rate;

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 5-year budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is post-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The directors concluded that the cash-generating units
demonstrate sufficient cash flows that justify the carrying
value of both “PONY” trademarks and trademarks of health
supplement products, hence no impairment is necessary as
at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

17. #H

BREE (§)

B ZE2017412A31F k2018512 A31H |k
FEZHEEFEFANEERRNOT

i BBEI0FHE 2R mE THFE AR
3% BREHEH

i. REREIOFEEHE
WA KT

B RESYUES

SREEMMEIEM 5 - BB EFAHSF
TBEEE N ERSFREA R KA R
BEXEENHS AR REBEARS
16.3% °

REBWEE RN BEFBERANEER
R

i  BESFHRNREEREDNERMGE
3%HIERERHES

i. REBESFEEIIME EMXGHE
FIRAKF

AEBEEBZETERRIBREBERR
REHMHER 2 AMET - R R QIR
‘AR REREMERES AR ARER -

EEREELEHSNEMEITHENES
2 FF [PONY J 7912 BR B A1 4R 8 22 o /Y
AR E - B I 720174 &2018F 128
31H AR [PONY | G hE{EHBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Z%: &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) JOINT

S 3R R AT

SELERIE

18. EEMEER TEW  (FEf)

VENTURES

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
Fi#&T FHBT

Interests in joint ventures: EEPERER
Share of net assets other than goodwill HEE (HERIN FE 95,962 99,889
Goodwill S - 67,169
95,962 167,058

At 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had interests in

the following joint ventures:

20174 Kk2018F 12310 - A& EF A
NTaadxER:

Place of Class of Proportion of ownership Principal place
Name of joint venture company incorporation shares interest held by the Group Principal activities of business
AEERKREY
RELE Era i E ek B& 13 B R BAEESE S EEET EEEEE,
2018 2017
RESHEXEEBRAA The PRC Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding The PRC
(Note i) (Htati) A AR BB il
255w M R EE R The PRC Ordinary 50% 50% Operation and management The PRC
ER AT (Note i) (H1ati) A Timk of outlet malls h
K K B 18 R E A
ZGB R MARKEEBR AR The PRC Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment The PRC
(Note i) ( #t5#i) FE AR MERE A B
Aggressive Resources Limited The British Ordinary N/A 60% Investment holding N/A
(“Aggressive Resources”) Virgin Islands & 8 % BEER TEA
(Note ii and iii) ( B &ii % i) EBELES

2 04 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

The contractual arrangements provide the Group with only the rights
to the net assets of the joint arrangements, with the rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements resting
primarily with the above joint ventures. Under HKFRS 11, these joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures and accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

The Group directly held a 50% equity interest in %[5 & 4 418 R 5K g
XEBAHMRAR and L5 HPRFEZEFEABRAF]. In addition,
the Group directly held 25% equity interest in EES M E £ % EBIR
AF and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Z[5 B kB £ EXEAR AT,
which in turn held the remaining 50% equity interest in %[5 7 1 14118
BEEEEEARAR and ZSBEKHARKEEFRAAF as at
31 December 2017 and 2018.

According to the Sales and Purchase Agreement of Aggressive
Resources signed in 2016, the vendor guaranteed to the Group
that the annualised net profit of Aggressive Resources shall be at
least HKD10,000,000 and HKD11,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2018 respectively. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair value of such contingent consideration receivables is minimal
and therefore not recognised by the Group.

In the prior year, the financial information of Aggressive Resources
is not consolidated by the Group. This is because the Group has
only joint control of Aggressive Resources by virtue of the terms of
shareholders agreement amongst the joint venture partners. During
the year, the Group acquired the remaining 40% equity interest
of Aggressive Resources as set out in Note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements. Therefore, the financial results of Aggressive
Resources after the date of acquisition was consolidated into the Group
consolidated financial statements accordingly.

SELEMEE B ()
BEERRIE (§)
Byt

(i)

(iii)

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

BHRISAGSEESERERHEEFEYZ
BN ZHEAERHEEZRMNBEARZEBE
ZEUAR LA B R - IRIBFE B SR E £
F1H ZERELHRIERAELE VB
RAERERGA M BERRARK

AEEEEREERGSHNNHERREEEES
[RA R R &5 B RS IARHEE X AR A E 250%
AR #E o o1 720174 K2018F 12 A31H A%
EEERFARETHEBEXEEBERAE225%
B MEE2EMNBRARAZGHEKEERRES
RARBIFRARSGSHHAREEEEEFR
ARRRZGEIRSARKEERRAAKTZ
50% A% 1

15 5 Aggressive Resources Limited R20164F 25 &
ZEEHZ BARNASEERBE2017F K
2018F12A31H I FFE 2 B mFlE LD
711 £10,000,0007% 7T &% 11,000,000/ 7t ° L E =
RAE FIERETHIABKRREZ AT EEBMK
TEHM AmAREASEERRAR-

X 4F + Aggressive Resourcesi) B 7% & 17 4R
EARERAEE -REAAEEIRERSE 0
FE R ET YR B 1 5 B0 16 SR (2 8 5 Aggressive
Resources#) £t A 122 fl # o RF A N & B U E
Aggressive Resourcesgh N0% JAE (#RARE BT
TR I 5E48) [t - Aggressive ResourcesfE
WiE A BN IS BB A ARERSE
MR A IR o

205



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &= & Bf 75 R &R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 18. AELEER FEW  (FER)
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) JOINT SELERIE(H)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)
AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ERMELFEXRZEELENST
JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY MBEE
MATERIAL
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FTABT
The Group’s share of profits for the year REBOEF E =7 19,955 19,407
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEED(EEEEM
income for the year 2HEBA (2,763) 5,010
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEESEFEEEH
income for the year U A 42%8 17,192 24,417
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FABT
Amounts due from joint ventures (Note /) FEU & & 1D SEFRIB (HaEi) 8,170 =
Amounts due to joint ventures (Note ii) BT & & EEFRIE (HaEi) - (4,825)
Notes: Wizt -
The gross balance as at 31 December 2018 of approximately i s%ezmsilzafma@%af@n,\zxoq,ooﬁﬂ%%
HKD11,400,000 was unsecured, interest-bearing at 5% per annum, B ?1‘?@&5%5"‘%&@&%*{5@ WERR
and extended to be repayable within one year from the end of the RBEAR—FNEE R

reporting period; and

i. The balance as at 31 December 2017 was unsecured, interest-free i. 3554\2017%12‘5315 RAE R A AR B R
and repayable on demand. RERERERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

19. BEREZELS HRTFHED
¥ FEWEE SR RIR

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE FROM AN

ASSOCIATE
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET TATT
Interest in an associate B D2 7S _ _
Loan to an associate (Note) BERTHMECE (MiE) = 5,996
= 5,996

HaE: BRT-HBECEREBRBERAHRINE
FHAEMERER - R20174128318 - B3
& FE#94,197,00078 TTIE F 7 £5.4%5T B K #4
RE#)1,799,000/8 7T A TET B o R EIRIRINE S
TSRS A5 1% - AEEIRER 2 KA

Note: The loan to an associate was unsecured and repayable upon mutual
agreement between both parties. As at 31 December 2017, the loan
amount of approximately HKD4,197,000 bears an interest at 5.4% per
annum and the remaining balance of approximately HKD1,799,000

was non-interest bearing. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the

Group recognised a loss allowance for the year against the loan to an
associate, measured at an amount equal to life-time expected credit
loss, of approximately HKD3,670,000, taking into account of the share
of loss of an associate of approximately HKD2,326,000 recognised

during the year.

Detail of the Group’s interest in an associate is as follows:

EEBRATERERT —HBELERNEF

R B 1R 403,670,0008 T * &
AT RN — R =0

BITe

st RF

¥ 518 492,326,000

AEBRBEREZERFBNT:

Place of Proportion of ownership Principal place
Associate incorporation Class of share interest held by the Group Principal activities  of business
XEEREN
BELE at i 2 iy &R BEEEGE AL TEED TEERIE
2018 2017
Just Dawn Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 30% 30%  Investment holding  The British
EBEUHS LB REZR Virgin Islands
EEELRS

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO
AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

AGGREGATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

19. BIEREZELS HRTFHED
I REWENE S ERIE (4])

BERMESLEIEEXZEELEMEET

ASSOCIATE THAT IS NOT INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL BiEE#
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
Fi#&T TAT
The Group’s share of loss for the year AEBEDIEFEER (2,326) =
Amount due from an associate (Note) JE Uk Bt & (> ZEZRIA (fERE) 35,343 27912

Note: The balances as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 were unsecured, KraE: 20174 K2018F 12831 H Mt 58 A E IR
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. Upon the initial AR RBERERER - NERENE S
adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group recognised a loss allowance for B SRR Bk 1% NERBIRE 2 HITEE
the year against the amount due from an associate, measured at EEBEAT S5 e — RS S EHER
an amount equal to life-time expected credit loss, of approximately FRREREIEREH1,761,00077T - T E 5
HKD1,761,000, due to the loss-making situation of the associate for BEFANRREEMREE-
the year.

20. GOODWILL 20. &
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET THET
At 1 January R1A1H 33,796 35,590
Acquired through business combination FHIRETEE FHIE
(Note 48) (Ht:t48) 113,705 =
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary A E BB A A
R bR R - (1,794)

At 31 December M12A31H 147,501 33,796

Accumulated impairment losses: ZitiREEX

At 1 January and 31 December M1A1B Kk12A31H - =

208
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 20. 2 ()
During the year, the Group acquired the remaining 40% RER A5 B Uk B Aggressive Resources
equity interest of Aggressive Resources as detailed in Note BRTA0% [ HE - FEIB N RS M IS K T 5
48 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group 48 - AFN  AEEMKE £EEREER
recognise a goodwill of approximately HKD113,705,000 fREE A TS S HHER P B4 113,705,000
arising from such business combination of sourcing, BTN REFERRBESNER
manufacturing and trading of health supplement products & OFE £ W2 A #933,796,0007 7T ° 10
business during the year. In addition, there was a goodwill 2017 201812 A31 BB B &40 i
arising from the business combination of financial services ZHEZERGEEBM  ARWEHRE
business in prior year of approximately HKD33,796,000. TTRABERIE ©

The balances of goodwill as at 31 December 2017 and
2018 were allocated to their respective CGUs for impairment
testing at the end of reporting period.

For the purposes of goodwill impairment test of the e Rl AR D e ERER M
financial services segment, recoverable amount was Al E B TR EE B EER
determined based on a value in use calculation, H(OREFMEMSFEEE Mt
covering a detailed 5-year budget plan, plus an RZSFerEl A ARG R EHES
extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long- MRS mBADEE BABEXA
term growth rate subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a 19.5% ° FA20174F ;201812 HA31H
pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%. The key assumptions MBEEFEIFANEERIAT
used in the budget plan as at 31 December 2017 and
2018 are:
i.  Cash flows beyond the 5-years’ period are . HBRAFHENRSRIER
extrapolated using an estimated zero growth rate; BErTEERREE R
and
ii. The gross margins will be maintained at its i. MREESFEEFEIER  EF
current level throughout the 5-years’ budget KGR BRI
plan.
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20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of goodwill impairment test of
health supplement products, recoverable amount
was determined based on a value in use calculation,
covering a detailed 5-years’ budget plan, plus an
extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long
term growth rate subsequent to this 5-years’ plan, with
a pre-tax discount rate of 15.7%.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan as at 31
December 2018 are:

i. Cash flow beyond the b-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated 3% growth rate;
and

il The gross margins will be maintained at its
current level throughout the 5-years’ budget
plan.

The key assumptions used by the management have been
determined based on past performance and expectations
of future market development. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
businesses.

The directors concluded that both cash-generating units
demonstrate sufficient cash flows that justify the carrying
amounts of the goodwill, and hence no impairment of
goodwill is necessary as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

2 1O Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

20. BE (4§)

BREBEMOBAEBRENANS A
WESBEREBEEREENE ORE
HAMSFETBEG 8 i LR KOF AT
FREARMERXHEENRERA
B EEE  BBIREIR K B15.7% e

20184 12531 F Ky 3 31 812 7
tEEBRT

BBET MRS
A% ERERE R

i. REESFEESHE EH
KRR ANKFE -

EREMAEERRIRBBERARE
HARRTHERNBHETE -FTAKRERAER
RETAIAN R RRERERBARNE
R -

EERR ReELENRATELRHN
ReRnEERABEREE BILR20174F
K2018%12 431 H B/AR B E LR E



21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z

BRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

INVENTORIES 21. &
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET THET
Raw materials R R} 4,898 -
Work-in-progress T2 m 350 =
Finished goods SUAK @ 80,132 61,122
85,380 61,122

During the year, a net provision of allowance of approximately
HKD838,000 (2017: a net reversal of allowance of
approximately HKD13,608,000) of inventories has been
recognised in profit or loss, due to a decrease (2017: an
increase) in estimated net realisable value of certain goods
as a result of a change in consumer preferences and overall
market conditions. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, no
inventories was pledged as security for any banking facility.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RER RAEBEREFPEHFREEMISR
MEEBHNE TR mAT 2B FER
D (20175 3B M B R R T EHER
1% ¥ 4)838,000/% 7T (20174 : # K & [
JFEAA)13,608,000/% 7T ) ° 720174 %2018
FI2A31H ¥ EBWFEEERUARS
ERITRE

22. B 5 R H i FEUBRFR

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET THET
Trade receivables 5 EWER R
— Other than financial services segment — & & AR % 75 ZBBR S 75,818 52,645
— Financial services segment — e R ARE D F 8,048 6,514
Total trade receivables B 5 R R AARE 83,866 59,159
Less: loss allowances B R (29,450) (23,664)
54,416 35,495
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ EAEWER 514 &
TETRIE 467,152 119,173
Less: loss allowances W EEERE
— Other receivables —H fib fE UL BR 5k (7,974) (7,974)
459,178 111,199
Total trade and other receivables, B 5 REHMEWRRRBEE
net of loss allowance kR EERE 513,594 146,694
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM SEGMENTS OTHER
THAN FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days to trade customers of other than financial
services segment. Before accepting these customers, the
Group assess their historical credit loss experience, with
the adjustments of forward-looking factors specific to the
customers and economic environment for granting a relevant
level of credit limits to these customers. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES

22. B REMEWARR (&)

KB £RAR TS 5 8BRS B0 B 5 FE W AR
b

AEBREN FE0E0RMFEEERT
BHEF (TERERRBIBESL) - N
BEMREEPH AKEFNHBEEER
BRRE YREFNEEMNBERZRE
BRI L AR UKL AEEEREKX
FIREEP - ANEELEHRZFHEBRR
BEMER M-

KB £RR 5 88 0 B S U AR R

SEGMENT
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
THT T T
Trade receivables arising from the ordinary BHEE—MEBRBE
course of business of dealing in securities: EAXNE S RURR
— Cash clients —-REeRF 326 428
— Clearing house — &R = 1,371
— Others i 88 76
Trade receivables arising from the ordinary R TS E—REB
course of business of provision of: BREEANE SRR
— Money lending - 7,634 4,639
8,048 6,514
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the trade
receivables from dealing in securities shall be due on
the settlement dates of the respective securities contract
transactions. Although the Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over the trade receivables
arising from the ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities, but the Group is allowed to dispose of the
securities deposited by the customers with the Group to
settle any overdue balance. In view of the fact that such
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. For the trade
receivables from money lending business are due on the
agreed settlement dates, which are expected to be settled
within one year.

Further details of the Group’s credit risk management for
customers of non-financial and financial services segments
are set out in Note 38(B)(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables, net of loss allowances, presented based on the
invoice date or transaction date, where applicable, at the end
of the reporting period:

22. B REMEWARSR (48)

BRARBAFNEENIN EFEEEL
ZEGRUERFBREEFENR NG
ERARIHR -BHARKRERRESFEER
—REGBREEENESRUERFHAE
MERREEMERER BERNEEA G
EEPFERARENESFUEEEME
e - ENARERERTS ME T AE
BEF RUBEAEFEERR -HEEL
ZEGRYERT N HBEAE B HZIH
BN —FRESE -

AEEBIFEREERRE D BELHNE
ERBREENE - FHBEANGRSMBR
7= fiT 5E38(B)iii) °

RBERR AEBAREEBRXXFH
B (HER) SEEZIME ZRKRFRT
FREEEEOREDTOT

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’'000

TF#IT T

0 to 30 days 0ZE30X 27,780 13,335
31 to 60 days 31E60K 7,216 5,149
61 to 90 days 61Z90K 2,407 2,101
Over 90 days 90K 17,013 14,910
54,416 35,495
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHMEWIRRR (&)

(CONTINUED)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

H i EUR AR E B R EEF T

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
TF#IT FH&IT
At beginning of year under HKAS 39 BB LERIE395R )

FHME 23,664 23,664

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 BSR4 2RI ZE99E /Y
AL 4,098 -
At beginning of year (adjusted) REF (FHEE) 27,762 23,664
Impairment losses E e E 1,688 =
At end of year RER 29,450 23,664

As detailed in Note 2(A)A(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has measured the loss allowance of
trade receivables by using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
as of 1 January 2018 by assuming all of the customers
shared a similar credit risk characteristic under the life-time
ECLs calculation. Provision matrix is used to measure the
expected credit loss of trade receivables. The default rates
are based on the past due days by grouping of customers in
various segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off in full if past due more than 180 days and are
not subject to enforcement activity. The Group recognised
loss allowances of approximately HKD29,450,000 as at 31
December 2018 according to the result of ECL calculation.
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BANAR G B 75 3R IR T s 2(A) A FT sl + AR
EER2018F1A1BEFERE B EHRE
ERIFESFR LT A= E 2 KR
EBERE ERBRIMEEPRHTER
EEBESFEETHEERRFEED -
AEBHEARGBREESEE HERKERTN
EHEEEE - BENXRDEREFEUE
BEXNZESBEFHERINEAREE
TE o AT ERM AR MELR EHERRE
BERASHERBIEE AR R
KRR BEARRTEROEE R FEER - —
TS - iME 2 R AR Fe BB iR 180K
ARSI IERR - BIF BRSO - X
20185 12A31H - AEEREEHREEE
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment of
trade receivables, which was measured based on incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39 was a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of approximately
HKD23,664,000 that was in a financial difficulty and expect
none of receivable is expected to be recovered.

22. B REMEWARSR (48)

M20174F12A31R - B 5 B R OB E &
BIRBEEE ST EREIRE T ELERE
EBBERAGE  TIRERRESR S E K
AR TR HE A B 40 23,664,000/ 7T - H /& H
5 B 765 PR e o T8 A 05 Wi (2] 8 MK PR K o

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’'000

FHT T

At beginning of year RE ) 7,974 4,077
Impairment losses B8R (E = 3,897
At end of the year RER 7,974 7,974

As mentioned in Note 2(A)A(ii), the ECLs of other receivables
are based on the 12-months ECLs that results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since its initial recognition, the loss allowance
will be based on life-time ECLs. When determining whether
the credit risk has been increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort, including both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment with forward-
looking information.

AN EE2(A) AT P R At - L At 8 U BR SR A
BHEEEERI2EARREEER
5 HRBAIREERE A MKRI2EA A%
EREENEM - AT - BYRERARE
B RRARIE N BEBEGSAR IR
HEEREARE-EETEERRA M
IRTEREE D NEE N N EEEE BN

ARRARAR 0FEEEAEBBEE
BRREMEEIEEENTEEREMLER
RS - It BIERHEIE AR -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHMEWIRRR (&)

(CONTINUED)

The loss allowance recognised above are related to debtors
that are slow in settlement and management assessed that
none of the balance is expected to be recovered. The gross
amount of such credit-impaired receivables is approximately
HKD7,974,000 and no additional loss allowance was
recognised upon the transition of HKFRS 9 as of 1 January
2018 and no further increase of loss allowance during the
year.

As at 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment of
other receivables, which was measured based on incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39 was an aggregate
provision for individually impaired debtors of approximately
HKD7,974,000 that was in a financial difficulty and none of
the receivables is expected to be recovered.
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tHRBEEREBEEFIREELENE
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23. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 23. REFRELHAEERZBR

FINANCING
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET FABT
Directors and their associates EENEBEAL 8,915 3,677
Other margin clients HEMRESRP 135,230 107,181
144,145 110,858

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable
on demand and carry interests ranging from Prime Rate to
Prime Rate plus 3% per annum in average. Margin clients
are required to pledge listed securities collateral to the
Group in order to obtain credit facilities for listed securities
trading. The amounts of credit facilities granted to them
are determined by the discounted market value of listed
securities accepted by the Group at a specified loan to
collateral ratio. Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a
margin call when the margin clients having to make good
the shortfall. At 31 December 2018, the total market value
of listed securities pledged as collaterals in respect of the
loans advanced to margin clients was approximately of
HKD570,105,000 (2017: HKD671,770,000). The Group
is allowed to dispose of the collateral in the settlements of
the customers’ obligations to maintain the agreed level of
margins and any other liabilities of the customers due to the
Group.

RUTRBESHETP 2 BFARERE
B ENIFREEENREZKEEN XM
FHEEI%FT R -RESEPARNAEH
EREMmESERRUARGELETESFEER
EERE BB ETERERRLERTH
MEFPZEERESRMAKBEMER
8 75 2 BE 3R T (B EEE o fiv B 8018 SR b X
HERESEHRN ERRESEFA
B ER - R2018512A31H - BN F
RESEFP ZEFMERERER AN L
T 7 % 42 {8 7 #9570,105,0007% 7t (2017
% :671,770,00087T) ° A E Al H R A
mABTTEPHFMERBRKFZEE
MBEEFPHERARE 2 EMEMAE-
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23.

24.

218

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 23. R FPREEHMEETRZER
FINANCING (CONTINUED) (#8)
No aging analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in BEERA ENRECHENESRME R
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging AT ES SR MU ERRRERTRES
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature BERP ZBARNERR ST EEEARE
of margin financing. Management has the responsibility AR A B s R R M E38(B) (i) FTig R E B A
to monitor the credit risk as specified in Note 38(B)(iii) to B BRI MR EENEREH® - EZRE
the consolidated financial statements and seek to maintain BBARR EERBTEKRAFZER
a strict control over the outstanding loan balances. After = URAIESHEE SAERER B
considering various factors, such as the financial strength, BERA EHZE2018F1A1H K20184F12
credit worthiness and past collection status, as well as HA3lB - ZEEBEFPHEERRIL EERE
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking gy o F bt - gA{E B iR E /1218 AT ER(E
information, management was of the opinion that there is EEETIEXN W ERREERE-
no significant change in credit risk of these customers as
of 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. Accordingly,
12-month ECLs were calculated for both dates, which were
immaterial and therefore no loss allowances were recognised.
LOANS RECEIVABLE 24. FEWERR
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFH#IT T
Secured BHER 172,888 253,132
Less: loss allowances B E (6,800) (16,000)
166,088 237,132

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the balances of loans
receivable were secured by charges over the borrowers’
properties and/or financial assets, mainly secured by Hong
Kong listed and unlisted securities, interest-bearing at 5%-
18% per annum, and repayable within one year from the
dates of advances to the borrowers.
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Customers giving rise to loans receivable are obliged to
settle the amounts according to the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Interest rates are offered based on the
assessment of a number of factors, including the borrowers’
creditworthiness, repayment abilities, market value of
collaterals and general economic trend.

IMPAIRMENT UNDER HKFRS 9 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The following is the movement of loss allowances of loans
receivable under HKFRS 9:

24. EKER (E)

FEWE R 2 &P ARBIRRM S 4 PTE R
BR-MEDRBEHZHRE ZFEME
R ERRBEERAZERRERE
N BERmAREBLEBS -

#ZF2018%12A31 H L EERIBEEE
B 75 4R &5 2 Bl 5595k 1Y iR (B

AT RBRBMBREENEREA NEEE
R ERBRENEE:

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT T

At beginning of year under HKAS 39 BB ST ERFEIRTH
F B 16,000 8,000

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 HRAEBY % HE %R

FOR A & 16,715 -
At beginning of year (adjusted) F9) (FAE) 32,715 8,000
Amount written off during the year REAMRN TR (32,715) -
Provision of impairment loss B R 6,800 8,000
At end of the year FR 6,800 16,000
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Note:

24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 24. FEWESR (48)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount of loans receivable and ERER R RE RIRE R ETHE
loss allowance under the stages of default are as follows: BEEI T :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEEE— PEER = PEER= 8%
(Note)
(K1)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FHT T T
Gross carrying amount as at M2018%1H1H
1 January 2018 RERHEE 129,012 - 124,120 253,132
Addition NE 19,363 - - 19,363
Disposal B2 - - (76,000) (76,000)
Repayment B (21,200) - (2,407) (23,607)
Gross carrying amount as at 7R2018F 12 A31H
31 December 2018 RERHEE 127,175 - 45,713 172,888
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEEE— PEER — PEER= #8Fn
(Note)
(K1)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT T T T
Loss allowance as at 7R2018F1H1H
1 January 2018 EsER A = = 32,715 32,715
Amount written off during RERMIRH S FE
the year - - (32,715) (32,715)
Provision of impairment loss R (B B 18 B A - = 6,300 6,300
Loss allowance as at 2018F12H31H
31 December 2018 ESER A = = 6,800 6,800

For the loans receivable classified as stage 1 of approximately
HKD127,175,000, there is a limited exposure where there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and not credit-
impaired as at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the loss allowances
are limited to 12-months ECLs and is immaterial to be recognised.
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Definition of stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3 are as below:

Stage 1: Exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon origination,
the portion of the life-time ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired, a life-time ECL (i.e.
reflecting the remaining life-time of the financial assets) is recognised.

Stage 3: Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
have occurred. For exposures that have become credit-impaired, a life-time
ECL is recognised.

As at 31 December 2017, the loss allowances of
approximately HKD16,000,000 is related to a borrower of
which the expected realisable value of the collateral is not
sufficient to cover the respective outstanding balance. The
directors consider the fair values of loans receivable, which
are expected to be covered within one year are not materially
difference from their carrying amounts because the balances
have short maturity periods at inception.

24. BWER (&)

PR — R _REBR=MERNT:

PEER— iR IR (5 B R I S KR G I AR A
R IR ERORE - @ AARKRI2E A N EFEE
A REEE RN 2 PR E R B IRETHER

PR — : NYSAHER IR E R R ORI A o0 - (B30 S 3R
EERE SEAEPRAEEER (NRREHEE
BT Z ) ETHER -

PR = mBEESHBEEMRRESREER T
E0—ARZEEM AERBASRIEALREER
HE-MBELEEERE SERA2BEREREEET

7
Ao ©

M20174F12A31H » X — B AR AR
AERNERREES T EHRMEEER
T HEEAER%16,000,0008 T &
EERHEBUERD R FEERAAR—
FREENRENRFESEI AN —BE
HANIHEENE L ERAEYESEA
=&
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. BATFEINEGHEHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’'000

TF#IT T

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB ETMHRAE S 6,676 9,118

Unlisted equity investment outside Hong Kong & i B AMNE F IR AN IE & 65,777 =

72,453 9,118

Both equity securities listed in Hong Kong and unlisted REB LMHRAES KRB BRI IE

equity investment outside Hong Kong are classified as held ETRAEES D ERIFIEER - K12018

for trading. Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, FIAIRAHABAEY B HRELERFIRIE

they are classified as financial assets at fair value through ZEREEDEREATEAEINABRN

profit or loss. For the key inputs of valuation techniques SHMEE - BHAMGERMNNEZE AR
are disclosed in Note 38(C) to the consolidated financial B TR GR G B 75 3 3R I 5E38(C) °

statements.

e
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26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK  26. SIR&EIRITHES U RIRITEG R
BALANCES AND CASH R&

A bank deposit of approximately HKD3,418,000 (2017:
HKD3,597,000) classified as a non-current asset is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and carried a fixed
interest at 2.75% (2017: 4.75%) per annum. The use
of the bank deposit requires the consent from one of
the tenants of the Group’s outlet mall in Shenyang, the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, a bank deposit of
approximately HKD1,632,000 classified as a current
asset is denominated in New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”)
and carried a fixed interest at 3.08% per annum for the
use of the bank deposit requires the consent from the
landlord and suppliers, which was repaid during the
year.

A bank deposit of HKD20,000,000 (2017:
HKD20,000,000) classified as a non-current asset
is denominated in HKD and carried a fixed interest
at 0.3% (2017: 0.25%) per annum. The bank
deposit is to secure a banking facility amounting to
HKD170,000,000 (2017: HKD170,000,000).

A bank deposit of HKD11,396,000 classified as a non-
current asset is denominated in RMB and carried a
fixed interest at 1.95% per annum. The bank deposit
is pledged to secure a banking facility amounting to
RMB300,000,000 issued during the year.

DERIERBDEEZRITERLY
3,418,000/ 7T (20174 : 3,597,000
BT AARKEHE LEEFH X
2.75% (20174 : 4.75% )&t B - B
RITIF SRR A SR B R 5 B 2
WPz —RETAEE-

2017412 A318 D BRI EE
2 RITEF 411,632,000/ TTAF &
BaEHE - ABIE F H23.08% 515 - B
RERTEREXERHEEIRE M
BHAZEBEERFREE-

DPERIERBDEEZRITR
#20,000,000% Tt (20174 :
20,000,000/ 7T ) LA & Tt aHE » A
[& 7E F F %0.3% (20174 : 0.25% )
AE-BARTERDARERS
170,000,000/ JT B $R 17 &b & (2017
£ :170,000,000) °

DHERERDEEZRITHENX
11,396,000/ 7T IA A R EHE - LA
EF KL% E - BARITHERK
T3 A #24% % M 2 I /3300,000,000
WARBRITHE -
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26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

224

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies
arising from its normal course of business. The
Group classified the clients’ monies as bank balances
and cash held on behalf of customers under the
current asset and recognised the balances of the
trust accounts as amounts due to respective clients
on the grounds that the Group is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients’ monies as disclosed
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
The cash held on behalf of customers is restricted
and governed by the “Securities and Futures (Client
Money) Rules” under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. The Group is allowed to retain some or all
of the interest on the clients’ monies, but is not allowed
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank balances and
cash comprise of time deposits of approximately
HKD53,586,000 (2017: HKD nil), which carried at
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.57% to 2.22%
(2017: nil) per annum and was withdrawn upon
maturity during the year. The remaining balance
represents bank balances, which carried interest rates
at prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35%
(2017: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum during the year.
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26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK

BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the bank balances and
cash, which include a restricted bank deposit
denominated in RMB and held in the PRC’s banks
amounted to approximately HKD48,508,000 (2017:
HKD60,358,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the “Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations” and “Administration of
Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations” governed by the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange in the PRC, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
authorisation to conduct foreign exchange businesses.

27. ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) OF DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 4 April 2018, the Group signed a Conditional Co-
operation Agreement (the “Agreement”) to dispose of its
entire equity interests of two groups of subsidiaries (the
“Target Companies”) towards an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”). The Target Companies principally held
parcels of land located in Shenyang, the PRC, classified as
investment properties under construction as detailed in Note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 August 2018, the disposal was completed and
therefore, the related assets and liabilities of the Target
Companies, classified as being held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, were derecognised on the date of disposal.
The Group recognised a gain on disposal of approximately
HKD117,764,000 accordingly. Further details of the disposal
are set out in Note 47(A) to the consolidated financial
statements.

26. ZPRHFERITHER AR ERITEER R

He (8)

R2018F12A31H ' LA REEEHETE
FERITRAENRE MRITER (B2
& SR i #R 17 17 3R 4= 948,508,000
7 7T (20174F < 60,358,000/ 75) ° A
RERFETHERALBRRINE R
BPEBERIMNEEREREEZ[ b
EEERGA) | k[ HBEE - SERM
EEERTE) | NEEEFRBER
BREINEXBHRT HARER
BRINE o

27. yEBFEHERRNEE Aff

R20185F4 4B AEBREBR KT EE
g ([ZiHEl) NA—BFBILE=T
(TEXDHEERRENRBLAR ([BRL
ANDMEEE - BEAREEFAUR
TEEGNZE L (BEAEEZP IR
BEWME) AR BEHNR S M BRRM T
15 e

R2018F8A29F - AR E =M - H it
R2017F12A31 AR &R A MR KR D 1R
RFELENBEERAREBAEEREBER
HE BHIR I ERER - AR B R E H
S E49117,764,000/ 7T - B B H H &8
#E— PR BEN R E M MERMEL7(A) ©
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27. ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) OF DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(CONTINUED)

The following is the summarised financial information of
the Target Companies classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2017:

27. ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘l’ﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬂﬂﬂiﬁé/ BfR

AT A20176F12 A31 B @ AIEREH &8
BREAREGRAMBER:

31 December

2017
20174
12A31H
HKD'000
T

Assets &aE
Interests in joint venture BECE L 17,506
Investment properties "REYE 482,179
Amounts due from joint ventures JEM & & 13 FRIE 60
Other receivables H th i Y BR FX 3,597
Bank balances and cash RITHESR AR S 3,977
507,319

Liabilities Eff
Other payables H b B BR K 119,654
Tax payables FERFLIR 903
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAA & 11,745
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. B 5 & H 1t FE 1 AR =X

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Trade payables 2 5 T BRK

— other than financial services segment — & B AR TS 7 BB S 63,747 54,476
— financial services segment — e R RE D F 15,937 22 884
79,684 77,360

Other payables, temporary receipts, M E A BR K B B UK
accruals and receipts in advance FEETBRFUA B ER 152,224 97,001
Total trade and other payables B REMEMRRERE 231,908 174,361

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are

considered to be the same as their fair values due to their
short-term nature. The following is an aging analysis of trade
payables, other than financial services segment, presented

HREEHEE 85 REMEMERRA
FREERRSEQNFEERE -RRSH
R UABZEHHRZAH (HER) RE
25K E 2 BIRT 2 RSNV E 5 e

based on the invoice date or transaction date, where
applicable, at the end of the reporting period:

AR BRE AT AT -

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHETT FABT

0 to 30 days 0£30X 31,329 33,402
31 to 60 days 31E60K 20,517 12,582
61 to 90 days 61E90K 4,120 2,413
Over 90 days #90K 7,781 6,079
63,747 54,476

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that all of the outstanding trade payables are settled

within the credit timeframe to minimise the liquidity risk

as disclosed in Note 38(B)(iv) to the consolidated financial

statements.

BENTHEEH AWK - AEEEHTE
B 76 ELBR TR U LA MR PR B i R BB
BORMEFTHEINEENRANLEE  UHE
IR RBESRR (REE T HHREM
FH38B)IVHE) °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(CONTINUED)

28. B R HEMEMIRR (48)

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHETT FABT
Trade payables arising from the ordinary course B4 HE HHE £ BEEL
of business of dealing in securities (Note): BE SRR (Ha2)

— Cash clients —ReRP 11,919 17,912

— Margin clients —REEEF 3,813 4,972

— Clearing house —HEE AT 205 =

15,937 22,884

Note: The balances represent trade payables due to cash and margin clients Wit ZERBIEEGRERRBSTPREEMZ

2238

and clearing house in respect of segregated bank balances temporarily
received and held on behalf of clients and clearing house arise from
the business of dealing in securities as detailed in Note 26(B) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The settlement term of trade payables attributable to dealing in
securities is two trading days after the trade date. No aging analysis are
disclosed for such payables as, in the opinion of the directors, aging
analysis are not meaningful in the view of business nature of dealing in
securities and margin financing.
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets

and liabilities have been offset within the same entity. The

following table is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and

liabilities balances for financial reporting purposes:

29.

BIEBLIE
REAHBRREM2IINE RA—R

UM ERERGENECHBEEEN BES
FROMTUN R K -

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets REFIBE B (9,623) (10,349)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE A E 169,495 153,219
159,872 142,870

The following table shows the major deferred tax (assets)/

liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon

during the current and prior financial years:

AREERRNEERCHE (AE),/ B
R SRR TR RIB M R [
SBERMTE:

Revaluation of Undistributed Fair value

leasehold Revaluation Accelerated eamings of adjustment

landand  of investment tax PRC on intangible
buildings properties depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses assets Total

HETHE RENE MERE  FEKELT BREEZ
-1 Eff ik R REFH HEGR ATEESEE &g
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAT TAx TAT TAT TEz TAT TAT
At January 2017 RNI7E1A1R 739 9607 9506 7 (31,015) 7365 69472
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Vote 48) WE-HMERR (H:t48) - 20,664 - - - - 20,664
Transferred to liabilties held for sale (Moo 27) ~ ERERIELERR (H727) - (11,745) - - - - (11,745)
Charge to profit or loss Bill:p-ty = 146728 = = 1,824 = 148552
Charge to other comprehensive income MRERZERA 12316 - - - - - 12316
Exchange realignment EHE5 - 3566 45 - - = 3611
At 31 December 2017 R20174£12A31A 86,251 68,820 9,551 73 (29,191) 7,366 142,870
Acquired through business combination (Vote 48) &8 £ 54 6 B (#:248) - - - - - 8,307 8,307
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47) HERBAR (Hi47) - (18,940) - - - - (18.940)
Charge to profit or loss MeEE - 24,051 = - 745 = 24.7%
Charge to other comprehensive income MAERZERA 5328 - - - - - 5328
Exchange realignment EHE5 (22) (2,469) 2 = - - (2,489)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 91,557 71,462 9,553 73 (28,446) 15673 159,872
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD565,660,000 (2017: HKD524,737,000)
were available to offset against its future taxable profits.
Tax losses to the extent of approximately HKD172,400,000
(2017: HKD176,915,000) in respect of which deferred
tax assets has been recognised. The Group had utilised
deferred tax assets of approximately HKD745,000 (2017:
HKD1,824,000) and no written off of such balance was
incurred for both years. The Group’s management has
prepared a robust business plan based on an achievable
business model, and is confident that the Group will be able
to generate sufficient level of future taxable profits from the
entities in which the tax losses arose. As a result, the Group's
management believes that these tax losses will be utilised
in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax assets has been
recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of
approximately HKD393,260,000 (2017: HKD347,822,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams of the
remaining entities. All of the tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely except for those arising from the PRC
subsidiaries of approximately HKD225,345,000 (2017:
HKD218,971,000) which may be carried forward for five
years.

Except for the balance of approximately HKD73,000
recognised as deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2017
and 2018, no deferred tax balance has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
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9. IEEHIA (&)

2018 12A318 A&EBE B A B H
TA &5 18 #49565,660,00058 7T (20174 :
524,737,0007% 7t ) A] f #K 85 F R 2R fE R AR
Sk Al o & B #9172,400,0005% 7T (20174 :
176,915,000/ 7T ) < B IE G 15 B B R A
BEMBEE -FA ANEEFREERE
& EE #49745,0007% 7T (20174F : 1,824,0007%
7L ) B bt BN AL B HT A W 4F S T A A AE B
R-AEEERECREITZEBER
RE—MBRZEBHERBEASRER
REERABEEBCZEERELAREK
FZRRERTE - At - ARBERE
HEZEBEBSNARAREEA A
RBTEETAFERRRNBFEBE K
I Ak 84 T AR B) A A TR /&5 18 £9393,260,000
7T (20174F : 347,822,000/8 7T ) FERIRIE
MEEAE-FMAEREBENERALE
MZEREFEAMNBARNYAAERF
#9548 1§95 18 49225,345,00078 7t (20174
218,971,000 7z ) BIlBR 5]

BRA20174F KX20185F 12 31 B R AR A
73,0008 TTARIER AR ESN A B &
A ELAE R B AR ST A B B 1 B O R B L &
PiTRE S O TRAN A BE SRR AE TR IR A5 82 T A
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30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. SRITER

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
TF#IT T
Current T
Carrying amounts of variable interest-rate bank R —FREF BT ERH
borrowings that are repayable within one year:  #R1T & BRE (& :
— secured — B 307,026 732,063
Non-current FEiRED
Carrying amounts of secured variable interest-  ZB{& ;% &) Fl| & &) 2 K 4
rate bank borrowings that are repayable: RITE A BREE :
— more than one year, but not exceeding —ZR1IFERBB2F
two years 207,714 -
— more than two years, but not exceeding — % A2 B KRB IBSF
five years 766,314 424,864
974,028 424,864
1,281,054 1,156,927

The Group has variable interest-rate bank borrowings which
carried at interest-rates ranging from approximately 2.38% to
5.94% (2017: 2.69% to 9.20%) per annum. The weighted
average effective interest-rate of the Group’s bank borrowings
charged during the year is approximately 4.0% (2017:
4.13%) per annum.

At the end of reporting period, a total balance of bank
borrowings of approximately HKD1,043,089,000 (2017:
HKD493,608,000) contain repayment on demand clauses
in the underlying banking facility letters, which the banks
have issued supplementary agreements provided that the
Group can be waived of such unconditional rights to demand
repayments at any point of time by the banks, and therefore,
such liabilities are classified as its non-current liabilities
according to their agreed repayment terms.

AEEHRITERMAZHEE - T2
F 702.38%%5.94% (20174 : & F2.69%
£9.20% ) - REBIRITERZ B RINEF
BFENEL #/4.0% (20175 :4.13% ) °

RBEEHR RTEREBRLED
1,043,089,0007% 7t (20174 : 493,608,000
ABIL) AERRIRTTRVE N B 2 RERER
R SRITEUL B BT B8
EAKE A RRTREARERREARE
SR FRH) AR HER - BRI F 0 E
BRI ZFREIERERBEE-
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30. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, there is remaining undrawn
borrowing facilities of approximately HKD128,355,000
(2017: HKD nil) were available for the usage of future
operating activities and to settle capital commitments.
All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial
position ratios or operating cash flows, which are commonly
found in the lending arrangements of recognised financial
institutions. If the Group breaches the covenants, the related
balances of bank borrowings would become repayment on
demand. Since the Group's management regularly monitors
its compliance of these covenants, is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the term loans and does not
consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its sole
discretion to demand repayment. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
38(B)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had pledged certain of its leasehold land and
buildings, completed investment properties, prepaid lease
payments and restricted bank deposits, as set out in
Notes 14, 15, 16 and 26(A) to the consolidated financial
statements, with carrying amounts of approximately
HKD273,000,000, HKD1,305,971,000, HKD281,470,000
and HKD31,396,000 (2017: HKD257,000,000,
HKD1,351,747,000, HKD303,944,000 and
HKD20,000,000) respectively, to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group of approximately HKD1,281,054,000
(2017: HKD1,156,927,000).
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30. SRITER (&)

M2018512 A31H » 88 T £9128,355,000/%
TE (20174 + T3 ) #) 4 5K SR ER #0 fE SR
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R EREER SR RAB RS LA
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EREE - N AEEEEE T HE R
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T HR B R FTET I8 B B B e R R 1T A
TRITHER R MG RESER A&
FEERRDELARNE—SFE B
Bt 2 B 90 5% B EE38(B) ) -

BMAnER A M MR M EELS 15 ~ 16 )226(A)
e AKEEERETHELHRET
BERTIRENE BANHEERBARZ RS
RITER (BREE D 5 #) 4273,000,000/8
7T ~ 1,305,971,000/% 7T ~ 281,470,000/ 7T
31,396,000/ 7t (20174 : 257,000,000
77T+ 1,351,747,0007% 7T ~ 303,944,0007%
7 520,000,000/ 7T) ) * AERE F A&
B ER1T B & 491,281,054,000/% 7T (2017
£ :1,156,927,000/ 7T) °
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31. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE

31. BEfREHEE

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
THT T
Total minimum lease payments: RIEFAEX(F48E:

Due within one year R —F R EI 149 =
Due in the second to fifth years R-_ERFENE 582 =
731 -
Future finance charges on finance lease BEHEEREFHERAS (80) -
Present value of finance lease liabilities BEHEEAENRE 651 =

Present value of minimum lease payments: RREEREMIRE:
Due within one year R—FRE 120 =
Due in the second to fifth years RE-—ZFRFIH 531 =
651 -
Less: Portion classified as current liabilities WD EARBAEBENID (120) -
Non-current portion EMBNER D 531 =

FEREFRAS 2018F E#HE
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31.

32.

234

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 31. FEfIRAEFEE (&)
The Group has entered into a finance lease for an item of FRN - AEEEHYE  BEREREEEE]
property, plant and equipment during the year. At the end VRERE NEMERE  AEEGER
of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the ENHHERFREFREREEEER
leased item at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower TEEMNERBEMEENEE KREE
than the fair value of the leased asset at the end of the lease IR ERIETER B AT -
for it to be reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease,
that the option is exercised.
The finance lease payable bore interest at fixed interest FET R E TR E 1R E E FIEETE - 20184
rate with effective interest rate as at 31 December 2018 at 12A31EMERFERNER2.5% - NEE fE
2.5% per annum. The effective interest rate of the Group’s NREHENERMNEEN GRS M HHRE
finance lease payable was set out in Note 38(B)(iv) to the B 5E38(B)(iv) ©
consolidated financial statements.
Finance lease payable is effectively secured by the ENREREER ERABEEEERR
underlying asset as the right to the leased asset would be RERMASBEER HEEENE
reverted to the lessor in the event of default of repayment by FGEH THEA -
the Group.
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 32. FE{+—EIRAEE A T RIE
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
TF#T T T
Balance at 31 December 12 A31 B 44 10,541 =

The amount was due to a company controlled by Mr.
Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”), a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the
above balance was unsecured, interest-free and without fixed
term of repayment.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. g&X
Number of Nominal
shares value
BineE m{E
(‘000) HKD’000
(Fr) TAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each (2017: R E{EO. 108 T /Y
HKDO.10 each) ZER (2017 -
AR EEO. 10 T )
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 R20179F1A1H - 20174 &
and 31 December 2018 201812 H31H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each (2017: AR EEO. 108 T /Y
HKDO.10 each) B (2017 -
R EEO. 105 T )
At 1 January 2017 MR2017F1A1H 2,705,754 270,575
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (Note i) UgB& IEIR R 25 (it ati) 250,000 25,000
Exercise of warrants (Note ii) T RARRERE (M atii) 58 6
At 31 December 2017 R2017412H31H 2,955,812 295,581
Exercise of warrants (Note ii) T RARRERE (Hai) 3,222 322
Exercise of share options (Note i) TT{ERERRAE (KT a2 ) 15,000 1,500
At 31 December 2018 2018412 H31H 2,974,034 297,403
Notes: Mt -

(i)

(ii)

In the prior year, the Group acquired the remaining equity interest
of Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited and was required to settle the
consideration at the completion date as to issue 250,000,000 shares
of the Company to the purchaser, Goldsilk Capital Limited, which the
balance of HKD25,000,000 was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately HKD114,649,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

During the year, the qualifying shareholders of the Company exercised
their rights on the bonus issue of warrants, on the basis of, one warrant
for every five shares held. As a result, the balances of approximately
HKD322,000 and HKD2,899,000 (2017: HKD6,000 and HKD52,000)
were credited to share capital and share premium account
respectively.

(i)

(if)

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

RAT—FZ - AL E U EGiant Eagle Enterprises
LimitedZ 88 T A% # & ZER 525K B Bt R B 7
Goldsilk Capital LimitedZ77250,000,000/% 7~ 2
AR EE A (E - E o £8225,000,000/8 70 T
AR J 45 46 #49114,649,00058 7T Jh 5t A B 1 ¥4
g

REE  ARAEERBREIETHH ARBG
B —DRIREE 2 EEITHEHBITARNRRKR
HEFE o A It » 45 #2322,0007% 7T }.2,899,000/% 7T
(2017: 6,0007% 7T % 52,000/ 7T ) T3 % BlaT AR
R EER
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g5t

34.

el

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii) During the year, the share options were exercised to subscribe for
15,000,000 (2017: nil) ordinary shares of the Company at a cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HKD12,300,000
(2017: nil), of which HKD1,500,000 (2017: nil) was credited to
share capital and the balance of approximately HKD12,848,000
(2017: nil) was credited to the share premium account. An amount
of approximately HKD1,024,000 (2017: nil) was transferred from the
share option reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options.

(iv) All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with then existing
shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company. The Scheme aims to encourage participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. All directors, full-time employees and any other
persons who, at the sole discretion of the board of directors,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The Company may renew
this 10% limit with shareholders” approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that
participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved by
the board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the
date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.
During the year, no share option (2017: 21,000,000) was
granted to certain eligible individuals under the Scheme,
subject to acceptance by them. As at 31 December 2017,
the share option shall entitle them to subscribe for a total
of 21,000,000 new shares of HKDO.10 each of the share
capital of the Company, at an exercise price of HKDO0.82,
in which 6,000,000 new shares are exercisable from 18
September 2017 to 17 September 2018 for the directors.

34. FEIRHERTEI (&)

BROEEARRBIBRILE  ARARAITER
A% AT Bl AR E A AR 1 B R A 0 BB AL
AEMRTE2EENERE (REETT
8 R M ARTTRERBE A ) B B 317 Sl T3
TTRIR D BB E 128 A B AT AT 2
HARREHITREL% ©

AR BITEMNRHREHEANRRERD
FRHEE Lt IR M BREHEREE B E
TNERI0OFEAEm - R HBRER - AR
BRI R] BB AR I AT L AT B B R B U &%
RHR - AREREERENR TR 28
EARBARREEREZNNTNTER
HEFARARZZEZZ MBAERE
P HE B A< SRR L.00/8 7T

RRBRITEBIAER K T TR R
BESMER (ABSERE) ORELEH
HHEIINBZATHENEARERNAR
BRI E ¢ ()R EEE K B HIAT#05(E
EXRAFIINBRPITENET HRERD
ARRBRAD FHWHE : R(iDAR B
RELEHNEE RBEAHEFTEN
BRERLBRETSEEEBAE-

R ZIE 8 B R AT 10E F1& - B
BREABEZEERL -FA AE
ERIBERESTE WL BREER AL
RO EERE(EEESEST) (2017
21,000,00017 & Az #) (2017 : 21,000,000
DERKE) HE2017F12A318 - &
AR T HENOB LITHEERE L
21,000,0008% A5 A AR A Z AR E E0. 1074
JL 2 FTR% » H R E = #96,000,0000% 37 A% A]
H20174F9 A18H 20189 A17B 171E
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the movements of the share options granted under

34.

RERRHESTEI (&)

MBI ZE2018F12A31IR IEFER - RIEZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 were FrEIR RIS E BT
as follows:
Number of share options
fERENE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2018 the year the year the year 2018
120185 120185
BRITER 1R18 12A318
28\t BFEH 8 (#&7) HRTTE RERRH RERTTHE REAKH R T
Directors 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 082 6,000,000 - (3,000,000) (3,000,000) =
%
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 082 15,000,000 - (12,000,000) (3,000,000) =
E&
21,000,000 - (15,000,000) (6,000,000) =
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) 0.82 N/A 0.82 0.82 N/A
METHTEE (BT @R TR

Details of the movements of the share options granted under

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 were

REZE2017F12R318 IEFE R RIEZ
AR EREESFEWT

as follows:
Number of share options
fERENE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2017 the year the year the year 2017
20174 120175
BRTER 1A18 12A31H
28\t BTEH fHE8 (#&7) HRITE RERRH RERTTHE RERKH R AT
Directors 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 082 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
%
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 082 - 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
8
- 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKD) N/A 0.82 N/A N/A 0.82
MELHEE (8) TER TR TR
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Upon the resignation of a director and expiry of exercise
period, the outstanding share options not yet exercised have
been lapsed in full on the maturity date of share options. No
share options was remained exercisable as at 31 December
2018. As at 31 December 2017, the number and weighted
average exercise price of share options exercisable were
21,000,000 and HKDO.82 respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of reporting period is none
(2017: 10 months) and the weighted average share price at
the date of exercise of share options exercised during the
year was HKDO.82 (2017: HKDO0.82).

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2018 was approximately
892,210,000 shares without any share options that had been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised (2017: 886,743,000
shares, included a total number of 21,000,000 share options
that had been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 30% (2017: 29.3%) of the issued share
capital of the Company at 31 December 2018.

The estimated fair value of the share options granted on 18
September 2017 was approximately HKDO.068 per share
option. The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.82
Exercise price HKDO0.82
Expected volatility 21.207%
Expected life 1 year
Risk-free rate 0.4494%
Expected dividend yield 0.4872%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

34. FEIRHERTEI (&)

REZFHERITERERE - HATTENS
BITRRENBEREIHE 28RN
2018F12A31 8  BEEMBAER] T1T6E - R
20175F12A31H ' A FAT{R BB AR AV 8L B
K pniEF577E(E 7 Al 4321,000,0005:0.82
BT

TR HASR 8 AR T BB AR A A0 AN AE S 19 30
SRAEFHEQER (2017F : 108 A) - %
FNBITEBRETTE B M MNEF R
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20184612 A31 8 1R 1% B8 AR 4 51 & AT 4
AT IR (D 4B B4 £892,210,0000% A% 15

I 48 B 4% 18 18 R 2R sk 1T {5 A 8 AR 4
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1B 14 R 25 303k 17 2 #921,000,00017 B A%
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20179 18R EMABRA LR HER
RGP EEN RS BE0.068%E
T AHEENER ZXBENE N T —§F
BATRAFTH - A EA B AR T -

- duul= - Ol Ma ] 0.82/8 7T
TE(E 0.82/8 7T
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The share options granted to employees on 18 September
2017 were subject to the following vesting schedule:

34. FEIRHERTEI (&)

R2017F9 A 18AE T B B HMB XA LA
THBRERRR

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
RZ T {T{E
Vesting schedule HEREER R E
From 18 March 2018 to 17 September 2018 2018F3H18H £2018F9A17H 100%

No vesting conditions were set for the share options granted
to directors on 18 September 2017.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the relevant vesting
periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately
HKD328,000 (2017: HKD1,102,000) for the year ended 31
December 2018 in relation to the fair value of share options,
at HKDO.068 per share option granted by the Company on
18 September 2017.
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35. BONUS WARRANTS

On 18 March 2016, the Company announced a proposed
bonus issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every
five shares held on the record date (i.e. 17 June 2016). On
6 July 2016, approximately 539,733,000 units of warrants
were issued. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe in cash for one share at the initial subscription
price of HKD1.00 per share (subject to adjustments). The
warrants are exercisable at any time during a period of three
years commencing from the date of issue of the warrants (i.e.
6 July 2016). Details of the bonus warrants are disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 29 April 2016.

During the year, the qualifying shareholders of the Company
exercised a total number of approximately 3,222,000 units
(2017: 58,000 units) of warrants at the exercise price
of HKD1.00 per warrant, and accordingly approximately
3,222,000 ordinary shares (2017: 58,000 ordinary shares)
were issued by the Company. As a result, approximately
HKD322,000 and HKD2,900,000 (2017: HKD6,000 and
HKD52,000) were credited to share capital and share
premium accounts respectively.

35. AL #I52 ix#EsE

201653 A18A @ AR B AERBIZN T
8% B 8 (BN20165F6 A 178 ) &4 A A AL
MR —MHRRIEE 2 BEFITAF R
e 25 0 FA20164E7 A6 H + £7539,733,00013
RBEBERT - BHRAREZRTES
BARFURSRE—BREG VT RE
BERAER1.00E T (7] TAE) - RIREE
AR 31T HHI2016F7 A6 H 5 = F A kE
RITE - BRAALFIRIRIEE ZFBRAR
7] B HA2016F4 A298 2 B K EE -

RER RARAFBNEERRRRITEES
7 R HERE .00/ TTTfiE & $£493,222,000
5 (20174 : 58,00017 ) R AL #E 7 - B Lt -
AN E B 1T 493,222,0000% % @ Ak (2017
F : 58,0008% & @A) o F 1t - 49322,0007%
7T 52,900,000/ 7T (20174 : 6,000/ 7T K&
52,000/ 7T ) B 7 Bl &t AR K 40 Ut (B
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36. RESERVES 36. &
Share
Share Contributed options Retained
Company premium surplus reserve profits Total
FATF i (8 BBRS  RRERE BERH @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTAL BT TAT FTAET T
At 1 January 2017 R20175181R 942,075 586,774 - 188340 1,717,189
Acquisition of non-controlling interests M8 3E 1A% # 25 114,633 = = = 114,633
Share-based payment PARR AR X £+ - = 1,102 = 1,102
Exercise of warrants (Note 35) 1TERBRAER (f77235) 52 - - - 52
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (28,717) (28,717)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRE (A7£12) = = - (11,232) (11,232)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017412 8318 K
1 January 2018 (Note) 2018F1A18 (#7:2) 1,056,760 586,774 1,102 148,391 1,793,027
Share-based payment PARR 1 32 A5 - = 328 = 328
Exercise of warrants (Note 35) TERMRAERE (H77235) 2,900 - - = 2,900
Exercise of share options (Note 34)  1T{E BBRRAE (#f7#34) 11,824 = (1,024) - 10,800
Lapse of share options (Note 34) B ER (A1:234) - - (406) 406 -
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (40,854) (40,854)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BERRE (Hi7t12) - - = (14,810) (14,810)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 1,071,484 586,774 - 93,133 1,751,391
Note: The effect of the initial application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the KiiE: BEEBEEENERE BT IEREERFESR

opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January 2018 was assessed
by management and no adjustment is required.

REBIBRE LR F 1SR EN2018F1A1R
Bt Bsnng e BEAELAER
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36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserves within owners’ equity of the Group:

Reserve

Description and purpose

Contributed
surplus

Share premium

Properties
revaluation
reserve

Contributed surplus of approximately
HKD63,561,000 represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995. The remaining balance
of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital
reduction in 2012 pursuant to which
the par value of each existing share if
HKDO0.50 each in the issued capital of
the Company were reduced by HKDO0.40
each.

Amount subscribed for share capital in
excess of nominal value, and any excess
of consideration shares issued over the
carrying amount of the acquired non-
controlling interests.

Gains/(losses) arising on the revaluation
of properties (other than investment
properties). The balance of this reserve is
wholly undistributable.

36. f#fE (4])
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HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

37.

244

Reserve Description and purpose

Share options Cumulative expenses recognised on

reserve the granting of share options to the
employee over the vesting period.

Translation Gains/(losses) arising on retranslating

reserve the net assets of foreign operations into

presentation currency.
Statutory reserve  Appropriation of profits of the Taiwanese
subsidiary to non-distributable reserve
fund account as required by the relevant
Taiwan statue.
Retained profits Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserve are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all of the
entities within the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group’s overall strategy and debt-to-equity
ratio remain similar from prior financial year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of net
debts-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debts, which includes trade and other payables, amounts
due to joint ventures and a related party, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, bank overdrafts, loan from non-controlling
interests and finance lease payables after deductions of cash
and cash equivalents, which include bank balances and
cash and restricted bank deposits, and all components of
equity attributable to the owners of the Company, comprised
of issued share capital and various reserves.
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue of new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raising new debts or

redemption of existing debts.

The net debt-to-equity ratios as at 31 December 2017 and

37. EXEIREE (§])

BB

EETHENAREERRE -FREHN
M-y EFGERERTHBNER
PN F B i o 7S 5% [ 55 58 58 78 2 1) BRI
CERITHTAR - MR [ A AN e BT
MEBRBEORAES FTHEERER
RHE -

M2017 %2018 12 31 H IFFEF B E#

2018 were as follows: b RERITR
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Trade and other payables B 5 M E M EERR 231,908 174,361
Amounts due to joint ventures & & EFRIE = 4,825
Amount due to a related party FEAS — B BEsE A B 3KIA 10,541 =
Finance lease payables ERNREREE 651 =
Bank borrowings RITER 1,281,054 1,156,927
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 6,461 -
Loan from non-controlling interests K E IR E R 9,249 600
Total debt BIERE 1,539,864 1,336,713
Less: A
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS (131,590) (137,326)
Restricted bank deposits SRAIRITER (34,814) (25,229)
Net debts BERE 1,373,460 1,174,158
Total equity attributable to the owners of RARVEE ANEMLER
the Company 2,570,828 2,543,867
Net debt-to-equity ratio FREERLEE 53% 46%

FEREFRAS 2018F E#HE
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

246

38. &RMTH

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) ZFETEER
The following table shows the carrying amount TRINEFHNR2018F1AIBHEXERE
and fair value of financial instruments included the B ISR E LB ESRFT OB RTE
financial assets and financial liabilities under the ETemTA(BEemEERS M
new classification and measurement under the initial BE)NERERAFEE:
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 as follows:
2018 2017
Carrying amount Fair value | Carrying amount Fair value
FREE AFEHE FEAE ATEE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTHT THT FiEx TiEr
Financial assets: SHEE:
At fair value through profit or loss: BATEIIAER:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — A& L 2 RAES 6,676 6,676 9,118 9,118
— Unlisted equity investment —BBENELTES 65,777 65,777 = =
outside Hong Kong BE
At amortised cost: RE A :
— Trade and other receivables —E 5 REtEUER 461,808  (Note) (%) 114556  (Note) (Hitit)
— Amounts due from joint ventures ~ —FEURA & (> E A 8,170  (Note) (H:t) - -
— Amount due from an associate — e & E A 35,343 (Note) (Hfit) 27912 (Note) (H1iE)
— Advances to customers in ~RETRELHBE 144,145  (Note) (HfzZ) 110,858  (Note) (HizF)
margin financing BP 2853
— Loans receivable ~ERER 166,088  (Note) (Hfit) 237,132 (Note) (H1i)
— Restricted bank deposits —XRANRITER 34,814  (Note) (Hiz) 25229  (Note) (H1:E)
- Bank balances and cash - RIOEBREAL (TRE 147,351  (Note) (Hf7t) 161,334 (Note) (HizE)
(excluding bank overdrafts) BTBEL)
Financial liabilities: SHERE:
At amortised cost: TR PR -
- Trade and other payables —B 5 REMREMIRR 216,059  (Note) (Hat) 169,715 (Note) (HizF)
— Amounts due to joint ventures -ERAERENRE - NA TiEH 4825 (Note) (fzt)
— Amount due to a related party — e — R A R FE 10,541  (Note) (Hzt) = NA T/
— Bank borrowings —RITEH 1,281,054  (Note) (H3t) 1,156,927  (Note) (fifit)
- Bank overdrafts —RITEX 6,461  (Note) (Hit) = NA TiEH
— Loan from non-controlling interests ~ — 3% B 3EE AR iE RS E 2K 9,249  (Note) (Hst) 600  (Note) (H1iz)
- Finance lease payable -ENRBERE 651  (Note) (Hfit) - NA T8 F
Note: The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the above Mizt: EERALMEHEERSHBENE

financial assets and financial liabilities approximated to their
fair value on the grounds that either of their maturity periods
are short or their effective interest rates for those interest-
bearing financial assets and financial liabilities as disclosed
in Note 38(B)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements
are approximated to the discount rates used to reflect the
credit risks of the borrowers or the Company as at the end of
reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s major financial instruments as defined
in Note 4(Q) to the consolidated financial statements
include financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/
(to) joint ventures, amount due from an associate,
advances to customers in margin financing, loans
receivable, restricted bank deposits, bank balances
and cash (net of bank overdrafts), trade and other
payables, amount due to a related party, bank
borrowings, bank overdrafts, loan from non-controlling
interests and finance lease payables.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity
price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
on these exposures regularly to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(i)  Foreign currency risk

Several principal subsidiaries of the Company
have foreign currencies denominated in terms
of their sales and purchases activities and
intercompany balance denominated other than
the functional currency of the Company, which
exposed the Group to foreign currency risk. As
at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group
has not entered into any derivative financial
instrument to hedge against such risk as in the
view of directors, the associated foreign currency
risk is not significant to the Group based on the
following sensitivity analysis.

38. £RT R (&)

FEENIZSRIA(EERES
MBHER M EAHQ) BRERZEAFED
ABSENEREE BEHREMEK
R U (B A& RERE
el — B & (B R FUR - RE TRE
TREFPZBR BRER ZR
BERTTER  |ITE R MRS (MR
RITEXRNFE) EHREME
TR BN — B R B 5K0E R
TEH  |RITEX RREIHERE R
EXkENRERE-

WEE R T AMNFBRARMER
B-HENEemTAEMAENRRBE
SR MXRER FEERR RE
AR REANERRE B EF
RBREBREINN T - EEETEH
EENEEILERR R EEE N
o PREUE E 15

(i) I
ARARMETEERB AR
HERBE RS R AAEAR
T3 AR 2 B 1 82 & B A SR S
BiHE S ANEEAZINER
i o R20174F 2018512 A31
B AEREYETERTES
BRTARETERRR ERE
RTXFESREIN  EFR
REEINERRE AN EEN S
WARER-
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B)

243

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)

38. £RT R (&)

crEREERERBER (8)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) I (&)
At the end of reporting period, the carrying RMEHR AR RTINS
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and (MBI AINNER (A TA
monetary liabilities of those subsidiaries that R% | HETBREATET] FHE
were denominated in a currency (i.e. “RMB’, MNERR) BENARERE
but excluding the foreign currency exposures in BERZEHBLARERAR
“USD”) other than the functional currency of the MBREELD T :
Company (“HKD”) were as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afs aE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT TABT TERT THT
RMB AR 36,833 30,776 9,678 15,987
Sensitivity analysis B E T
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation AEBEFEEATETL, BICE

in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign
currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged
to USD.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% decrease in HKD against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting the foreign currency risk internally
to key management personal and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only the outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities, with the adjustments arise from
their translation at the year-ended date, for a
5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year, net of tax, and retained profits, where
RMB strengthens 5% against HKD. For a 5%
weakening of RMB against HKD, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
of the Group, and the balances below would be

38. £RT R (&)

(i)

Ih I (4F)

BRI (B
TRFLARBHETHEAR
BHL%RELHEE - 5% RN
MAETEEEABERIMNER
RATAZBRELR KREXE
EBHINEEXSEBEEEESH 2
Al - BREDITERIEASNE
AHMECEXEREERAE I
TR A AR I T R 12 RS % 78 B
BRRE - T EBRTFAA
R KB TTIHES RS R TIL R
MEBRERMEN - EARER
B TRz (B5%EF - Bl A& B E
MEEHRBERRZEE AT
‘BB RARC

negative.
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Decrease in profit for the year, net of tax 5 RE AR 2 BB 12 (1,134) (617)

HEEBEABARAT 2018F EHE

249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= & Bf & R R M 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 12 A31H It & &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

250

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis was determined assuming
that the changes in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to each of the group entities;
exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at the end of reporting period, and that all
other variables, in particular the interest rates,
remained constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rate over the period until
the next annual reporting date. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each
of the group entities’ profit for the year measured
in their respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of reporting period for presentation
purpose. The analysis is performed on the same
basis in the prior financial year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed interest-rate bank deposits
and loans receivable. The directors consider the
Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk
is not significant as both interest-bearing bank
deposits and loans receivable are within short
maturity periods throughout the year.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits
and overdraft, advances from customers in
margin financing, bank borrowings and finance
lease payable. It is the Group’s policy to keep
certain bank deposits at floating rate of interest
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk
throughout the year.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) arising from
the Group’s HKD and USD denominated bank
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative financial instruments
at the end of reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of reporting period
were outstanding for the whole financial year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

38. £RT R (&)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the interest rates on bank deposits and
overdraft, and advances to customers in margin
financing were 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year,
net of tax, and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately HKD911,000
(2017: profit for the year increase/decrease
by approximately HKD1,042,000) attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on
variable-rate bank deposits and overdraft, and
advances to customers in margin financing. In
addition, if the interest rates on bank borrowings
and finance lease payables were 50 basis
points (2017: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year, net of tax, and
retained profits would decrease/increase by
approximately HKD5,351,000 (2017: profit for
the year decrease/increase by approximately
HKD4,830,000) attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on variable-rate bank
borrowings and finance lease payable.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables, advances
to customers in margin financing and loans
receivable. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management has delegated a team who is
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
on all customers who required individual credit
evaluations to ensure that follow-up actions
taken immediately to recover overdue debts.
To be specific, these evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, market value
of pledged collaterals, and taken into account
information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customers operate. Customers with balances
more than a reasonable period of past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted.

Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
for the balance of trade receivables. However,
the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debts at the end
of reporting period to ensure that adequate loss
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the
credit risk is significantly reduced.

38. £RT R (&)

(iii)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

254

(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Segments other than financial services segment
The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade receivables arise from the
individual characteristics of trade customers
operate in the segments other than financial
services segment was approximately 11% (2017:
26%) and 40% (2017: 63%) of total trade
receivables of these segments were due from
their largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These trade receivables were mainly
with counterparties with sounded credit standing
or with whom the Group had no default payment
history. The credit risk was limited because the
counterparties with good repayment history
and the default risk arise from the industry and
country, in which the trade customers operate,
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

Loss allowances calculation of trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all of the trade
receivables balances. As at 31 December 2018,
the loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined in the following provision matrix on
the basis of aging analysis as disclosed in Note
22 to the consolidated financial statements. The
expected credit losses below also incorporated
forward—looking information and groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e. by geographical region, customer
type and rating, and product or service type)
in calculation. The calculation also reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date
in calculation.

Annual Report 2018
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loss allowances calculation of trade receivables

38. £RT R (&)

(i) 1EEEEE (4)
B SRR R T E

(Continued) (#&)
Expected Gross Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEREEE k] E5E 1
(HKD’000) (HKD’000)
T T FET
Gross carrying amount of RIS KA B E
specific debtors 100% 23,664 23,664
Gross carrying amount B EENEL:!
excluding specific debtors 4R E
0-30 days 0£30H 0.1% 27,780 31
31-60 days 31&E60H 0.3% 7,216 24
61-90 days 61290H 1.7% 2,407 40
91-180 days 91%180H 7.4% 5,105 375
More than 180 days HBiE180H 30% 17,694 5,316
60,202 5,786
Total @ 83,866 29,450

Prior to 1 January 2018, for the balances of

trade receivables, the management perform

ongoing credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial

condition and does not require collateral from
the debtors on the outstanding balances. Based
on the expected recoverability and timing for

collection of the outstanding balances, the Group

maintains a provision for doubtful accounts

and actual losses incurred have been within

management’s expectations.

FR2018F1HA1IRA 2R B E
FRVRSRESRT = BEEESH
HEB AP EARRAETTHE
EERHE - XY EEREBAR
R AR E R A R R - E R
Tl AN 15 22 4 R B0 TR A AT W [l 14
KU B - AR 5= B SR R AR
B MERENERBRITEE
EREEHA-
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

o (s

(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services segment

Financial services segment has put in place
a well-established credit policy governing the
granting of credit limit to customers. Customers
were generally required to deposit their
securities, properties or other appropriate assets
with the Group as collateral to their borrowings.
The credit risks arise from the individual
characteristics of these customers are regularly
monitored with reference to the realisable values
of the collateral and individual credit evaluations
performed above. For the default risk of the
industry and country in which these customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent. For the receivables arise from
the clearing house is at a high credit standing
and the management does not expect the
counterparty will fail to meet its obligations.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to advances to customers in margin
financing and loans receivable of this segment
was 24% (2017: 20%) and 62% (2017: 61%)
of total receivables of this segment was due from
their largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These receivables were mainly arise
from the counterparties with sounded credit
standing or with whom the Group had security
over the borrower’s securities, properties or other
financial assets.

Details of credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk of the Group’s advances
to customers in margin financing and loans
receivable are set out in Notes 23 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 38. &R TH (%)

(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1SEEGE (%)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2018

Except for the loss allowances recognised
for the balances of loan to an associate and
amount due from an associate subject to life-
time ECL assessment set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements, the loss
allowances of other receivables, amounts due
from joint ventures calculated are limited under
12-months ECL calculation classified as stage 1
of ECL model. The credit risk on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash is limited
because they are placed with reputable banks
with external credit rating of at least Al assigned
by an international credit-rating agency.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017
The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprised of other receivables,
amounts due from joint ventures, loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate,
restricted bank deposit, bank balance and
cash, arises from default of the counterparties
were with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these financial instruments
as detailed in the respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

KB A ST B IR fh T BB
#2018 12A31HMKR XA
B X% ERPEE S 8

B b B R T Bt 2 1 3 % B UK B
BRFIRGHRIER R EIRR
w(XeHEREEBENG
(ERERE M B MRMEEL) PR
BRI REBEDBAEMEE
B E R [ By — T 1218 A & 848
EEBBRENE MR RR
EBREERERAEDERIA
TiERR - ZRRHIRITI AL IR
TRHERBESNHEERRIIE
R EREEFFRNEBRER
AR EEBLE TELOALINEER
ARV R IFRYIRTT ©

201741231 H R XE M
AEEEMERMEE (BEEM
FEUERTR - R A & (b ¥ FIE -
BT —RHBEE - ER—HE
BECERE IRHEITHE
FORTEBHEES) ZEER
BIERNEFBRELS B
AEBRERZSSMIAZE
EfE B RAERE M ®RE
B 3E o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

258

(iv) Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group'’s liquidity risk,
the Group’'s management regularly monitors
and maintains an optimal level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
which meets its liquidity requirement in the
short, medium and long term perspectives, and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
For the Group’s financial services segment, there
is a constant need of funding for the settlement
of securities transactions, margin financing and
loans to customers.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on their
agreed repayment terms. The table illustrated
below is based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities according to the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, for the bank borrowings with
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on their respective
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 38. &R TH (%)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &REREEBERBUR (&
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) FEELERE (4)
Liquidity and interest risk tables B ET RFF R
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 13 3-12 More than  undiscounted at
2018 20185 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2018
2018%
flEmE RENHS AH 123182

FHE  SRIER 13ER 312 BK-F BRLRESH REE
%  HKD'000  HKD'00  HKD'000 ~ HKD'OD  HKD'000  HKD'000
TR T FiEn FET FET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities FELBAR

Trade and other payables 85 RAEMER R - 216,059 - - - 216,059 216,059
Amount due to a related party e —FB%ARE - 10,541 - - - 10,541 10,541
Bank overdrafts RITEX 1.9 6,588 - - - 6,588 6,461
Bank borrowings FAER 4.0 6,170 7,032 34,658 1,342,962 1,390,822 1,281,054
Loan from non-controlling interests REFERERER 23 - - - 9,466 9,466 9,249
Finance lease payable ERBERE 25 12 37 100 582 731 651
239,370 7,069 34,758 1,353,010 1,634,207 1,524,015

On demand Carrying

Weighted or Total amount

average less than 13 312 More than  undiscounted at

2017 0175 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cashflows  31.12.2017
201745

MEmgE  REDAS AEE 1283182

FaE  SRUEAR 138  32BA  EZRN-F  RERAR BEfE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT TR T TR T TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities FELHAR

Trade and other payables 25 RABERNERR - 169,715 - - - 169,715 169,715
Amount due to joint ventures ENARLERE - 4,825 - - - 4825 48%
Bank borrowings FAER 413 160,187 6,347 24,663 1,053,271 1,244,968 1,156,927
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZER - - - = 600 600 600

334,727 6,847 24,663 1,063,871 1,420,108 1,332,067
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

260

38. £RT R (&)

Equity price risk (v) REEEERE
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values P AN {88 145 L B A2 46 R AN 48 0K
of financial assets at fair value through profit FRBLEXRGEMFAFE
or loss decrease as a result of changes in the FRAAR AR FEEIF LR
levels of equity indices and the market price of RAIEEMEBZLHMEHIRA
unlisted equity investment determined by the FTEEIABENEREER
independent professional valuer, Ascent Partners FEE T KA RS - 20174
Valuation Services Limited. The Group was K&2018%F12A31H @ A& E PR
exposed to equity price risk arising from equity EHORAERERRERE
securities listed in Hong Kong and unlisted equity B LR IR AT S5 RN S B
investment in the U.S. classified as financial FEMEAKE  EDB/EA
assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 FEEIABSNEREE-
December 2017 and 2018.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity TRINTAEE 2 RAREZ
to every 5% change in the fair values of the NFEBEHEREH 2 GRE
Group’s equity investments of which the directors MEBEBERABRAERENS
expect the future possible changes of financial BMEE (A EMEHRFTE
assets, with all other variables held constant and RAFHEABRAEZE) AR
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying BEHRZRABEE -
amounts at the end of reporting period.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in fair value before tax in equity
AFEEZ KBRERNZ #EEZEN
wm, (EL) S (GED) (ED)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% FHET FiET
2018 20184
Equity investment listed in B TR AR
Hong Kong EHH 5 334 =
Unlisted equity investment BBIFEINE LT
outside Hong Kong A& 5 3,289 =
2017 20174
Equity investment listed in B LT
Hong Kong % 72N 3 % 5 456 =
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The following tables represent details of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, restricted by enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar
agreements between the Group and Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”).

38. £RT R (&)

vi) HHEHEERLHMER

TREJAKEATHREZE
MEERSRAE (ZAEHIH

TZRFBE/BERFRN AR

BEERGREEMARARLRE
PR ) Z & 15

Financial assets subject to offsetting

ERgiira L]

Related amounts not offset

in the consolidated statement of

financial position

MERGEMBRRR
K2 BNLE
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the Financial
amount of  consolidated  consolidated instruments
recognised statement  statement of other Cash
financial of financial financial than cash collateral
assets position position collateral received  Net amount
REGEHHE
WREHESE REAME ReHfs
=5 B HRARENZ Wiz ElHE
SHEESE SHMAREE SRMEESH £MIA HRE )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TiEn THT TiEn TiEn T TiEn
At 31 December 2018 2018%12R31R
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBREEL
B SENIE 59,947 (59,947) - - - -
At 31 December 2017 1#2017412A318
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBREEZ
B RWE 9,782 (95,411) 1,371 - - 1,371

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

38. £RT R (&)

vi) HHEEHEERLHMER
(%)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

IFRHEZEMAR

Related amounts not offset in
the consolidated statement of
financial position

BERGEMBRAR
KRS
Gross
amount of
recognised  Net amount
financial of financial
assets liabilities
offsetin  presented in
the the Financial
Gross amount  consolidated  consolidated ~  instruments
of recognised statement statement other Cash
financial ~ of financial of financial than cash collateral
liabilities position position collateral received  Net amount
REAME
WARESE REEHE HeHAR
=35 RS RRR2IZ Wiz EkHE
SHARLE SHMIELE SHARSE SMIA bzl FH
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT TAL TiER FHT THL TiER
At 31 December 2018 142018%12A318
Trade payable from HKSCC REBALEL
BHEMNER 60,152 (59,947) 205 - - 205
At 31 December 2017 #2017512R318
Trade payable from HKSCC REBARREL
B SRR 95,411 (95,411) - - - -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 38. &R TH (%)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

tREREREERBE (4)

i) HHEHEERSHMER

liabilities (Continued)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of
trade and other receivables, and trade and
other payables of the Group as presented in the

(%)

TRBEEUBRAKRMAZ7
AEEZ B 5 K E A ERIRK
LESRAMENEREELZ

consolidated statement of financial position: AR
Trade and other receivables B2 R A M EWR
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET THET
Net amount of trade receivable RKEBBEEZ
from HKSCC B S ERERFUF R - 1,371
Trade and other receivables not TNEEERERE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 & E b AR R 513,594 145,323
Trade and other receivables RE SRR R
as disclosed in the consolidated FiEs2ES R
statement of financial position H th i Y BR X 513,594 146,694
Trade and other payables B 5 R FAMIE TR
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
TF#T T T
Net amount of trade payable REEBEEZ
from HKSCC B S EMBRFFER 205 =
Trade and other payables not TEEERERE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure E 5 R H MR 231,703 174,361
Trade and other payables RE MR R
as disclosed in the consolidated FiiEEsE SR
statement of financial position H th FE AT BR R 231,908 174,361

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

264

The fair value hierarchies of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as follows:

° Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, the fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices.

° Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the financial assets and financial liabilities, either
directly (that is, prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

° Level 3 — inputs for the financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
are approximate at their fair values. There were no
changes in the valuation techniques or transfers
between the levels during both current and prior years.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured
subsequently to initial recognition at fair value, which
are all grouped into Level 1 except for the unlisted
equity investment outside Hong Kong, based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurements. Level 1
fair value measurement is derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical financial
assets. Level 3 fair value measurement is derived from
the inputs for the below financial assets that are not
based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

38. £RT R (&)

RE SN R F 5209 2 FREA

=
TRATHMEERSRAEEH XA
RHEEERZEMTE (FAARE
RFBEAEZBARBIEREE
MRAFEEFEDARENERIZE
MBERAEMRL  FBHEIIE LT
REERRIN) VDT - BRIAFEE
AENREAHREREENIEE
B HI5T RE (RERAR) RS-
RINTFEETENRETIILIFR
BEABRMSHE (AEZEREA
AAEEBB) CERMEERARE-

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT T
Level 1 E4R1
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB ETHRAES 6,676 9,118
Level 3 B3
Unlisted equity investment outside BBIRINE LT
Hong Kong RARE 65,777 -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair
value based on significant unobservable inputs (level

38. &M IR (&)
TABIAR S TS R0y 22 FREAT
2 (4)

RIBEAR AR AR (BH3)
BRAFEEIENSRIAESRM

3) are as follows: ™
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
TET THET

Fair value through profit or loss: BEAFEBYIAER

At 1 January R1A1H = -
Additions N1 65,777 =
At 31 December M12H31H 65,777 =

The fair value of unlisted equity investment outside
Hong Kong is estimated using valuation techniques
that include the use of both observable and
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs included
market value of comparable companies, risk-free
rate and expected recoverable rate of the investment
and adjusted for discounts of lack of marketability
(“DLOM"). The risk-free rate, DLOM and expected
recoverable rate are 2.49%, 4.87%, and 15%
respectively. The change in fair value of the unlisted
equity investment is immaterial for the current financial
year and therefore not recognised by the Group,

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the

potential penalty arising from the late filing of the PRC tax

returns for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax is disclosed in

Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

206
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40. OPERATING LEASES

The Group made the following minimum and contingent
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

during the year was as follows:

40. EEHE

AEBERMBFEREARELATREHLAR
PRAIBUBE ST E IR

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHT T T

Operating lease rentals in respect of: LTEHMNEEHEEHESE:

Minimum lease payments =IEHEE KB

— community mall — L& P % 20,730 10,993
— offices o NS 1,825 976
— staff quarters —BIES 954 1,194
— retail shops —ZTEJR 5,992 5,001
29,501 18,254
Contingent lease payments AT E IR 16,325 833
45,826 19,087

The minimum and contingent lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases include contingent rentals for
various retail shops calculated based on the relevant shops’
revenue generated during the year by using pre-determined

formulae.

FEREFRAS 2018F E#HE

AR BUR&E &M E R RIE R AR EFIA
BRERFAEENHHETERMNER
BYNREABEENAAAENETTER
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40. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments of future minimum lease payments, except
contingent rentals, for community mall, offices, staff quarters
and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases,
which were fall due as follows:

40. HEHE (8])

RBEBMR AERERARARFERENK
APEATAGE BRI RUEEEHE TH
HERS RAE BIFERZTEENK
REERIN HBHAMOHTMT

2018 2017

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#ET FABT

Within one year —FR 24,394 13,810
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FE2FERF

(BIEEEME) 80,130 17,895

Over five years HBAF 278,310 =

382,834 31,705

Future minimum lease payments represent rental expenses
payables by the Group for community mall, offices, staff
quarters, and retail shops. Lease agreements are negotiated
for lease terms ranged from one to twenty years (2017: from
one to three years).

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only and
do not include contingent rental expenses payable in respect
of various retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rental expenses are calculated with reference to
the relevant retail shops’ turnover generated during the year
by using pre-determined formulae, such contingent rental
expenses cannot be estimated in advance.

2 6 8 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

AR E AT A R B RS
HERS HAZ BIHEEREEAHAN
HeMz-BERREREZ AN
—HERE (2017  —EZFFE) -

FRAREAEEEELAES BETEEN
SEHENZRTERHNBNRAES
FAX e —RME  ZRERXARAEEHAXIZE
HATERMFANELNEXBEREL
BENEAFE HEIREERAXHNE
BRI A] SRITfhET e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

40. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED) 40.

Rental income generated by leasing the investment
properties held by the Group during the year was amounted
to approximately HKD64,062,000 (2017: HKD51,349,000).
Tenants for such investment properties held for leasing
purpose have committed with lessors for the next one to
nineteen years subject to the shopping newly leased as
disclosed above (2017: one to five years).

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contracted with

HEEHE (8])

FR HEREVEELEZHSRALY
/364,062,000 7T (20174 : 51,349,000
BIL) AKBEREHERZNRENE
HPEAREEA BENF—ZE2+1F

(2017 : —Z=HRF) °

RBEEHR AEEREF T RRKE

tenants for the following future minimum lease income: HEWRAGHWT
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Within one year —F R 49,506 60,062

In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FEFRFERF

(BIEHEME) 80,602 92,126
Over five years HBiEAaF 84,820 -
214,928 152,188

FEREFRAS 2018F E#HE
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41.

42.

COMMITMENTS

As at the end of reporting period, the Group had the
following contractual commitments not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

41. #&iE

RBEEHR AREER TIAHMERX
YR AZEHBHRERA

2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHT T
Contracted for but not provided: FHACETIL AL KRG
— Capital contribution in respect of an — BRI ARERH

unlisted equity investment in the U.S. FELETRARE 51,682 =

— Construction costs of Xiamen and —EfEGREFRAT 2
Shenyang outlet malls BIERAR 199,605 7,118
251,287 7,118

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to contribute
5% or HKD1,500 per month in maximum of relevant payroll
costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The Company’s subsidiaries operate in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme,
the Central Provident Fund, operated by the government
of the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions, which
are based on a certain percentage of the monthly salaries
of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period to
which they relate and represent the amount of contributions
payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme. The Group
has no other obligation under this state-managed retirement
benefits scheme other than the contribution payments.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to
the time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding
those employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.

42. BREFIETE (&)

ARRBRABEEZ M E QR AP BB
RENBRERRARBNFE (PRIE
F I E - BRRET BB Z AR E A
AEENBATIENETAOHAE X
R B A bt B 8 2 A e AR R AT
B HRFT AR ARG R BRI K
SER I ERERRKENEETHE
HtpEE-

AEET2EARERQEXBHEMBE
R [E5 ) 4 B8 1t 75 R T B P O 57 E SR IR
8- ARBETAEBRSIMENRTEINE
TREARZAXSAENEAREN K
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 43. FAEAN TS

During the year, the Group entered into the following

P B TR S ) AN R B B A T B &8

transactions with the following related parties: ATETUATRS:
Mr. Cheng and his associates: HEEREEREEBRAL:
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature i 3= THT T T
Commission income from securities trading &% B &2 A S E S KA 39 48
Interest income from margin financing BEEBHFEMHA 212 108
Entertainment expenses ¥BHBEE — 45
Management fee expenses ERBERZ - 203
Rental expenses HeMX 516 516
Motor vehicle expenses RERX 72 67
Total amount of margin financing facilities ETRESMELHZ
granted (Note (i) BERE (2 30)) 10,000 10,000
Maximum amount of margin financing RECHMEZS S 8,745 3,490
Other related parties: Hihr:
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature e TER FHT
Interest income from joint ventures & &R AR B A 1,066 2,954
Interest expenses to non-controlling FEFERR IR R A B 2
shareholder 229 -
Minimum purchases for the sale and SHE Ny sHF K AR 3 &
distribution of swimwear and E@EsiReE ER
other sportswear, shoes and related FEHEAEC & (A7 22 3i))
accessories (Note (i) 103,558 117,601
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Advances to the director in margin financing facilities granted
are repayable on demand, carried at an interest rate of Prime
Rate plus 3% (2017: Prime Rate plus 3%) per annum, and are
secured by securities collateral for both years.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement with Shanghai
Descente Commercial Co. Ltd, a substantial shareholder of
one of the Company’s subsidiary, the Group is required to
make minimum purchases in each contract year effective from
the financial year of 2017 to 2021, subject to the Group was
appointed as an exclusive distributor during the year for the
sale and distribution of swimwear and other sportswear, shoes
and related accessories in the PRC.

These transactions disclosed in Notes (i) and (ii)
above are constituted as connected transactions as
defined under the Listing Rules, and those that are

not exempted from disclosures in accordance with
the Listing Rules are set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Corporate
Governance Report.

43. FAEANTHEE (§)

i

0] RBEFER SRESHERESEE
HZ BRAREREEE  HREER
KRG F PN3%ET S (20174 - xBHEF =
M3% ) W PARE H AR R AERHEAR

(il REEDSARFEHEARABND H
& AEEARSEOFE (AXHR
20174 22021 4F B B F 2 ) 2 B &K R
B AEERFARZERBROH
P AR B SH R SR K AR ER Je EL 8
BARE - RARRIRCH

%X GEP ) R (iD= LT
BMABA TR AT ZER S MRE
ETRUTEREERRBEZR 5
REXERRS [HEBER S —
ffe
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

43. FAEANLTHEE ()

(CONTINUED)
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT FTEEEASH
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the directors and members of FARFBAETEEEABNEENRS
senior management, included as key management BEBABENEMNLOT
personnel, during the year were as follows:
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHT FHET
Short-term benefits y SRR = 12,817 14,129
Post-employment benefits HLILHERA®BET 148 165
12,965 14,294

274

The remunerations of the directors and members

of senior management were determined by the

Remuneration Committee taking into accounts of their

experience, qualifications, business performance,

market practices and competitive market conditions as

disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

44. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

44. ER AT IR R

2018 2017
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
Hiat F#ET TET
Non-current assets EMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries £ g= i 0] /NE] 45 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 2,743,655 2,916,464
Restricted bank deposit SZRHIRITER 20,000 20,000
2,764,643 2,937,452
Current assets mBEE
Other receivables H {th & sk IE 734 632
Bank balances and cash RITESR RIS 79,232 35,723
79,966 36,355
Current liabilities mEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rl NGIE = 16,723
Other payables Hith FEA BR X 2,558 2,595
Bank borrowings RITEE 283,315 489,577
285,873 508,895
Net current liabilities mEAEEFE (205,907) (472,540)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 509,942 376,304
Net assets BEFE 2,048,794 2,088,608
Equity =
Share capital A& A 33 297,403 295,581
Reserves i 36 1,751,391 1,793,027
2,048,794 2,088,608

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45. R B A SIH LR

20184 K2017412H31H - R A RIH £

7

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

276

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: EWBARFFEET :
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
R EARRHERT/
HEAT BRREENYE  EHE/T/ BERE BRBFARES R
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Hi ifE: B fls
Cosmo Group Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD10,000 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands L3BA%10,0005% T REER
EBRAHE
Power Plus Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LTmR1ET REER
EBRAHE
Premier Ever Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD63,068,127 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands L 3B%63,068,127% T REER
EBRAHE
Rivergold International Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD78,364,080 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands L3B0%78,364,080% T REER
EBRAHE
BHRERTEHERE The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Property investment
BRAR owned foreign USD70,766,000 MERE
enterprise) 1 & 270,766,000% T
HE (SNEBEE
%)
BEEFMABEARAR  The PRC (wholly Registered capital - = = 100%  Property investment
(Note i) (H1azi) owned foreign USD42,500,000 MERE
enterprise) #Eff & 7R42,500,000% 7T
hE (SEEE
t%)
BHEREEEEB AR The PRC (wholly Registered capital - = = 100%  Property investment
(Note i) (Hiiti) owned foreign USD18,300,000 MERE
enterprise) 1 & 718,300,000 7T
HE (SNEBEE
%)
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45. M BA SR (48)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
S, KABRBHERT/
MEBAST B REEHE EME #T/ BRRE BiRAARER TEEH
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# fel B fls
EGRAEEERAR The PRC (wholly Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Operation and
owned foreign USD9,800,000 management of
enterprise) #E1 & 729,800,000 1T outlet malls
hE (SMEBE BERNEERER
%)
China Rise Finance Group Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited A% 3 AY10,0007% 7T REZR
EEeREEARAT
China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKD100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities
Management Company Limited &8 & 38% 100,000,000 T brokerage,
EEESEAEEEARAA underwriting and
placing of listed
securities, margin
financing and
financial advisory
services
REFESEL
BEREE £
& RUMBHEA
PR
China Rise Finance Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
EZHUBAERAR Bk 310,000 T lending services
REEERS
Trillion Earning Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LmR1ET REER
HBRLES
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
EREXBRAR B L %10,0007% T NERE
SERRRERHBRAA Taiwan Ordinary NTD50,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Operation and
(Note ii) ( #iizii) BiE AT A #50,000,000 management of
duty free shops
BEREREHGE

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45. RMIB AT ER (5)

278

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRI/ FARRHECHT/
HEAT BRRGERE  EWE/BG/BEREX BRRAENES BED
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# fel B i
Smart Shine Industries Limited  The British Virgin Ordinary USD2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LmR2ET REER
EERAES
SYM Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
B LRk T MERE

Kwan Tai Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10 - 100% - 100%  Property investment

ERBRBBRAT Bt LBRI0ET MERE

Yue Hing Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Property investment

WEERBBRAF & TRR2ETT MERE

JFT Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD316,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of IT,

BHERERER AT Bk 47 1£316,000,0007 7T corporate services

and portfolio
management
REGERM - 0%
RBMRELS
BRARE
Profit Guaranteed Assets Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
FREEBRAR Bk LRBET accountancy,
legal, secretarial
and cruiser
services
Ritgs EE
WERMARE
FRE (L8 ERES The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD3,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Property investment
BRAR owned foreign £ 3BA%3,000,000% 7T MERE
enterprise)
HE (SNEBEE
%)

NE (LB)RAESHERARF  The PRC (whally Ordinary RMB23,611,365 - 100% = 100%  Trading, retailing
owned foreign L@k AR 23,611,365 and distribution of
enterprise) swimming apparel

R (O EEE and accessories
T%) 85 ZERHH
7k A mm S B £
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A31H It F &

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45. M BA SR (48)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRI BATARHERT/
HEAS BEREENYE  CME/ B/ BERF BERAERES EBED
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# fel B fls
MMBAEREREARAR  The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB2,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Trading, refailing
owned foreign L&k A R #2,000,0007T and distribution of
enterprise) swimming apparel
B (HNEBE and accessories
%) 25 ZTERNH
WK B i R B &
MmN BERBRER AR The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB2,000,000 - 55% - 55%  Provision of online
owned foreign LB A R #2,000,0007T trading platform
enterprise) support
R (O EEE REBERHT R
&%) SHERH
HERERGERAH The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD14,080,000 - 100% = 100%  Trading, retailing
owned foreign I 3E 14,080,000 T and distribution of
enterprise) swimming apparel
RE (SMNEBE and accessories
T%) 25 TERHH
K PR R B 6
Arena (Shanghai) Industrial The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB30,000,000 - 70% - 70%  Trading, retailing
Co. Limited owned foreign 33 ik A R #30,000,00070 and distribution of
M3 ( L) BEXBRAR enterprise) swimming apparel
B (I EBE and accessories
%) 25 ZTERDH
K PR i B B &
EE(EMEEERAA The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD1,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and
owned foreign L3BA%1,000,000% 7T management of
enterprise) fashion stores
R (O EBERE) BEREEKEE
Pony International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
Bk Lmk2ET trademark rights,
trading and
wholesales of
sportswear
BYRESHR
3
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45. RMIB AT ER (5)

280

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRRL BADBHERT/
HBAT BRREEME  EME/ B/ BERE BHRAERES EBED
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# fel B i
Super Jumbo Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Development and
Islands TmRIET management
EERAES of “PONY”
trademarks
ERENER
[PONY | 12
Pony, Inc. The United States of ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
America LmR1ET trademark rights
Pony Asia Holdings Pte. Limited  Singapore Ordinary SGD100 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
I AR 1005 I T trademark rights
Perfect Day Ventures Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LmR1ET BEER
RBELHS
Aggressive Resources Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD50,000 - 100% - - Investment holding
(Note iii) ( B &Ziir) Islands 3 %50,000% T BEER
RBELHS
Supremium Bio-Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - - Sourcing,
Limited (Note i) B L 3BA%10,0007% 7T manufacturing,
BEENREERAR designing,
(Wiztii) packaging,
wholesaling and
trading of health
supplement
products
R B8 et
BE HERES
REEER
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45. M BA SR (48)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up/ Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
S, KABRBHERT/
MEBAST B REEHE B8R 81T/ BiERE BiRAARER TEEH
2018 2017
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# fel B il
Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD100 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands EBARI00%ETT REER
HBRLES
Kingxin International Investment ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD50,000 - 80% - 80%  Investment holding
Limited Islands 38 50,000 T REER
SBEGRABRAR EBERAES
HK Asia Gain International Hong Kong Ordinary HKD28,000,000 - 80% - 80%  Investment holding
Investment Limited Bk 37 %28,000,0007% 70 REER
ERDARBEBRREBRAA
EEEAZERHEELEE  The PRC (wholly Ordinary RMB260,000,000 - 80% - 80%  Property investment
BB AT owned foreign Limk MERE
enterprise) AR %260,000,0007T
hE (SNEBE
%)
Majestic City Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EREERRAT Islands ETRERIET REER
EBREAHE
Majestic City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD 1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
W (BE)BRAA B TRRLETT REER
EFEARKEEFRAR  The PRC (wholly Ordinary USD45,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Property investment
owned foreign 18 A%45,000,000% T MERE
enterprise)
HE (SNEEE
%)
Grand Galatica Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD100 - 100% - 100%  Club debenture
Islands LBAR100E T holding
ERELHS REEMES

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

e

The disposal transaction was completed on 29 August 2018 and the
Group ceased to have any equity interest on the same date. Details of
the disposal transaction was disclosed in Note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The subsidiary commenced voluntary liquidation on 30 November
2018.

Acquired through business combination during the year. Details of
the business combination are set out in Note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the end of
reporting period or at any time during the year.

The above table lists of the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the Group’s results or
assets. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

46. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) arising from its 70% equity
interest in Arena (Shanghai) Industrial Co. Limited (“Arena
Shanghai”) and 80% equity interest in Kingxin, which are
considered as material NCI. The NCI of other subsidiaries
that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be
immaterial and their financial information is not disclosed as
below.

Summarised financial information in relation to the material
NCls before intra-group eliminations, is presented as follows:

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF ARENA SHANGHAI AND KINGXIN AS
AT 31 DECEMBER

46. JEIERRIER

20174 K2018F12H31 1 - A& 5
B (L&) BXERAR (M5
LB T70%KERI0%E BHRRERR
R ([28]) ZBREEE SERIHERE
o B F BN T XEE - ML FFmA
SE2EHE 2 EMHME QR Z IFERE
SR RAFFER A REZHBEEHD

THE-

BRERFEEER MBEEMRE CR

ERBAREREHE) 20T

#£12A318 AP LEBREE

ZEENBRME

Arena Shanghai Kingxin
P i 498 & 35 &E
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fi#ET FETT FHET FHET
Current HE
Assets BE 77,745 53,535 2,090 4,101
Liabilities af& (46,047) (7,615) (276,632) (276,738)
31,698 45,920 (274,542) (272,637)
Non-current FERE
Assets EE 2,388 2,965 495,925 521,394
Liabilities af& - - (53,682) (54,166)
2,388 2965 442,243 467,228
Net assets FEE 34,086 48 885 167,701 194,591
Accumulated non-controlling RErIEIERER
interests 10,226 14,666 33,540 38,918
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283



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &= & Bf 75 R &R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 2018412831 H [t F &

46. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IN
RELATION TO ARENA SHANGHAI, AND KINGXIN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

46. FiZixtER (&)

BE12A31HEFE  HEAMIRMNL

BREBZEZAWERME

Arena Shanghai Kingxin
P i L i ot ]
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET FET FHET
Revenue EEH 164,279 148,629 17,180 6,221
(Loss)/profit before income tax B BT/ Fi Al
expense (B18), /57 (12,177) 16,398 (6,192) 96,992
Income tax expense FriSRiF X - (4,119) (7) (30,329)
(Loss)/profit for the year W (ER),SaFl (12,177) 12,279 (6,199) 66,663
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEKA (2,623) 2,636 (20,691) 21,934
Total comprehensive income FE2AHBA
for the year (14,800) 14915 (26,890) 88,597
Total comprehensive income e 2
attributable to non-controlling ZHEBA 2 25
interests (4,440) 4479 (5,378) 17,719
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(CONTINUED)

46. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS IN
RELATION TO ARENA SHANGHAI AND KINGXIN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

46. FiZixtER (&)

HBF12A318EFEE BN IR L
BRESEZ2AKERUE

Arena Shanghai Kingxin
P B B L %
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
Fi#ERT FHET FHERT FHET
Operating activities TEEE
Cash used in operations BAREEEERIE S (19,592) (29,018) (14,989) (14,006)
Income tax paid BEETEH - - _ _
Net cash used in operating ~ PR ZEEHN
activities ReFH (19,592) (29,018)|  (14,989) (14,006)
Investing activities BEEH
Net cash from/(used in) A& EEER
investing activities R 38 16,849 (3,643) (194) (254)
Financing activities HEE
Net cash from financing RERMEEEH
activities ReFR 2,349 28,410 15,619 15,206
Net (decrease)/increase in ReMREEED
cash and cash equivalents R/ InFeE (394) (4,251) 436 946
Cash and cash equivalents at F#HR& Rk
beginning of the year ReSED 3,978 5,544 1,274 328
Effect of exchange rate EXEFTHRS R
changes on cash and ReEBYzvE
cash equivalents 1,839 2,685 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at FAREE Rk
end of the year ReSEN 5,423 3,978 1,710 1,274
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46. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 46. FEIERRHEZR (48)

(CONTINUED)

The balance of loan from non-controlling interest (the
“Loan”) of approximately HKD8,649,000 (2017: HKD
nil) was unsecured, interest-bearing at 2.5% per annum
and with no fixed terms of repayment. The remaining
loan balance of HKD600,000 (2017: HKD600,000)
was unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed terms of
repayment. The non-controlling shareholders have agreed
not to demand the repayments of the outstanding loan
balances within the next twelve months from the end of
reporting period.

Accordingly, the directors believe that the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the loan balances
for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting
period and therefore classified the loan as a non-current
liability.

For the acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interest in
Aggressive Resources during the year are set out in Note 48
to the consolidated financial statements.

On 8 March 2017, the Group completed the acquisition
of the remaining 42% equity interests in Giant Eagle, by
issue of 250,000,000 shares of the Company and cash
consideration of HKD15,300,000 to the vendor, Goldsilk
Capital Limited, a company owned by the Company’s
Chairman, Mr. Cheng who also has equity interests and
significant influence in the Company.
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K B IR s O B A £ 40 /38,649,000
BT (20174 : 0B TT) - X ERSEFER
FHER25%MEEEERIR - HBHE
X & #2600,0007% 7T (2017 : 600,000/ 7T )
REER TS REETEERDR B
BEHREFTFARE T —EAR - FFERRK
RABTERAKEEEZER

Wit EFRA AEEEREGRTHZE
RNEHECEREPREED T EA
YHEAMBZERDBLSFERBDEE-

B B4 N ¥ Aggressive Resourcesth T40%
RENKWEEEIHNEGES VB REN T
48 -

M2017F3A8A AEBMBBERENR
{815,300,0007% 7T 17 & /5 Goldsilk Capital
Limited (REATMEE AR AIREREAZ
BAZARRERBEHEBZAR)E
17752 7)250,000,0008% B& {7 FE A W B Giant
Eagle®h T42% [ #E o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

46. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 46. FFi=REHEL (48)
(CONTINUED)
The following summarises the acquisition date fair value of To RS ERERNKERAR 2 AFE
consideration transferred: &:
HKD’000
T T
Total consideration satisfied by: BEREUTHNHERNZMT:
Cash consideration ReRE 15,300
Fair value of consideration shares REROZAFEE 195,000
Total consideration transferred BEEAK(E 210,300
The fair value of 250,000,000 consideration shares issued as 250,000,000 R B0 2 A FBE (1A
part of the consideration paid for the vendor was determined ERMEBEA SN 2RE—EnMmET) ik
on the basis of the closing market price of the Group’s AEFELBBRAWEB B2 WM EETE -
ordinary shares on the acquisition date.
47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEMEATE
(@) On 4 April 2018, the Group signed a Conditional Co- (@) M2018F4F4H  AEEE—FIF L
operation Agreement (the “Agreement”) with an F=F(TERFBEZEEKHEEIER
independent third party (the “Purchaser”), to dispose & ([zipeE]) - AL EMAANE AR
the entire equity interests of two groups of subsidiaries (TEERE]) B2 EE  HERE
(the “Target Companies”), at an agreed consideration S #9589,045,000/8 7T ° B 12 A 7]
of approximately HKD589,045,000 as equivalent. The MEERBEMR2017F12A318 2
assets and liabilities of the Target Companies were HREVBHRERADERFELE A
classified as held for sale in the consolidated financial BT IBE N iR A B s R M 727 o

statements as at 31 December 2017 was detailed in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

233

(Continued)

47. HEMBE2AE] (48)

The disposal was completed on 29 August 2018. In the
opinion of the directors, such disposal transaction does

not constitute a discontinued operation as the Target

Companies does not represent a major line of business

or geographical area of operation. The net assets of the

@@ (&)
HE EBE R2018F8H29H 5K ©
EERA ARLHER W EBK—
BERIEESEL RERBEAR]
WIHE—THE B EEREEHE - 5%
EMBARNLE BBz EEFEN

Disposal Group at the date of disposal were as follows: T
HKD’000
FET
Investment properties "REYE 538,721
Tax prepayments IREREE 25,967
Other payables H b fE AR (114,170)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIE A E (30,685)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 419,833
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal & i B A A& iR K E 5 i
of subsidiaries 27,273
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o BB A R & W e 117,764
Transaction costs R5EH 24,175
Total consideration BB 589,045
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration HeRE 589,045
Less: transaction costs e R5EH (24,175)
Net cash consideration FIESNRE 564,870
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEMB AT (E)
(CONTINUED)
(@) (Continued) @@ (&)
An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHNEMERBARZEHS KRS
in respect of the disposal both subsidiaries was as ZEMRANFELSITOT
follows:
HKD'000
T T
Total consideration satisfied by: HEREZFAN:
Net cash consideration FHRSNE 564,870
Less: consideration payable (Note) B ERRE (M) (314,365)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMmMEEFRER 250,505
Note: The remaining consideration of approximately Htat . H e (E4E S R 4314,365,0007% 7T -
HKD314,365,000 as equivalent was payable by the purchaser EEREFR TIGGREEEX 2R
upon the satisfaction of the earlier of: (i) obtained “Pre-sale F: (VRGBT [EmEEETA
Permit of Commercial Houses” of three parcels of land; or (ii) B R(NHERNDEEREEZMEA - 1
6 months after the sale shares had been transferred. On 11 2019F3A118 - REMREEEEAE
March 2019, the outstanding consideration was fully received EUER o

from the Purchaser.
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47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEKMBASE (4&)

(CONTINUED)

(b)

250

On 15 May 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of two
subsidiaries, China Rise Capital Co., Ltd and Z3Il#=
ZRiEERAR], to an independent third party for
aggregate cash considerations of approximately HKD

6,852,000. The net assets of these subsidiaries at the

(b) HM2017%5H158 AEERE [ —
BEUE=HLERHENBARES
BEARERARRFIEERERRA
Al #238 © (B 456,852,000/ 7T °
ZEMBRRANEERRZEEFE

date of disposal were as follows: R
HKD’000
FBT

Net assets disposed of: HESEFHE:

Goodwill G 1,794
Other receivables H th i B BR 5X 5
Bank balances and cash R1T4Er IR ® 3,859
Other payables H b B~ BR X (10)
5,648
HKD’000
FHET
Considerations RE 6,852
Net assets disposed of HEBEESE (5,648)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries el =N 1,204

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal both subsidiaries was as
follows:

FRLERRENBARIZRERRS
EEVMRAFEINMT

HKD’000
THT

Total consideration satisfied by: BREBUTHHERNZMT:
Cash considerations HeRE 6,852
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEHKIES (3,859)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEWRAFRE 2,993
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B 7% ¥R 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 12 October 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interests
in Aggressive Resources, of which it already owned
60% equity interest before this acquisition for a
consideration of HKD72,200,000 satisfied by cash.
The principal activities of Aggressive Resources
and its subsidiaries are in the business of sourcing,
manufacturing and trading of health supplement
products in Hong Kong. The acquisition was made as
the directors believe the acquisition represents a good
opportunity and important step for the Group to tap into
the health supplement industry, diversify and broaden
the business horizon and income source to the Group.

Upon the completion of the acquisition, the Group’s
60% interest in joint venture already held was
accounted for as being disposed of and immediately
reacquired at fair value of all identifiable assets and
liabilities on the date of obtaining control. As a result,
a fair value gain on re-measurement of equity in a
joint venture of approximately HKD5,363,000 has
been recognised and included in other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

48. WEsH B A Sl

(a)

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE

R2018%F 108128 - A& B Tk Uk
B Aggressive Resources f& N40%%
E(RRAKEZIAEBEHEH
60%%HE) + K18 A72,200,000/8 7T

PAIR & X - o Aggressive Resources &
HWBARIMEZ XK ATEBRSE
REEMWFEE RERZ S ET
R ET RN EERAULIEREE
AEBAESREBEMITIEARZ T
TR RIEMEEFEE KA RN R
WREERE-

REBEAE AEERGEREEDE
Fr A H60% I BUSHE B 2 B 1R
2HAHNEERBENAFHEEBA
BRZII1E 6 12 6 B 2538 W B - Rtk
FARBHTEARLERBERERR
FEEREEXI5,363,0008 7T - B 5T A
FEBmREMKAR-
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

48. WESM B A E] (4)

(CONTINUED)
(@) (Continued) (@ (&)
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities Friis rl BRI & = Kk B ERUE B 8
acquired at the date of acquisition were determined WATEEHEEEKBYEXME
by management with the assistance of Greater China MEEFEER A BBETHT
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer,
and were as follows:
Fair value
AFEE
HKD’000
T
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE REE 374
Intangible assets EWEE 56,629
Inventories FE 5,930
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E th e UL BR 3% 8,485
Bank balances and cash RITEHAES 8,225
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b AT BRI (1,828)
Bank borrowings IRITEN (698)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE (8,307)
Tax payables FES R IR (2,015)
Total identifiable assets acquired Fris B8 a] 25 Bl & E R (B 66,795
Goodwill arising on acquisition: B EENEE:
Cash consideration for additional W BB IMO% R R R & R E
40% equity interest 72,200
Add: Fair value of the 60% equity interest n: BFE60%EERN AT ER
already held 108,300
Total consideration paid BfRRE 180,500
Less: Net assets acquired B TS B EFE (66,795)
113,705

257
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

48. WEsM B AE] (4)

(CONTINUED)
(@) (Continued) (&)
HKD’000
T T
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: AW EERNIE R F5E
Cash consideration paid (Note) ENBEeNRE (Hit) (62,200)
Bank balances and cash acquired Fr iRt RIR 8,225
Bank borrowings acquired Fri B IR1TE K (698)
(54,673)

Note: The remaining consideration of HKD10,000,000 is payable
on 15 April 2019 if the unaudited financial statements of
Aggressive Resources indicates an unaudited profits of
HKD11,000,000 after tax for the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

The goodwill of approximately HKD113,705,000 was
recognised upon completion of the acquisition of
Aggressive Resources is mainly attributable to the
significant future prospect of the acquired business.

The fair value of the 60% equity interest in Aggressive
Resources, an unlisted company, already held by the
Group was estimated by reference to the purchase
price paid for acquisition of its additional 40% equity
interest by the Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, the unaudited amount of the Group’s
revenue and profit would have been approximately
HKD38,672,000 and HKD11,051,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be
projection of future results.

M1 5% - fHAggressive ResourcesH 7k 4% 2 4z B 1%
MRFARAEE20185 12831 8 IEB K
FE A AREEXBRT %) 111,000,000
75 7T » Bl E #4 (X {810,000,0005% 7T fE A
2019%4 A 158 F 1+ -

T2 Uk B Aggressive Resourceshs fgsR
BB E 49113,705,000% 70 Jh = E i
RETWEE R B A ERNERER

=
S

o

AREEEFH IE LA R)Aggressive
Resources,Z 60% % - 5% ERER
FEEDZ2ERNEEBRKEE S
A0%RIEEFNHBEEEGE -

fi U i FIH M 2018F 1 A1H B &
TR CAEBEREECHNEREN
& M 9 Bl K9 438,672,000 7T K&
11,051,000/8 7T ° 5 & & K £ 5
BR - R 6 IR BR W 2R TR A1 R 20184F 1
HIBZEREATAEEERRGH
LERBREEXEE TESAEYR
REERTER
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

294

On 12 January 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 80% equity interest in Kingxin, for
a total amount of consideration satisfied as to
RMB76,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD84,795,000) by cash to exchange a commercial
property in Chongging, the PRC of approximately
HKD366,040,000, with a deferred tax liabilities of
HKD20,664,000 on the date of acquisition as disclosed
in Notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. The directors considered this
acquisition as an acquisition of assets and liabilities
because Kingxin did not constitute a business at the
acquisition date.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of this acquisition was as follows:

48. WESM B A E] (4)

(b)

201761 A128 - A& E 5Tk U i
TEIONKE BREZBEARE
76,000,0007T (18 % 1% 984,795,000
BIT) R B BAR @ X A
R—BEURTEEEZARYED
366,040,000/ 7T - fii FiRETR A B &
20,664,000/ 7T (73 Bl X %5 & B 75 it
R FEIBR2WE) - BEER/E W
BERNUBEEREE EeEBRNK
BHERAERES-

BRzRBz R RASFEYRH
FETIAT

HKD’000

FHETT

Cash consideration BeRE 84,795
Bank balances and cash acquired Pl BB R1T R RIS (328)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEBYRE F5E 84,467
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49. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %2 & B & 3k 3= MY 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 201812 A31 B It F &

49. IR &Rt B R B 1EM 5

STATEMENT
(A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT COMPRISE: (A BRERB2EEYBE:
2018 2017
HKD’000 HKD’000
THT T T
Cash available on demand BRENRREH RS 29,496 76,968
Cash available in the PRC HEREEFEER 48,508 60,358
Time deposits EHITF K 53,586 =
Bank overdrafts RITE X (6,461) -
125,129 137,326
Significant non-cash transactions are BEXERE&XSMT:
as follows:
Investment activities KEZE
Addition to property, plant and equipment  EBFEREREDE
financed by finance lease = K ek 651 =
Equity consideration for acquisition of I B IETE AR fE 2 2
non-controlling interests (Note 46) MERERAE (H17E46) - 195,000

HEEREFRAS 2018F E &
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49. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 49. I RERHBIMMEE (48)
STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The table below details changes in the Group’s TRARSERETDMEELAZBE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including SHFE BRAERIIREEF-
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising REEBEEZ BB AR SRE
from financing activities are those for which cash flows IARRBERERNAEEBGZESHSM
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the EXRPHEABETHREREZE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash &

flows from financing activities.

Loan from Amount

Bank  non-controlling Finance duetoa
borrowings interests lease payable related party Total

REFER EftRLE FEft—FE
SRITER ERER HE  HBAIRE st

(Note 30) (Note 46) (Note 31) (Note 32)

(#1z£30) (Hizt46) (H#31) (H23)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAR THT THT THT T
At 1 January 2018 2018%1A1R 1,156,927 600 - - 1,157,527

Changes from cash flows: REREes:
Proceeds from bank borrowings RIETYE 639,041 = = - 639,041
Repayment of bank borrowings ROETER (516,141) - - - (516,141)
Loan from non-controlling interests REFERERER - 8,649 = - 8,649
Principal element of finance BERERIEN

lease payment IERLHA - = 651 - 651
Advance from a related party RE—BEBARBHR - - - 10,541 10,541
Total changes from financing cash flows REREREZLHLE 122,900 8,649 651 10,541 142,741
Exchange realignments R &5 1,207 = = - 1227
At 31 December 2018 2018128318 1,281,054 9,249 651 10,541 1,301,495
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49. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

49. Bl &R ERMB M (8)

Loan from
Bank non-controlling
borrowings interests Total
7k B 1R
RITER EHER @t
(Note 30) (Note 46)
(#1:230) (Hit46)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 20171 A1H 719,491 153,254 872,745
Changes from cash flows: RenEes:
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE R 455,706 = 455,706
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEFER (245,412) - (245,412)
Advance from non-controlling interests 2R B FEIERR A &% 2 5K - 600 600
Total changes from financing cash flows REBREREZ
HE)mE 210,294 600 210,894
Exchange realignments R 4,697 = 4,697
Other changes: Hib e gh:
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — T B A &) 222,445 = 222,445
Acquisition of loan from WiiE ok B FE1E R i
non-controlling interests =5 - (153,254) (153,254)
Total other changes HiB8aaE 222,445 (153,254) 69,191
At 31 December 2017 720174F12 A31H 1,156,927 600 1,157,527

HMEEEAFRAT 2018F EHRE
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 50. $REEREEIE

On 25 January 2019, one of the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, EFTHMARIEZEER A A (“Xiamen Park
Outlet Real Estate Company Limited”*), entered into an
agreement with fEE=F T HR A7 (“Fujian Sanjian
Construction Company Limited”*) (the “Contractor”)
pursuant to which the Contractor provides the construction
works for the outlet mall located in Xiamen (the “Xiamen
Park Outlets”) at a consideration of approximately
RMB326,385,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD371,939,000) awarded after the acceptance through
the open tendering process. The above contract sum was
payable in accordance with the stages of the construction
work performed while retaining 3% of the total contract sum
as construction quality retention money.

The contractor also agreed to provide a performance
guarantee in the form of: (a) cash deposited into Xiamen
Park Outlet's designated bank account; or (b) bank
guarantee; or (c) corporate guarantee which has been
registered with the Xiamen Construction Administrative
Bureau.

*

For identification purpose
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R2019F1A250 EFHARREEA
RAR(RRRZ2EHBHMBE LR ERE
BE=gIRRARAR ([AZEI)FTZH
I AEE AR R ([EF
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#326,385,0007T (1% 1 49371,939,000/&
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BEREFRERER AREBEBREEE
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Financial Summary

247 32 &R
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TFETT FETT FET FHET FHET
(Restated)
(BEE%)
OPERATING RESULTS £
Revenue EE 381,848 348,919 363,856 351,067 263,831
Profit/(loss) before income B FT5H () /
tax (expense)/credit ERAEF,/ (BE) 162,706 116,700 30,190 195,053 (30,531)
Income tax Fria®t (%) /1B %
(expense)/credit (50,034) (58,951) (16,145) (38,975) 2,133
Profit/(loss) for the year REBFBECEELZ
from continuing FEwH/ (ER)
operations 112,672 57,749 14,045 156,078 (28,398)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ REEARILEEEB 2
from discontinued FEREF, (BE) -
operations, after tax BRFiE - - = = 28,604
Profit/(loss) for the year  F&Z@F,/ (E1E) 112,672 57,749 14,045 156,078 206
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE{5#8 %], (&518)
— Owners of the —ARREHEEA
Company 118,213 41,018 27,746 180,822 19,095
— Non-controlling — IR R RS
interests (5,541) 16,731 (13,701) (24,744) (18,889)
112,672 57,749 14,045 156,078 206
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FAT FET THET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER A&
Total assets BEE 4,353,474 4,234 441 3,395,176 3,724,613 3,488,416
Total liabilities BEE (1,739,607) | (1,637,078)  (1,227,866)  (1,254,899)  (1,076,673)
EQUITY i 2,613,867 2,597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743
Equity attributable to the ~ RNAEHEHE A
owners of the Company fEh e 2,570,828 2,543,867 2,177,817 2,319,135 2,188,227
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFRfRIE RS 43,039 53,496 (10,507) 150,579 223,516
Total equity BEL 2,613,857 2,597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714 2,411,743
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Particulars of Major Properties
FEMEEF

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT (A) 9EAY%E BERREMYE
AND EQUIPMENT

Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Sitearea  Use BA
HE AEH miE ERE AR EHR L&
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the BB Medium 13,812 N/A  Commercial 100
10/F of Island Place Tower, it A i (saleable) TEA B
No. 510 King's Road, HEE510%% (FTEHE)
North Point, BERNEIOE
Hong Kong 12105% 8 R
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 mEEAREME Medium N/A 100,146  Commercial 100
North Puheda Road FEEAEET i & B [EES
Hushi Tai Development Zone, RASZEER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A B
PRC % 152008-0505%
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 FEE A R EFIE Medium N/A 45,166  Industrial 100
North Puheda Road, FEEAEET i & B Ix
Hushi Tai Development Zone, RASZEER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S A B
PRC &1k (G) 2008-0175%
Units 1 and 2 mEEAREME Long 8,053 N/A  Commercial 100
6/F Jiuge Business Centre EEmEILE £ (gross floor) TEA
No. 2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015% (ZE£mE)
Shanghai, N L
PRC GIE1 255 B AL
North crossroad of mEEAREME Medium N/A 60,273  Wholesale 100
Haixiang Avenue and BEBEMT 5 & B and Retalil
Tianshui Road, Jimei District, SXEEINE (commercial)
Xiamen, Fujian Province, ELR K BE A DL {A (AHEIHER
PRC €
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(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT

Particulars of Major Properties £ Z ¥ ¥ & ¥

(B) FEAREVENME

PROPERTIES
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Sitearea  Use ¥
B AEH miE ERE AR ERR L
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 13,812 N/A  Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, itA i (saleable) TEA B
No. 510 King's Road, K EE5105 (AEHE)
North Point, BB KE3IE
Hong Kong 12 105% 8 hL
Unit C, 2/F, BB Long 4,281 N/A  Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, Lo R (saleable) TER I%
No. 8 On Yip Street, A8 (AEHE)
Chai Wan, AHIBAE
Hong Kong ECEN
12th, 14th, 16th and mEAREME Medium N/A 10,471  Commercial 100
18th Floors, Beijing Junefield tRERRE 57 TNE B e
Plaza, 10th Building, FHMINKEG -
Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18 81012 *16185%
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street 105 121416
Xuan Wu District, Beijing, N18E
PRC
A site on West of Zhonghau REEAREM Medium N/A 100,098  Commercial 63
Road, North of Anbao Main MEAZE YR - i A S
Road, South of Wenyi Street, EEFEPEK
at Baoliansi Zhen, Wenfeng AP ZEAB
District, Anyang, Henan PAJE Ko X Ay
Province, PRC VAR 2 -3
Unit 2, 7/F R AR HEFE Long 4,027 N/A  Commercial 100
Jiuge Business Centre EETmEILE £ (gross floor) TEA B
No0.2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015% (EEME)
Shanghai, PRC TR L
TSR BB AL
A commercial complex at REEAREM Medium 425,716 11,905  Commercial 80
No. 70 Shancha Road, EETRILE R RS
Yubei District, L8 387055 2
Chongging City, PRC —REREED
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Information to Stakeholders
Az 8RR & & &

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 14 June 2019
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 has been published on both the websites of the Company
(www.symphonyholdings.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185
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“Annual General Meeting”

[BERBFERE ]

“Board”

-

“CG Code”
[P

“Company”

[ARE ]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Group”
[AREE |

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Listing Rules”

[ EmARA
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Glossary

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday 14th June
2019 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof

AAREFIR2019F6 148 EP A EF TR EBMANRRAF A S H
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the board of Directors of the Company

ARmEES

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ErR RIS E M B EER TR

Symphony Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares and warrants of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1223 and Warrant code: 1537)
EEBARAR —HRBABREZIMRILZ BRG] Hik &R E
BB AP ER B (BRAD AR5 - 1223 KR iR AR #E & X 55% - 1537)

the director(s) of the Company
ARARESE

the Company and its subsidiaries

Arm R EHERE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB BB R RITT R R

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBREEEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt 22 P78 7 AR Al

The People’s Republic of China excluding Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARAME TEEEEFITRE RBFIFHITERRREE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR® PEEEEER
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“Share(s)”
%15 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bge 22 Ffr |

“Warrant(s)”
[

304

ordinary share(s) of HKDO.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RRBIRARFIREEO.10E T 2 & FAK

holder(s) of the issued share(s) of the Company

RRBZBETROFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERHAERRATE

the warrant(s) issued by the Company which carries(carry) the right to
subscribe for Share(s) at the subscription price of HKD1.00 per Share, subject
to adjustments
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